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MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL

STANDARDS (HEARINGS AND DETERMINATION) SUB-COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 18 OCTOBER 2010

Present: Mr D Wright (Independent Member) (Chairman)
Councillor Mrs W Hinder
Councillor B Stead (Parish Representative)
Paul Fisher, Monitoring Officer
Donna Price, Investigating Officer
Debbie Snook, Democratic Services Officer

1. DISCLOSURES BY MEMBERS AND OFFICERS

There were no disclosures by Members or Officers.

2. DISCLOSURES OF LOBBYING

There were no disclosures of lobbying.

3. EXEMPT ITEMS

RESOLVED: That the items on the agenda be taken in public as proposed,
but the Committee’s deliberations as to its findings of fact, whether there
has been a breach or breaches of the Code of Conduct and, if so, what
sanction is to be imposed, if any, should be taken in private.

4, MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 20 NOVEMBER 2009

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2009
be approved as a correct record and signed.

5. HEARING INTO ALLEGATIONS THAT PARISH COUNCILLOR HANS
REICHERT BREACHED THE LANGLEY PARISH COUNCIL'S CODE OF
CONDUCT

The Monitoring Officer submitted a report setting out the background to
the hearing. It was noted that the Standards (Assessment) Sub-
Committee, at its meeting held on 22 February 2010, considered
allegations made by Mr Anthony Monk that Councillor Hans Reichert may
have failed to comply with Langley Parish Council’s Code of Conduct.
Specifically, it was alleged that Councillor Reichert used his position as a
Member of Langley Parish Council to secure an advantage for himself
(paragraph 6 (a) of the Code of Conduct) and that Councillor Reichert
failed to disclose prejudicial interests and withdraw from meetings when
matters relating to his company were discussed (paragraphs 9 and 12 of
the Code of Conduct). The Sub-Committee agreed to refer the allegations
to the Monitoring Officer for investigation. The Monitoring Officer
appointed an Investigating Officer to look into the matter and her report
was considered by the Standards (Consideration) Sub-Committee at its
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meeting held on 1 September 2010. It was agreed that the report should
be referred to a hearing by the Standards (Hearings and Determination)
Sub-Committee.

The Investigating Officer had considered whether Councillor Reichert failed
to comply with paragraphs 6 (a), 9 and 12 of the Code of Conduct of
Langley Parish Council. She had concluded that Councillor Reichert did
not fail to comply with paragraph 6 (a) of the Code of Conduct, but did fail
to comply with paragraphs 9 and 12 of the Code of Conduct.

It was now necessary for the Sub-Committee to hear the matter and
decide whether or not there had been a breach, or breaches, of the Code
of Conduct, and, if so, what sanction to impose, if any.

The Hearing

The Investigating Officer advised the Sub-Committee that she wished to
add that Councillor Reichert’s failure to declare an interest at meetings of
the Parish Council when the website was discussed happened on
approximately twelve occasions.

The Chairman reminded the Sub-Committee that at an earlier meeting it
had agreed with the finding in the Investigating Officer’s report that there
had been no breach of paragraph 6 (a) of the Code of Conduct. The
Chairman then formally asked Councillor Reichert if he admitted to having
breached paragraphs 9 and 12 of the Code of Conduct. Councillor
Reichert admitted the breaches. He stated that he now realised that he
should have declared an interest at every meeting when the website was
discussed. In mitigation he explained that until his training on the Code
of Conduct in January 2010 he did not fully understand what was required
in terms of declaring interests, but he now declared a personal and/or
prejudicial interest when the website was discussed. He had been
approached by the Parish Council due to his expertise in the area of
website provision; in hindsight he had been naive.

The Sub-Committee then heard briefly from the Investigating Officer as to
the way forward. She explained that:-

e During the period May 2007 to November 2008, Councillor Reichert
failed to declare an interest at Council meetings when the website
was discussed on approximately twelve occasions. At this stage he
had not received training on the Code of Conduct and did not have
a full understanding of the Code at the time. He believed that the
fact that he had declared an interest in relation to his position as a
Director of HDR Visual Communications Ltd at the meeting in April
2007 and in the Register of Members’ Personal Interests was
sufficient to meet the requirements of the Code of Conduct.

« Having considered all of the evidence she did not believe that
Councillor Reichert intentionally or maliciously withheld his interest
in the company and the website provision at Council meetings.
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e In January 2010 Councillor Reichert underwent training on the Code
of Conduct and it was clear from his interview and subsequent
Minutes that he had learned from the training.

e In the light of this she would recommend that a censure was
sufficient sanction in the circumstances.

The Sub-Committee then agreed to exclude the public pursuant to
paragraph 7C of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act
1972, having applied the Public Interest Test, in order that it could
deliberate and reach its conclusions in private as to whether Councillor
Reichert had failed to follow the Code of Conduct and, if so, the sanction
to be imposed if any.

The Sub-Committee then left the room accompanied by the Monitoring
Officer and the Committee Administrator.

Upon the return of the Sub-Committee, the Chairman announced that:-

« The Sub-Committee agreed with the findings of fact as set out in
the Investigating Officer’s report for the reasons set out in that
report.

« The Sub-Committee agreed that there had been no breach of
paragraph 6 (a) of the Code, but paragraphs 9 and 12 had been
breached, for the reasons set out in the Investigating Officer’s
report.

¢ The Sub-Committee had determined that the sanction imposed for
the breaches of paragraphs 9 and 12 of the Code of Conduct be
that Councillor Reichert be censured.

 The Sub-Committee believed that at the time of the breaches there
was a lack of understanding of the Code of Conduct generally within
the Parish Council, and usually in such circumstances it would
impose a training sanction, but it recognised that Councillor
Reichert had taken the initiative to attend training as had other
Members of the Parish Council. The Sub-Committee had listened to
the advice of the Investigating Officer and had taken into account
the guidance on sanctions issued by Standards for England. It
considered that there was no intention to breach the Code, that
Councillor Reichert had been naive but not dishonest.

A copy of the Decision Notice is attached as an Appendix to these Minutes.

6. DURATION OF MEETING

10.00 a.m. to 11.00 a.m.

Dem\standards\local investigations and determinations sub-committee\
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MAID=TONE

Borough Council

Decision Notice of the Maidstone Borough
Council Standards Sub-Committee

Name of Authority: Langley Parish Council
Subject Member: Councillor Hans Reichert
Complainant: Mr A Monk

Case Reference Number: MBC/10/01

Chairman: Mr Don Wright

Standards Committee Members: Councillor Wendy Hinder, Parish Councillor
Bill Stead

Monitoring Officer: Mr Paul Fisher
Investigating Officer: Ms Donna Price
Date of Investigation Report: 19 August 2010

Committee Administrator: Mrs Debbie Snook

Time, Date, Place of Hearing: 10.00am on Monday 18™ October 2010 at the
Town Hall, Maidstone

I:\CorporateLaw\ParishCouncils\Langley\FinalDecisionNoticeCllr Hans Reichert.doc1
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Summary of Complaint

The complainant alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct of Langley Parish
Council. A summary of the allegations is set out below together with the
numbered paragraph of the Code of Conduct:-

1. That Councillor Reichert used his position as a member of Langley Parish
Council to secure an advantage for himself (Para 6a).

2. That Councillor Reichert failed to disclose prejudicial interests and
withdraw from meetings when matters relating to his company were
discussed (Paras 9 and 12).

Relevant Sections of the Code

Paragraph 6

You—
(a) must not use or attempt to use your position as a member

improperly to confer on or secure for yourself or any other person,
an advantage or disadvantage; and

Paragraph 9

Disclosure of personal interests

(1) Subject to sub-paragraphs (2) to (7), where you have a personal
interest in any business of your authority and you attend a meeting of
your authority at which the business is considered, you must disclose
to that meeting the existence and nature of that interest at the
commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes

apparent.

(2) Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority
which relates to or is likely to affect a person described in paragraph
8(1)(a)(i) or 8(1)(a)(ii)(aa), you need only disclose to the meeting the
existence and nature of that interest when you address the meeting
on that business.
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(3) Where you have a personal interest in any business of the authority of
the type mentioned in paragraph 8(1)(a)(viii), you need not disclose
the nature or existence of that interest to the meeting if the interest
was registered more than three years before the date of the meeting.

(4) Sub-paragraph (1) only applies where you are aware or ought
reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal interest.

(5) Where you have a personal interest but, by virtue of paragraph 14,
sensitive information relating to it is not registered in your authority's
register of members' interests, you must indicate to the meeting that
you have a personal interest, but need not disclose the sensitive
information to the meeting.

(6) Subject to paragraph 12(1)(b), where you have a personal interest in
any business of your authority and you have made an executive
decision in relation to that business, you must ensure that any
written statement of that decision records the existence and nature
of that interest.

(7) In this paragraph, "executive decision" is to be construed in
accordance with any regulations made by the Secretary of State
under section 22 of the Local Government Act 2000.

Paragraph 12

Effect of prejudicial interests on participation

(1) Subject to sub-paragraph (2), where you have a prejudicial interest in
any business of your authority—

(a) you must withdraw from the room or chamber where a meeting
considering the business is being held—

(i) in a case where sub-paragraph (2) applies, immediately after
making representations, answering questions or giving
evidence; ‘

I\CorporateLaw\ParishCouncils\Langley\FinalDecisionNoticeCllr Hans Reichert.doc3
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(i) in any other case, whenever it becomes apparent that the |
business is being considered at that meeting;

unless you have obtained a dispensation from your authority's
standards committee;

(b) you must not exercise executive functions in relation to that
business; and

(c) you must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that
business.

(2) Where you have a prejudicial interest in any business of your
authority, you may attend a meeting but only for the purpose of
making representations, answering questions or giving evidence
relating to the business, provided that the public are also allowed to
attend the meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory
right or otherwise.

Summary of the evidence considered and representations made

The Chairman reminded the Sub-Committee that at an earlier meeting it had
agreed with the finding in the Investigating Officer’s report that there had
been no breach of paragraph 6 of the Code.

The Chairman first of all formally asked Councillor Reichert if he admitted to
having breached paragraphs 9 and 12 of the Code of Conduct. Councillor
Reichert did admit the breaches.

Findings of fact including the reasons for them

The Sub-Committee agreed with the findings of fact as set out in the
Investigating Officer’s report for the reasons set out in that report.

Finding as to whether the Member failed to follow the Code

The Sub-Committee agreed that there had been no breach of paragraph 6 of
the Code, but that paragraphs 9 and 12 had been breached, for the reasons set
out in the Investigating Officer’s report.

I:\\CorporateLaw\ParishCouncils\Langley\FinalDecisionNoticeCllr Hans Reichert.doc4
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Sanctions imposed and reasons for any sanctions

The Sub-Committee determined that the sanction imposed for the breaches of
paragraphs 9 and 12 of the Code of Conduct be that the Subject Member be

censured.

The Sub-Committee believed that at the time of the breaches there was a lack
of understanding of the Code of Conduct generally within the Parish Council,
and usually in such circumstances it would impose a training sanction, but it |
recognised that Clir Reichert had taken the initiative to attend training as had
other members of the Parish Council. The Sub-Committee had listened to the
advice of the investigating officer and had taken into account the guidance on
sanctions issued by Standards for England. It considered that there was no
intention to breach the Code, that the subject member had been naive but not

dishonest.

Right of Appeal

The Subject Member can give Notice of Appeal to the First-tier Tribunal (Local
Government Standards England) (the Tribunal) that the Subject Member seeks
permission to appeal and if appropriate apply for suspension of the sanction
imposed until such time as any appeal is determined.

The Notice of Appeal must be received by the Tribunal within 28 days of the
Subject Member’s receipt of this Decision Notice.

The Notice of Appeal must specify:-

1. The finding against which the Subject Member seeks permission to
appeal; |

2. Whether the appeal is against the finding that the Subject Member has
failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, or if it is against the sanction
imposed, or both;

3. The grounds of the appeal; (

4. Whether any application for suspension of any sanction is made; and

5. Whether or not the Subject Member consents to the appeal being
conducted by way of written representations.






Agenda Item 5

MAIDSTONE BOROUGH COUNCIL
Standards (Hearing) Sub-Committee

26 April 2012

Report of the Monitoring Officer - Hearing into allegations that former Parish
Councillor Chris Dyke breached Bearsted Parish Council’s Code of Conduct

Introduction and Background

On the 19 September 2011 the Standards (Assessment) Sub-Committee
considered 2 complaints concerning the alleged conduct of Mr Chris Dyke,
formerly of Bearsted Parish Council. The decision of the Standards Sub-
Committee was to refer the complaints for investigation.

On the 29 February 2012 the Standards (Consideration) Sub-Committee
considered the Investigating Officer’s report and decided that it should be referred
to a hearing. It therefore now falls to the Standards Sub-Committee to hear the
matter and decide whether or not there has been a breach, or breaches, of the
Code of Conduct, and if so, what sanction to impose, if any.

Although the Investigating Officer found that there had been no breach of the
Code by Mr Dyke, the Sub-Committee referred the matter to a hearing in relation
to the allegations that Mr Dyke had brought his office or authority into disrepute;
that he had failed to treat others with respect; and that he had compromised the
impartiality of those who work for the authority. The Sub-Committee agreed with
all of his other findings of no breach.

Following the issue of the Decision Notices, Mr Dyke resigned from the Parish
Council on 19 March.

Details of the allegations and the relevant sections of the Code of Conduct are set
out in the Pre-Hearing Process Summary attached as Appendix A. The
Investigating Officer’s Reports are attached at Appendix B. The Hearing
Procedures for the Standards Sub-Committee are attached as Appendix C. Mr
Dyke has not responded to requests to complete the hearing documentation
setting out which parts of the Investigating Officer’s report he agrees and
disagrees with. He has not advised whether he intends to attend the hearing.
However, he has advised Maidstone Borough Council’s Chief Executive that he has
opted not to be involved in the hearing process, and has requested that the
hearing be cancelled whilst investigations are carried out into alleged leaks of the
Investigating Officer’s report(s) which he claims will prejudice the hearing
process. I have discussed this with the Chairman, and we see no need to
postpone the hearing.
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Recommendations

That: -

1. The Standards Sub-Committee conduct the hearing in accordance with the
Hearing Procedures for the Standards Sub-Committee and the legislation

2. The Standards Sub-Committee consider the evidence and determine

whether there has been any breach, or breaches, of the Code of Conduct by
Mr Dyke.

3. If the Standards Sub-Committee find that there has been a breach, or
breaches, of the Code of Conduct, it should determine whether to impose
the sanction of censure, this being the only remaining available sanction as
a result of Mr Dyke no longer holding the position of Parish Councillor.
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APPENDIX A

Maidstone Borough Council Standards Committee

Pre-Hearing Process Summary

Name of Authority: Bearsted Parish Council
Subject Member: Mr Chris Dyke (former Councillor)
Complainants: Mr G Licence and Mrs W Licence

Case Reference Numbers: MBC/11/4 and MB/11/5

Chairman: Mr Don Wright
Monitoring Officer: Mr Paul Fisher
Investigating Officer: Mr Keith Trowell

Committee Administrator: Mrs Debbie Snook

Time, Date, Place of Hearing: 10:00am on Thursday 26 April 2012 at the Town
Hall, Maidstone
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APPENDIX A

Summary of Allegations (with reference to relevant section of the Code of

Conduct)

That, whilst in the position of Parish Council Chairman, former Councillor Dyke
asked Mrs Licence, in her capacity as relief Parish Clerk, to deal with the
appointment process of the Parish Handyman as one of the candidates was
married to the Parish Clerk. He then bypassed Mrs Licence and continued to
deal with the Parish Clerk thus compromising her impartiality. He failed to meet
Mrs Licence to consider her allegations about the process, but then summoned
her to a meeting with him, refusing to tell her what it was about. He also made
comments at the Parish Council’s Finance and General Policy Committee on 19
July 2011 in public contrary to Standing Orders which implied wrongdoing by Mrs
Licence.

Relevant Sections of the Code of Conduct

Paragraph 3

3(1) -You must treat others with respect.

3(2)(d) - You must not do anything that compromises or is likely to
compromise the impartiality of those who work for your authority.

Paragraph 5

You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be
regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute.

Findings of Fact in the Investigation Report that are agreed

Mr Dyke has not responded.

Findings of Fact in the Investigation Report that are not agreed

Mr Dyke has not responded.

Attendance at the Hearing

The Investigator (Mr Keith Trowell) has indicated that he will be attending the
hearing but former Councillor Dyke has indicated to the Chief Executive that he
will not be involved in the hearing process.

Witnhesses Attending

Clir R Ash

Cllr Mrs P Marshall
Mr G Licence

Mrs W Licence
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Hearing Procedure

See separate document attached.

Date Pre-hearing Summary completed: 13 April 2012

Signed: Paul Fisher
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APPENDIX B

Complaint — MBC/11/5

REPORT OF AN INVESTIGATION INTO ALLEGATIONS
CONCERNING PARISH COUNCILLORS CHRISTOPHER DYKE, JON
HUGHES, RICHARD ASH, PAUL BLACKMORE AND PAUL YOUNG
OF BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL
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Keith Trowell, Investigating Officer

February 2012

My Ref : TM001486

APPENDIX B
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APPENDIX B
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19. Findings 22
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APPENDIX B

E-mail response to complaint from Clir Paul
Blackmore

Responses to draft Report

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

Introduction

This report is submitted in consequence of Maidstone Borough Council’'s
Standard Sub-Committee’s decision on 19" September 2011 to refer
Complaint MBC/11/5 for investigation. On the same date the Committee also
referred for investigation a related Complaint MBC/11/4 which is the subject of
a second report.

Due to the related nature of the complaints and referrals my investigations
have been carried out in tandem and this, in part, has contributed to the
delays in submitting the draft Reports.

Throughout this Report | shall abbreviate and refer to the Parish Councillors
as “Clir Dyke”, “Cllr Hughes”, “Clir Ash”, ClIr Blackmore, “Cllr Young” and “Clir
Licence” respectively, to Bearsted Parish Council’'s Finance and General
Purposes Committee as “F&GP Committee”, to Bearsted Parish Council as
“BPC” and to the Code of Conduct as “the Code”.

Executive Summary

The Allegations

Mrs Licence, a ‘relief’ Clerk to BPC, has made a formal complaint against
ClIr's Dyke, Hughes, Ash, Blackmore and Young alleging that they breached
the Code in the process of interviewing and appointing a Parish handyman.
In addition Mrs Licence alleges that Clir. Dyke also breached the Code by his
conduct during a meeting of the BPC’s F&GP Committee on 19" July 2011.

Insofar as Clir Dyke is concerned Mrs Licence states that he asked her to deal
with the job applications for the post of Parish handyman as one of the
potential applicants was related to the Parish Clerk although having done so
he then continued to deal with the Parish Clerk in relation to the matter. Clir
Dyke failed to meet with her to discuss her concerns about the process but
then summoned her to a meeting without saying what that meeting was about
and which was subsequently cancelled. Additionallt)]l Clir Dyke made
statements to the Committee at the meeting on 19" July 2011 that “ ...
someone had hacked into the office computer and looked at and downloaded
confidential documents about two weeks ago.” and that “... this person is
known and had had a guiding hand.”. ClIr Dyke also told the meeting that
what had happened was a breach of the Data Protection Act and a criminal
offence. Mrs Licence believes that it was obvious to all present that Clir Dyke
was referring to her and her husband. Aﬁl_@tionally CliIr Licence says that




2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

APPENDIX B

there was no agenda item covering this matter and that the allegations were
made during the public part of the meeting. Mrs Licence complains that Clir
Dyke’s actions and conduct breach paragraphs 3(i), 3(2)(d), 5 and 6(a) of the
Code.

As regards Clir Hughes Mrs Licence says he accepted and forwarded the
Parish Clerk’s suggestions for the handyman interview questions knowing that
she should not be involved due to her relationship with a potential applicant
thereby breaching paragraphs 3(2)(d), 5 and 6(a) of the Code.

Concerning ClIr Young Mrs Licence states he was involved in preparing the
suggested questions and answers for use by the handyman interview panel
with assistance from the Parish Clerk knowing that she should not be involved
due to her relationship with a potential applicant. Mrs Licence complains that
this breaches paragraph 5 of the Code.

As to Clir's Ash and Blackmore Mrs Licence says they sat on the interview
panel for the handyman appointment and that having been told that the
process was flawed due to the involvement of the Parish Clerk who was
related to an applicant, they failed to take any corrective action. Mrs Licence
complains that this breaches paragraph 5 of the Code

Investigation Outcome

| have investigated this complaint at the behest of Maidstone Borough
Council's Monitoring Officer. The interviews that | have conducted and the
evidence that | have considered do not in my opinion support the contended
breaches of the Code.

| have investigated whether Clir Dyke has -

(@) by his comments or actions, failed to treat others with respect contrary
to paragraph 3(1) of the Code;

(b) compromised the impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of,
BPC contrary to paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code:

(c)  conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing his office or authority into disrepute contrary to paragraph 5 of
the Code;

(d)  used his position as a member improperly to confer on or secure for
any other person an advantage or disadvantage contrary to paragraph
6(a) of the Code

and after thorough investigation | consider that Clir Dyke has not failed to
comply with any of those paragraphs of the Code detailed above.
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| have investigated whether Clir Hughes has —

(a) compromised the impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of,
BPC contrary to paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code;

(b)  conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing his office or authority into disrepute contrary to paragraph 5 of
the Code;

(c) used his position as a member improperly to confer on or secure for
any other person an advantage or disadvantage contrary to paragraph
6(a) of the Code

and after thorough investigation | consider that Clir Hughes has not failed to
comply with any of those paragraphs of the Code detailed above.

I have investigated whether Clirs Ash, Blackmore and Young have conducted
themselves individually or collectively in a manner which could reasonably be
regarded as bringing their office or authority into disrepute contrary to
paragraph 5 of the Code and after thorough investigation | consider that those
Councillors have not failed to comply with paragraph 5.

The Parish Councillor’s Official Details

Clir Dyke was elected to the Parish Council prior to 2004 and has been
Chairman since May 2011. He is also Chairman of the Parish Council’s
F&GP Committee. In respect of the period covering the matter under
investigation Clir Dyke has given a written undertaking dated 10" May 2011 to
observe the Code.

Clir Young was elected to the Parish Council in 2007 and has been Vice
Chairman since May 2011. In respect of the period covering the matter under
investigation he has given a written undertaking dated 10™ May 2011 to
observe the Code.

Clir Hughes was elected to the Parish Council in 2008In respect of the period
covering the matter under investigation he has given a written undertaking
dated 10" May 2011 to observe the Code.

ClIr Ash was first elected to the Parish Council in 1991 and was Chairman
from 2004 to 2008. He is also a Borough Councillor. In respect of the period
covering the matter under investigation Clir Ash has given a written
undertaking dated 10™ May 2011 to observe the Code.

Clir Blackmore was elected to the Parish Council in May 2011. In respect of
the period covering the matter under investigation he has given a written
undertaking dated 10" May 2011 to observe the Code.
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Legislation, the Code of Conduct and Guidance

This investigation was carried out under and in accordance with Part 3 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Standards Committee (England)
Regulations 2008.

Disclosure of information in this report and of the documents comprising the
annexes hereto may be an offence under Section 63 of the Local Government
Act 2000.

Bearsted Parish Council adopted the Code(2007) on 12" July 2007.

The paragraphs of the Code that were relevant to this investigation are
paragraphs 3(1), 3(2)(d), 5 and 6(a) as set out below :-

Paragraph 3(1) You must treat others with respect
Paragraph 3(2) You must not —

(d) do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the impartiality
of those who work for, or on behalf of, your authority

Paragraph 5 You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could
reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or authority info disrepute

Paragraph 6 You —

(a) Must not use or attempt to use your position as a member improperly to
confer on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or
disadvantage

The Guide for Members May 2007 published by the Standards Board for
England aims to provide a general understanding of the Code and its
requirements. Chapter 2 of the Guide deals with general obligations under
the Code and relevant extracts are annexed to this report (Annexe A).

Interviews, Evidence & Considerations
| have interviewed in person :-

Mrs Wendy Licence, the Complainant
Clir Geoff Licence

Clir Christopher Dyke, Chairman of the Parish Council and Chairman the
Council's F&GP Committee

Clir Jon Hughes, Vice Chairman of the Parish Council
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Clir Mrs Pat Marshall
Clir Richard Ash

All those who | have interviewed have willingly and fully co-operated with my
enquiries for which | record my thanks.

| have been in contact with Clir Paul Blackmore and received his written
response to the complaint against him (Annexe K). However, due to his
personal circumstances it was not possible to arrange a personal interview at
that time. Subsequently, in the light of his written response and the
information gathered from other interviews, it was not necessary to pursue a
personal interview.

| have endeavoured to contact Mr. Patrick Walton, former parish councillor
and BPC chairman but without success.

Following each of the interviews | sent a summary of my interview notes to the
respective interviewees seeking and receiving confirmation that the notes
were an accurate representation of the answers given.

In preparing my report | have considered the documentary evidence and
written material provided by the parties and referred to my notes of the
interviews. Much of the information obtained is factually uncontroversial but
the personal perceptions and opinions expressed are more so.

In reaching my conclusions | have had regard to the 2007 Guide for Members
referred to above.

Background

Relationships within the Parish have become strained and it appears apparent
that there has been a tendency to allow personal feelings to cloud the
Council’s civic function. The Chairman has publically stated that he had not
anticipated that he would be faced with the ‘highly personalised’ issues that
had arisen. ‘

Documents Submitted by Mrs Wendy Licence

The documents submitted by Mrs Licence are annexed to this report (Annexe
B).

These documents were submitted with Mrs Licence’s formal complaint form
and comprise —

(@)  Letter from Mrs Licence to Paul Fisher dated 21%* August 2011;

(b)  Chronology of events; and
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(¢)  Appendices numbered 1 - 17.

Documents Submitted by Parish Councillor Christopher Dyke

Subsequent to the Standards Sub-Committee’s decision on 19" September
2010 Clir Dyke submitted a response which is annexed to this report (Annexe
C).

At the formal interview on 2™ December 2011 Clir Dyke produced —

(a) Interview scoring sheets (Annexe D);

(b)  Computer print outs (Annexe E); and

(c) Letter from Clir Dyke to Mrs Licence dated 31% July 2011 (Annexe F).

Following the investigation interview on 2" December 2011 Clir Dyke
commented on the interview notes and referred to an e-mail which is annexed
to this report (Please see 12.2 and 12.3 below and Annexe G.

Other Documents Submitted

Also following the Sub-Committee’s decision Clir's Hughes, Ash, Young and
Blackmore provided e-mail responses to the complaint —

Clir Hughes on 26" September 2011 (Annexe H)

ClIr Ash on 30" September 2011 (Annexe |)

ClIr Young on 3" October 2011 (Annexe J)

Clir Blackmore on 4" October 2011 (Annexe K

Interview of Mrs Wendy Licence on 14" November 2011

At the outset Mrs Licence stated that she did not wish to add anything further
to her submitted statement although In response to my enquiries and
questions she did make the following points —

(@)  As regards the alleged breach of the Data Protection Act, she had
taken her own legal advice which confirmed that she had not
committed any criminal offence as had been suggested. As a result
she had considered taking a grievance against the Chairman but
decided to follow the Code.

(b)  The Chairman had blocked any investigation of the possible
irregularities surrounding the selection and appointment of the
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‘Handyman’. In addition, the group of people involved blocked all
discussion of the issue.

Not all members of the interview panel were also members of the
F&GP Committee. Only the Chairman of the Parish Council was a
member of both the panel and the Committee. As far as she was
aware there is no separate personnel committee.

Only one Member had acknowledged receipt of her letter of 2" August
2011 sent to all Parish Councillors although two others expressed
concerns as a result.

The meeting between her, Clir Marshall and the Chairman did not take
place. The Chairman had never specified the purpose of the meeting.
She had asked ClIr. Marshall to attend that meeting with her as she is a
long time Member and very knowledgeable as to procedure.

Although at the meeting on 19" July, the Chairman did not mention her
by name there was a strong implication towards her as he referred to a
time when the Parish Clerk was away.

The e-mail (Clerk to Chris Dyke) dated 8" June has been edited so as
to remove words from the e-mail of 7" June (J & F Hughes to Clerk).

Interview of Parish Councillor Geoff Licence 14" November 2011

ClIr Licence was interviewed primarily in connection with his separate
complaint against the Chairman of BPC that concerned the statements made
at the F&GP meeting on 19" July 2011. He expanded slightly upon the
content of his complaint, gave some detail of his personal circumstances and
clarified certain elements. In general, however, there was little to add the
statement that accompanied his complaint form.

CliIr Licence did however specifically reiterate that the Chairman’s comments
at the meeting on 19™ July 2011 would have been understood by most, if not
all, of those present to relate to his wife and himself.

In addition Clir Licence considered the Chairman’s statement at that meeting
that a criminal offence had been committed was incorrect and misleading.
CliIr Licence also referred to paragraph 7.3 of the Minutes of the Parish
Council on 13™ September 2011 which he regarded as inaccurate.

Interview of Parish Councillor Paul Young on 25" November 2011

ClIr Young confirmed the content of his response to the complaint that he had
e-mailed to me on 3" October 2011 and in response to my questions and
enquiries answered and commented as follows -

24

10




13.

13.1

APPENDIX B

(a) He has some experience of competency based interview questions and
interviewing and scoring processes so he offered assistance as
regards the questions to be asked at interview. This was his only
involvement in the process

(b) He was aware of the draft questions and answers provided by the
Parish Clerk but he tweaked them and added an additional two or three
questions. The final questions were relevant to anyone who had
applied for the job and one would expect the successful candidate to
be able to answer them.

(c) He e-mailed the final questions to Clir Dyke about an hour before the
interviews were scheduled to begin. He did not send the final
questions to anyone other than Clir Dyke.

(d)  He anticipated that there may be problems associated with the
appointment of the handyman given Mr Elstone’s position but remains
of the opinion that he was fairly appointed.

Interview of Parish Councillor Jon Hughes on 25" November 2011

Clir Hughes confirmed the content of his response to the complaint that he
had e-mailed to me on 26™ September 2011 and in response to my questions
and enquiries answered and commented as follows -

(@) He deliberately avoided being on the interview panel. Because he had
been working with Mr Elstone on some small jobs he felt that being part
of the selection process could lead to criticism.

(b) Mr Elstone had been employed as ‘litter picker’ on minimum wage.
There had been a complaint about this appointment about two years
ago. Clir Dyke had spoken to Paul Fisher and discussed how the
appointment had been made. The job had been advertised and there
was one other application that was not taken up as it was not, in his
view, a confident or competent application.

(c) The Parish Council has a General Purposes & Finance Committee that
deals with employment matters but the Council was in a bit of a hole as
a new litter picker was needed quickly. Mr Elstone got the job and was
also asked to deal with some minor health and safety issues. From
there the Council started to build criteria for a handyman job which then
led to an advertisement in the Kent Messenger.

(d) Because he had been working with Mr Elstone doing little jobs he
informally discussed the advertisement with Councillors but said that
he did not think he should be on the interview panel.

(e) He did discuss some interview questions with the Parish Clerk and she
did provide him with some draft questions and answers. None of the
questions were difficult andMgre was nothing tricky in them. They
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were basic questions that could be asked of anyone. He did not send
on the draft questions to anyone.

He did not see the final agreed list of questions to be asked at
interview.

Mrs Licence was not appointed as Deputy Clerk only a relief while the
Clerk was away. Mrs Licence did not have a contract. She was self
employed and invoiced for the hours she worked.

Interview of Parish Councillor Mrs Pat Marshall on 29" November 2011

In response to my enquiries and questions ClIr Marshall provided answers
and comments as follows -

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

()

She was not aware of the details of the matter until Mrs Licence
telephoned her, as a senior councillor and impartial person, to ask that
she accompany her to a meeting with the Parish Council Chairman,
Chris Dyke. It was clear to her that Mrs Licence had genuine concerns
but she did not ask for her opinion. She believed that Clir Dyke had
asked ClIr Ash to accompany him but the meeting did not take place.

Mrs Licence was appointed to see fair play in the handyman
appointment process.

She was mortified at the General Purposes & Finance Committee
meeting on 19" July 2011 when, out of the blue, Clir Dyke said there
was something he wanted to discuss. He started by saying something
along the lines of that when he took on the job he did not think it would
be so vitriolic and went on to mention abusive telephone calls to the
Parish Clerk. He also spoke about the anonymous letter to Paul
Carter, the Leader of Kent County Council. That led to Paul writing to
him about the ‘litter picker’ appointment. Clir Dyke had showed her the
letter from Paul Carter just before the start of the meeting and asked
for her advice to which she said he should not to discuss it and should
speak to Paul Fisher. The item was removed from the agenda and she
believed that Clir Dyke did consult with Paul Fisher afterwards.

The meeting did not move into closed session. She feels that it should
have done although no members of the public were actually in
attendance. The Chairman said that he had concerns referring to the
abusive telephone calls, the anonymous letter and the complaint by Mr
Street against Clir Ash.

The Chairman went on to say that the Parish Council’s computer had
been hacked into, personal files downloaded and the Whistleblowing
Act downloaded. There were two new councillors present and she
wondered what they thought about this. One of the new councillors
asked who had access and the Clerk said that she had been away for
3 days and that there was a relief% The Chairman then said that it
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was obvious who had done it and referred to a guiding hand behind it.
At this point she thought that it was obvious to all that he was referring
to Mrs. Licence and that they could have thought that ClIr Licence was
the guiding hand. The proposal as she recalled it was for the IT
Department of Maidstone BC to look into the accessing/hacking of the
computer and, if it were so, it was a criminal offence under the Data
Protection Act and the police should be informed.

Knowing something of the background she felt very sorry for Clir
Licence who was present and must have felt humiliated and
embarrassed by what had been said and proposed. When the
proposal, as amended, was voted on ClIr Licence abstained.

She was hesitant as she felt that involving the police before
Maidstone’s IT had looked into the matter was premature. Also she felt
confused as she was uncertain whether this related to Mrs Licence.
Everyone was stunned by the proceedings.

Minutes were subsequently produced and she e-mailed the Clerk, with
copies to all Councillors including the Chairman, saying that she had
concerns that the item concerned was discussed in an open meeting
and that whilst there were no members of the public present she felt
that due to the sensitive nature of the matter, the discussion of the item
should have been ‘in camera’ and the relevant Minute confidential.

She did not receive a response and the Minutes were published
unaltered.

Mrs Licence had raised the matter with Clir Dyke in confidence but he
kept fobbing her off. He would not say what he wanted to discuss
when he requested a meeting.

ClIr Dyke had asked for evidence in the form of copies of e-mails. Mrs
Licence printed them off and provided them to him.

Mrs Licence was appointed as relief cover for the Clerk when she was
absent on holiday, training or sickness. She had been appointed that
year. When asked if she had a contract, Mrs Licence said not.

The offending item was not on the agenda but it was still voted on
which is an irregularity.

She has been on the Parish Council for 40 years and things have
never been like this. It is not a happy Parish at present.

Interview of Parish Councillor Ash on 29" November 2011

ClIr Ash confirmed the content of his response to the complaint that he had e-
mailed to me on 30" September 2011 and in response to my questions and
enquiries answered and commented as follows -
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There was no particular reason for his involvement in the handyman
selection process other than volunteers were needed.

The interview panel individually shortlisted 5 candidates from the 20 or
so applications. The shortlists varied and a joint agreement was
reached as to which 5 were to be interviewed.

It was agreed from the start that Helen Elstone would take no part in
the process so he does not know why she was involved in formulating
some of the questions.

You had not seen the final questions prior to the interviews. The
questions and scoring sheets were being photocopied as you arrived.
When the copies were distributed the questions were divided between
the members of the Panel.

Dave Elstone achieved the highest score. Mrs Licence was asked to
write to the candidates advising them of the decision.

Mrs Licence raised her concerns but he is not sure whether this
was before or after the Panel's decision was announced.

As far as he was concerned he did not regard anything of the process
as being untoward or irregular.

He was not aware of questions being copied to any candidate.

Interview of Parish Councillor Christopher Dyke on 2"¢ December 2011

In response to my enquiries and questions Clir Dyke provided answers and
comments and he expanded some of the points made. During the interview
Clir Dyke stated that -

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Mrs Licence was self-employed. There was no contract of
employment. Her appointment was just to cover the Clerk’s absence on
an ad hoc basis. Others had been appointed previously on similar
terms. :

Dave Elstone was employed as ‘litter picker’ on the minimum wage. There
had been an anonymous complaint to Paul Carter regarding the appointment
and advice was received from Paul Fisher to the effect that as the contract
was at a fixed price, nothing improper occurred.

As time went on it became apparent that there was a wider range of tasks to
be undertaken and that a different arrangement was required.

Paul Fisher advised and suggested that Helen Elstone should stand aside
from the process of appointing a more general handyman. Mrs Elstone was
50 advised and told that Mrs Licencezseuld handle the appointment process.
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Mrs Elstone had no invoivement in the process apart from her input to the
sample questions.

Mrs Licence was asked to help draw up the advertisement, receive the
applications and administer the process.

At around this time he had a conversation that included Paul Young and Mrs
Elstone when interviews and model questions were discussed. It was
suggested that draft questions be sent to Clir Young for him to draw them
together. You acknowledged that it was a mistake to have this conversation
when Mrs Elstone was present.

The intention was to compile a shortlist and send the interview questions to
the shortlisted candidates. However, Cilr Young did not supply draft
guestions until about an hour before the interviews. The Panel added three
questions to the list and copied the questions at the Parish Office. The
interview panel then decided who was going to ask each question and the
scoring system.

Each member of the interviewing panel looked through the applications
independently and made their own shortlists of 5 candidates, All the
applications were received via Mrs Licence except that from Mr Elstone which
was given direct to you by Mrs Elstone on the ground that it may otherwise
not have been received in time. Mr Elstone’s application was not opened
before any of the other applications.

The Panel's choices and parameters were different. He was keen that the
appointee lived, in or next to, the village, had horticultural knowledge and
sufficient availability. Only one candidate was from Bearsted, a fireman. The
applicant from Horsmonden pulled out and, in the event, only 3 arrived for
interview.

After each interview each member of the Panel independently scored each
candidate before seeing the next candidate. The completed score sheets
were very similar. Mr Elstone came out as the clear winner, he scored 140
and the others 90 or 60 respectively.

The whole process had been delayed by the anonymous complaint to Paul
Carter. The Parish has another contractor for the bigger work.

Following the interviews Mrs Licence raised concerns. She said that Mr
Elstone had seen the model questions. He queried this saying Mr Elstone
could not have seen the questions as he had only just seen them. Mrs
Licence said that Mrs Elstone had been involved in the question setting and
had sent the questions to Mr Elstone.

He thought that could not be right and that the Panel had made the joint
decision to go ahead with the appointment.
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He had thought about the matter overnight and wondered whether he had
missed something. Mrs Licence had raised the matter nervously and he
thought that he may have appeared dismissive.

The following day he rang Mrs Licence and asked what had led her to believe
something improper had occurred. Mrs Licence referred to e-mails she had
seen. He requested copies of those e-mails and asked her not to send out
the appointment letter until later. He was shown the printed e-mail and saw
that these were not the questions asked. Mrs Elstone would have had an
idea of the questions but they were questions that would have been expected
and he did not consider that the outcome was prejudiced particularly as the
scoring of the candidates was so clear.

Two other issues were raised. One relating to Mr Elstone’s waste disposal
licence and the other concerning insurance. The first was raised and rectified
within 4 or 5 weeks. The second related to Mr Elstone’s son helping with
some work without insurance. Mr Elstone was told that his son needed to be
on the insurance. He put this omission down to inexperience and the issue
was rectified.

By the Friday following the interviews, he was not sure if the letters had been
sent out. He had hoped not but when he realised they had, he decided to
stick with the Panel's decision.

The background leading up to the Finance and General Purposes Committee
meeting on 19" July includes the fact that the computer shows as list of the
most recent “Word” documents opened. The first two items on the list related
to the Elstone’s licensed company and were unsurprising. The other
documents were of more concern, for example Mrs Elstone’s contract of
employment and details of the code of conduct complaint against Clir Ash.
Mrs Elstone was very distressed at this and telephoned ClIr Young. He (Clir
Dyke) felt that someone was looking for something against the Clerk and
against Cllr Ash who may be a rival to Clir Licence in the Borough elections
next year, so he and ClIr Young, who is something of an IT specialist,
examined the computer history. They found a large humber of hits relating to
chocolate and a significant number relating to employment protection. Mrs
Licence had claimed that she had come across an e-mail by chance but that
e-mail was some 210 e-mails back so ClIr Young thought it virtually
impossible to find it by chance. He (Clir Dyke) had, however, when Mrs
Licence took up her role, told her that she could look through things and
familiarise herself with matters and also that she should feel free to look at
records.

He did investigate Mrs Licence’s first complaint which was against the Clerk.
As a result he wrote to her saying that the Clerk-was free of any blame and, if
there had been an error, it was his in asking the Clerk to supply some model
questions.
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) He nevertheless felt that there had been some ‘guiding hand’ and believed
that someone may have been taking advantage of Mrs Licence being in the
Parish Office. He referred to tension between the Hall Manager (Leslie
Etheridge) and Mrs Elstone and to CllIr Licence’s relationship with the Hall
Manager. He, however, thought of Clir Licence as quiet and easygoing and
not as being behind anything.

(u) He had asked Clir Young if he could establish what documents had been
copied but he had been unable to do so. He also approached Paul Fisher to
see if Maidstone’s IT specialists could assist but were told, after a long delay,
they could not partly because the times were confused with the wrong dates
on the new computer.

) He was concerned that there was a very serious issue and that someone was
trying to find information on Clir Ash and Mrs Elstone but delayed discussing
the matter in case more information came to light. He also felt constrained by
their whistleblowing policy which made it difficult to suggest any complaint
against Mrs. Licence.

(w) By 19" July he decided that he had to say in broad terms what his concerns
were. He was aware that it was not easy to prove anything and in raising the
issue at the Committee meeting deliberately did not name anyone, did not
refer to specific dates and did not identify what documents had been
accessed. He did consider going to the police but decided to await
developments.

(x) When he made reference to a ‘guiding hand’ he did not have Clir Licence in
mind. He does not believe that all those present at the meeting on 19" July
would have assumed the references were to Clir and Mrs Licence. It was, in
his view, more likely that CliIr Licence’s body language indicated that his wife
may have been involved.

Subsequent to my interview of Clir Dyke he has made the following comment :

“For me the key issue is not the appointment of the handyman but the actions of Mrs
License in opening such a range of documents in such an accurate order. | have
attached the original email sent to me by clir Ethridge last year which triggered off a
whole range of events. It is my belief that there has been collusion between Mr
Ethridge and CliIr License and his wife to try and back up Clir Ethridges claims or find
new evidence against the clerk. When this failed to reveal anything of importance
they have switched their complaint to one third of the council and myself in particular.
We now have a council in disarray and a clerk on long term sick leave as a resulit.
For myself | feel | have done my best in amazingly difficult circumstances. | am now
accepting the wishes of my wife to stand down as chair from the end of Jan 2012 and
resign from the council as soon as the CoC is completed”

The e-mail referred to in the preceding paragraph is attached at Appendix G.

Comments of Parish Councillor Paul Blackmore
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Clir Blackmore has submitted a written (See Annexe K the main points of
which are —

(@) He had no involvement in the drafting of the interview questions-

(b)  The seven interview questions were divided up between the Panel
each asking two or three questions.

(c) His role was to ask questions, record answers and score against the
answers.

(d) The Panel had independently scored the candidates.

(e) They checked the scores, had a discussion and agreed to appoint Mr
Elstone.

)] Mrs Licence and Clir Dyke had a discussion. Clir Dyke said he was
aware that the questions had gone through the Parish office and he
was satisfied there had been no wrongdoing. Clir Dyke asked him and
Clir Ash if we were happy to offer Mr Elstone the position and we said
we were.

(g)  Mrs Licence did not at that time allege the Clerk had written the
questions or forwarded them to anyone.

Analysis of the Evidence and Reasoning

18.1

18.2

Mrs Licence alleges that —

(a) Clirs Dyke and Hughes have breached Sections 2(c), 4 and 5(a) of the
Code by virtue of their involvement in the appointment of the handyman
having compromised the impartiality of the Parish Clerk in the appointment of
her husband.

(b)  Their actions can reasonably be regarded as bringing their office or
authority into disrepute as the recruitment process had been flawed by their
actions

()  They used their position as Members improperly to confer or secure
advantage to Dave Elstone in getting the job.

There is some misunderstanding in the complaint as to the relevant
paragraphs as, for example, paragraph 2(c) is not in the Code and the
wording is not that which appears in paragraph 3(2)(c). For this reason | have
adopted the view of the breaches set out in the respective decision notices
and recited these in above at section 4.
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Mrs Licence further alleges that Clir's Ash, Blackmore and Young may have
breached Section 4, although the alleged breach is in fact of paragraph 5, of
the Code as all three were aware of the procedural irregularities in the
appointment of the handyman but took no action.

Finally, Mrs Licence complains that Clir Dyke breached paragraph 2(b) and
(c) and 4 of the Code, although the alleged breaches are apparently of 3(1)
and 3(2)(d), by the making of slanderous statements at the Parish Council’s
F&GP Committee meeting on 19" July 2011.

There is no dispute over the fact that the Parish Clerk had involvement in the
initial stage of the handyman appointment process in that she was asked for
and gave some suggestions as to the interview questions. Clir Dyke
acknowledges that it was a mistake to discuss model questions whilst the
Clerk was present given that her husband was a potential applicant and that it
had been decided that she was not to take any part in the process. Her
involvement was, however, confined to suggesting questions similar to those
that others were likely to suggest. There is evidence that the Clerk forwarded
a copy of her suggested questions to her and her husband’s business e-mail
address.

ClIr Hughes deliberately avoided being on the interview panel as he had been
working with Mr Elstone and felt that being part of the selection process could
lead to criticism. He did discuss the handyman advertisement informally with
Councillors. He discussed some basic interview questions with the Clerk but
was not aware that any he had formulated had been used. As Clir Hughes
was Chairman of the Environment Committee and had been involved with
building the criteria for the handyman role, it is unsurprising that he would
have had some conversation with the Clerk as to questions for potential
applicants. | do not consider that Clir Hughes used his position improperly,
compromised anyone’s impartiality or brought his office or BPC into disrepute
and, therefore, he committed no breach of the Code.

ClIr Young offered to assist in the preparation of questions for the interview
panel as he had some experience of competency based questions,
interviewing and candidate scoring. This assistance was his only involvement
in the process. He was aware of the draft questions and answers provided by
the Clerk but he altered them and added additional questions. The actual
questions used at the interviews were impartial and could be answered by
anyone who had the required skill set. In addition, ClIr Young prepared an
impartial simple competency based scoring system for use by the
interviewers. ClIr Young's input cannot be regarded as conduct regarded as
bringing his office or BPC into disrepute so he did not breach the Code.
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It is agreed that immediately following the handyman interviews Mrs Licence
expressed her concerns over the Clerk’s involvement in the question setting
process to the interview Panel. The Panel members considered Mrs
Licence’s concerns but on the basis that —

(a) whilst the Clerk may have seen some of the suggested questions no one
other than ClIr Young and the Panel had seen the final questions;

(b) the questions were of the type that would be expected by an applicant and
there was nothing difficult about them

(c) Mr Elstone had achieved the highest score by far;

(d) on the basis of the interviews and the scoring they believed then and
subsequently that Mr Elstone was the right choice; and

(e) they did not believe that there was anything untoward with the procedure
or that their judgment was tainted

they jointly decided to go ahead with the appointment.

| am satisfied on the evidence that there was no deliberate wrongdoing on the
part of the Panel although the circumstances were such as to give rise to a
perception that the process was flawed. | have also considered whether the
irregularities in the appointment process may reasonably be regarded as
having brought BPC and/or Chairman into disrepute. | am satisfied that Clir
Dyke’s behaviour was neither dishonest nor deceitful and that his conduct
cannot reasonably be regarded as bringing his office or authority into
disrepute contrary to the Code.

There is general consensus as to what occurred and was said at the F&GP
meeting although there is some differing recollection of actual words spoken.
In essence it is agreed that Cllr Dyke certain statements that others
considered to be not only inappropriate but also such as to place him in
breach of the Code of Conduct.

The nub of the complaint is that Clir Dyke made public statements that, at the
very least, suggested that Mrs Licence had behaved improperly thereby failing
to accord her due respect and brought BPC into disrepute. | have distilled the
complaint to two issues. Firstly, were Clir Dykes statements justified or
improperly spoken wrong and, secondly, did those statements amount to a
breach of the Code.

Clir Dyke is firmly of the view that some improper use was made of BPC’s
computer and it was reasonable for him to make his concerns known to all
Members of BPC. Clir Dyke has stated that in the light of the cumulative
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computer record of documents that had been accessed he believed that
advantage had been taken at the Parish Clerk’s temporary absence.

Having decided to alert BPC’s Members of his concerns Cllr Dyke was
anxious to express them in broad terms. He states that he was aware that it
was not easy to prove anything and was extremely careful not to name
anyone, not to indicate what documents had been accessed and not to refer
to any specific dates.

Notwithstanding ClIr Dyke’s intention, some, including Clir and Mrs Licence
are convinced that Clir Dyke's statements could relate only to them. They
also take the view that others would easily link them to the statements.

Specifically, Mrs and Clir Licence maintain that —

(@)  Clir Dyke told the Committee that ‘someone had hacked into the office
computer and looked at and downloaded confidential documents about
two weeks ago’ and that ‘this person is known and had a guiding hand’.

(b)  As Clir Dyke had said this had happened while the Parish Clerk was on
holiday, it was obvious to all Councillors that he was referring to Mrs.
Licence and that the person guiding her was him.

In response Clir Dyke says that —

(@) He felt it was proper and legitimate to voice his concerns.

(b)  He avoided referring to names, dates, times and documents.
(c) His reference to a guiding hand did not refer to Clir Licence.

(d)  He had authorised Mrs Licence’s access to the BPC’s computer and
had encouraged her to familiarise herself with matters and to look
through records in order to do so.

(€)  He had requested from Mrs Licence copies of the e-mails to which she
had referred and she provided these.

The allegations contained in the complaint are serious and could potentially
give rise to breaches of the Code of Conduct. Itis, however, important to
examine the allegations in context. On one hand the Chairman had valid
concerns that he believed the parish Council should be aware of and on the
other certain individuals in the full knowledge of the background believed that
the concerns related to and enabled them to be identified by others.

| accept that Clir Dyke’s statements to the F&GP Committee were such that
Parish Councillors present may have assumed a link to Mrs Licence.
Members of the public were not péegent at that time so | have left that element
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to one side. Whilst Clir Dyke made some effort to avoid specifics it seems to
me that his statements would have at the very least raised a suspicion in the
minds of some Members that Mrs Licence had behaved improperly.
Additionally it seems imprudent to have mentioned criminal offences and
involving the police at that time.

| also accept that to those immediately concerned the Item 14 ii) of the
Minutes of the F&GP Committee meeting could be taken as referring to them.
| disagree, however, that they were accusatory towards individuals.

| have had regard to the information provided by Clir Mrs. Marshall which is
largely supportive of the Complainant’s views. We are though dealing with
perceptions and interpretations in this instance so | do not believe that this

information adds significant weight.

The investigation and the interviews conducted have failed to substantiate the
allegations to sufficient extent to lead me to believe that that Clir Dykes
actions at the F&GP meeting amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct.

My impression gained from the lengthy interviews is that there is an element
of tension between the parties and, indeed, between factions within BPC.
Clearly Clir Licence and his wife feel considerably aggrieved but, conversely,
Clir Dyke found himself in a difficult situation that he handled with diligence
albeit that with hindsight the matter could have been dealt with differently.

19. Findings

19.1

19.2

19.3

Mrs and Clir Licence have genuine and understandable concerns relating to
the overall events of which this complaint forms a part.

Having considered all of the above | have concluded that Clir Dyke is a
conscientious Chairman who found himself dealing with a difficult and
challenging situation that he dealt with to the best of his ability. As Chairman
of BPC ClIr Dykes actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than
other members of the Council and the office of Chairman carries with it
greater responsibility.

In so far as the complaints against ClIr Dyke [ find —

(a)  Notwithstanding that his conduct may have appeared to some to have
included the making false and inaccurate allegations, he has not failed
to treat others with respect in breach of paragraph 3(1) of the Code.

(b)  There is no evidence to support the contention that he compromised
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, BPC in breach of
paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code.
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(c) It was anticipated that the Clerk’s husband would be an applicant for
the post of parish handyman and arrangements were to have been put
in place to ensure that she remained outside the appointment process.
Notwithstanding this, there was a strong suggestion that the
appointment process was improper or, at least flawed. 1 find however
his behaviour was neither dishonest nor deceitful and am satisfied that
his conduct cannot reasonably be regarded as bringing his office or
authority into disrepute contrary to paragraph 5 of the Code.

(d)  There is no evidence to support the contention that he used his

position improperly in breach of paragraph 6(a) of the Code.

As to the complaints against Clir Hughes | find there is no evidence of
dishonesty or deceit and that the facts do not show that he —

(@) Compromised the impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of,
BPC in breach of paragraph 3(2)(d) of the Code.

(b) He can reasonably be regarded as bringing his office or authority into
disrepute in breach of paragraph 5 of the Code.

(c) Used his position improperly in breach of paragraph 6(a) of the Code.

| find on the basis of the information obtained and evidence provided that Clir
Ash has not behaved dishonestly or deceitfully nor has he conducted himself
in a manner that could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office or
authority into disrepute.

| find on the basis of the information obtained and evidence provided that Clir
Blackmore has not behaved dishonestly or deceitfully nor has he conducted
himself in a manner that could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office
or authority into disrepute.

| find on the basis of the information obtained and evidence provided that Clir
Young has not behaved dishonestly or deceitfully nor has he conducted
himself in a manner that could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office
or authority into disrepute.

Closing Remarks

Mrs Licence has a belief that the handyman appointment process was wholly
unsatisfactory and she and her husband have a genuine belief that Clir Dyke
made open allegations against them which were totally unjustified. Clir Dyke,
however, considered it to be his duty to make known his concerns. As a result
I have found it difficult balancing the investigation and evidence against the

‘perceptions of Mrs and Clir Licence. On balance, however, and after careful

consideration of the comments regg'?/ed as a result of my draft report, | have
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concluded that none of the Subject Members have acted in breach of the
Code.

It is apparent BPC is operating in an atmosphere of tension and mistrust. |
fear that there exists a tendency in some quarters to allow personal and
political differences to disturb effective service to the community. |
understand that as a result, in addition to the impending resignation of the
current Chairman, the current Parish Clerk is presently on extended medical
absence

I have provided copies of my draft report to the parties and to Maidstone
Borough Council’s Monitoring Officer and received a number of responses.
These responses are annexed (Annexe L). | have carefully considered the
comments, criticisms and questions and taken these into account in producing
my final report.

Keith E. Trowell

Group Manager (Legal Services)

& Deputy Monitoring Officer

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

10™ February 2010
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Treating athers with respect

See Paragraph 3(1)

You must treat others with respect,

In politics, rival groupings are common,
either in formal political parties or more
informal alliances. It is expected that each
will campaign for their ideas, and they may
also seek to discredit the policies and
actions of their opponents. Criticism of ideas
and opinion is part of democratic debate,
and does not in itself amount to bullying or
failing to treat someone with respect.

Ideas and policies may be robustly
criticised, but individuals should not be
subject to unreasonable or excessive
personal attack. This particularly applies to
dealing with the public and officers. Chairs
of meetings are expected to apply the rules
of debate and procedure rules or standing
orders to prevent abusive or disorderly
conduct,

Whilst it is acknowledged that some
members of the public can make
unreasonable demands on members,
members should, as far as possible, treat
the public courteously and with
consideration. Rude and offensive
behaviour lowers the public’s expectations
and confidence in its elected
representatives,

8 THE CODE OF CONDUCT
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Complying with aquality
See Paragraph 3(2)(a)

You must not do anything which may cause
your authority to breach any equality laws,

Eguality laws prohibit discrimination on the
grounds of sex, race, disability, religion or
belief, sexual orientation and age.

The provisions of these laws are complex.
In summary, there are four main forms of
discrimination:

+ Direct discrimination; treating peopie
differently because of their sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age.

* Indirect discrimination: treatment which
does not appear to differentiate between
people because of their sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
origntation or age, but which
disproportionately disadvantages them.

+ Harassment: engaging in unwanted
conduct on the grounds of sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age, which violates another
person's dignity or creates a hostile,
degrading, humiliating or offensive
gnvironment,
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+ Victimisation: treating a person less
favourably because they have
complained of discrimination, brought
proceedings for discrimination, or been

‘ involved in complaining about or
# bringing proceedings for discrimination.

Equality laws also impose positive duties
to eliminate unlawful discrimination and
harassment and to promote equality. They
also impose specific positive duties on
certain authorities,

Under equality laws, your authority may be
liable for any discriminatory acts which you
commit, This will apply when you do
something in your official capacity in a
discriminatory manner.,

You must be careful not to act in a way
which may amount to any of the prohibited
forms of discrimination, or to do anything
which hinders your authority's fulfiiment of
its posttive duties under equality laws, Such
conduct may cause your authority to break
the law, and you may find yourself subject
to a complaint that you have breached this
paragraph of the Code of Conduct.

Hullving and intimddation
2 Pt 3

See Paragraphs 3(2)(b) and 3(2)(c)

You must not bully any person including
other councillors, council officers or
members of the public.

Bullying may be characterised as offensive,
intimidating, malicious, insulting or
humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour may
happen once or be part of a pattern of
behaviour directed at a weaker person or
person over whom you have some actual or
perceived influence, Bullying behaviour
attempts to undermine an individual or a
group of individuals, is detrimental to their
confidence and capability, and may
adversely affect their health.

This can be contrasted with the legitimate
challenges which a member can make in
challenging policy or scrutinising
performance. An example of this would be
debates In the chamber about policy, or
asking officers 1o explain the rationale for
the professional opinions they have put
forward. You are entitied Lo challenge fellow
counciflors and officers as to why they hold
their views.

It is important that you raise issues about
poor performance in the correct way and
proper forum, However, if your criticism is a
personal attack or of an offensive nature,
you are likely to cross the line of what is
acceptable behaviour,
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You must not intimidate or attempt {o
intimidate any person who is or is likely to be
a complainant, a witness, or involved in the
administration of any investigation or
proceadings relating to a failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct.

= However much you may be concerned

about allegations that you or a fellow
councillor failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct, it is always wrong to bully,
intimiclate or attempt to intimidate any
person involved in the investigation or
hearing. Even though you may not have
breached the Code of Conduct, you will
have your say during any independent
investigation or hearing, and you shoulid fet
these processes follow their natural course.

If you intimidate a witness in an investigation
about your conduct, for example, you may
find yourself subject to another complaint
that you breached this paragraph of the
Code of Conduct.

Compromising the impartiality
of officers of the authority

.................................................................

You must not compromise, or attempt to
compromise, the impartiality of anyone who
works for, or on behalf of, the authority.

You should not approach or pressure
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the

4¢ THE CODE OF CONDUCT

authority to carry out their duties in a biased
or partisan way. They must be neutral and
should not be coerced or persuaded to act
in a way that would undermine their
neutrality. For example, you should not get
officers to help you prepare party political
material, or {0 help you with matters relating
to your private business. You should not
provide or offer any incentive or reward in
return for acling in a particular way or
reaching a particular decision.

Although you can robustly question officers
in order to understand, for example, their
reasons for proposing to act in a particular
way, or the content of a report that they
have written, you must not try and force
them to act differently, change their advice,
or alter the content of that report, if doing s0
would prejudice their professional integrity.

Disclosing confidential
information
See Paragraph 4(a)

You must not disclose confidential
information, or information which you believe
to be of a confidential nature, except in any
of the following circumstances:

+ You have the consent of the person
authorised to give it.

+ You are required by law to do so.
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» The disclosure is made to a third party for

the purposes of obtaining professional
advice (for example, your lawyer or other
professional adviser) provided that
person agrees not to disclose the
information to any other person.

« The disclosure is in the public interest,
This is only justified in limited
circumstances, when all of the following
four requirements are met:

1. the disclosure must be reasonable

2. the disclosure must be in the public
interest

3. the disclosure must be made in good
faith

4. the disclosure must be made in
compliance with any reasonable
requirements of your authority

In relation to the disclosure of confidential
information in the public interest, the four
requirements to be met are outlined in more
detall below.

1. The first requirement, that the disclosure
must be reasonable, requires you to
consider matters such as:

+ Whether you believe that the
information disclosed, and any
allegation contained in it, is
substantially true. If you do not
believe this, the disclosure is unlikely
to be reasonable.

APPENDIX B

Whether you make the disclosure for
personal gain. If you are paic to
disclose the information, the
disclosure is unlikely to be
reasonable.

The identity of the person to whom
the disclosure is made. It may be
reasonable o disclose information to
the police or to an appropriate
regulator. 1t is less likely to be
reasonable for you to disclose the
information to the world at large
through the media.

The extent of the information
disclosed, The inclusion of
unnecessary detail, and in particular,
private matters such as addresses or
telephone numbers, is likely to render
the disclosure unreasonable,

The seriousness of the matter, The
more serious the matter disclosed,

- the more likely it is that the disclosure

will be reasonable.

The timing of the disclosure. If the
matter to which the disclosure relates
has already occurred, and is unfikely
to occur again, the disclosure may be
less likely to be reasonable than if the
matter is continuing, or is likely to re-
occur,

Whether the disclosure involves your
authority failing in a duty of
confidence owed to another person.
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2. The second requirement, that the
disclosure must be in the public interest,
needs to involve one or more of the
following matters or something of
comparable seriousness, that has either
happened in the past, is currently
happening, or is fikely to happen in the
future:

{(8) A criminal offence is committed.

(b) Your authority or some other person
fails to comply with any legal
obligation to which they are subject.

(c) A miscarriage of justice occurs,

(d) The heatlth or safety of any individual
is in danger.

(e) The environment is likely to be
damaged.

(f) That information tending to show any
matter falling within (a) to {e) is
deliberately concealed.

3. The third requirement, that the disclosure
is made in good faith, will not be met if
you act with an ulterior motive, for
example, to achieve a party political
advantage or to settle 2 score with a
political opponent.

t2Z THE CODE OF CONDUCT

4. The fourth requirement, that you comply
with the reasonable requirements of your
authority, means that before making the
disclosure you must comply with your
authority's policies or protocols on
matters such as whistle-blowing and
confidential information. You must first
raise your concerns through the
appropriate channels set out in such
policies or protocols.

In summary, to decide whether the
disclosure is reasonable and in the public

~ interest, you may need to conduct a

balancing exercise weighing up the public
interest in maintaining confidentiality against
any countervailing public interest favouring
disclosure, This will require a carefuf focus
on how confidential the information is, on
any potentially harmful conseguences of its
disclosure, and on any factors which may
justify its disclosure despite these potential
conseguences.

In some situations, it is extremely unlikely
that a disclosure can be justified in the
public interest. These will include where the
disclosure amounts to a criminal offence, or
where the information disclosed is protected
by legal professional privilege.
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Freventing access {0
information
See Paragraph 4(b)

You must not prevent anyone getting
information that they are entitled to by law.

You must not prevent any person from
accessing information which they are
entitled to by law, This includes information
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000
or those copies of minutes, agendas,
reports and other documents of your
authority which they have a right to access.
To find out more about what types of
information the public can access, contact
the Information Commissioner's Office by
visiting www.ico.gov.uk or by calling

0845 630 6060.

Disrepute

See Paragrapn 8 e i

You must not bring your office or authority
into disrepute while acting In your official
capaclty, or at any time through criminal
activity that leads to a criminal conviction.?

2 Transitionat Note: Untit such timse as there Is Parliamentary
approval for amendments 1o section 52 of the Locaf
Government Act 2000 which reinstates the situation prior
to Collins J's decision in Livingstone v Adjudication Panel
for England 20086, the Code of Conduct does not apply
to conduct outside of the performance of your functions
as a member, Only if you have engaged in an aclivity
which has a link with. the functions of your office will any
conducl in your privale capacily be covered by the Code
of Conduct. If the legislative amendments are passed, the
Code of Conduct will also apply to cdminal activily which
has led o & conviction, |
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As a member, your actions and behaviour
are subject to greater scrutiny than that of
ordinary members of the public. You should
be aware that your actions in both your
public and private life might have an
adverse impact on your office or your
authority. Dishonest and deceitful behaviour
In your role as a member may bring your
authority into disrepute, as may conduct in
your private life which results in a criminal
conviction, such as dishonest, threatening
or violent behaviour,

LIsing your position
improperly
See Paragraph 6(a)

You must not use, or attempt to use, your
position Improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of yourself or anyone glse.

You should not use, or attempt to use, your
public office either for your or anybody
else's personal gain or loss. For example,
your behaviour would be improper if you
sought to further your own private interests
through your position as a membet.

[n addition to paragraph 6(a), paragraph 12
is also relevant to the proper use of your
position. Paragraph 12 supports your role as
a community advocate, representing and
speaking for the concerns of your
community, even where you have a
prejudicial interest. This right applies to you
at meetings where you have a statutory right
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to speak or you are provided with the same.
opportunity to speak as ordinary members
of the public would be allowed. if your
authority does not allow members of the
public to attend the relevant maeting for the
purpose of speaking to it, paragraph 12 will
not apply to you unless you have a statutory
right to speak on the matter.

You must leave the room or chamber
immediately after you have made the
representations, given your evidence, or
answered guestions, and make no further
attempt to influence the decision. if the
meeting decides that you must stop
speaking to the meeting, even if you have
more {0 say, you must stop and leave the
room. If you fail to comply with the meeting's
direction or paragraph 12 of the Code of
Conduct, you may be found to have
improperly influenced the decision,

The authority’s resources

See Paragraph 6(b)(i)

You must only use or authorise the use of
the resources of the authority In accordance
with its requirements.

Where your authority provides you with
resources (for example telephone, computer
and other (T facilities, transport or support
from councit employees), you must only use

4 THE CODE OF CONDUCT
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these resources or employees for carrying
out your local authority business and any
other activity which your authority has
authorised you o use them for.

You must be familiar with the rules applying
10 the use of these resources made by your
authority. Failure to comply with your
authority's rules is fikely to amount to a
breach of the Code of Conduct,

if you authorise someone (for example a
member of your family) to use your
authority's resources, you must take care to

- ensure that this is allowed by your

authority’s rules.

Using resources for proper
purposes only
See Paragraphs 6(b)(i) and 6(c)

&7,
You must make sure you use the authority's
resources for proper purposes only, ltis not
appropriate to use, or authorise others to
use, the resources for political purposes,
including party political purposes. When
using the authority’s resources, you must
have regard, if applicable, to any Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the
Local Government Act 1986.

You should never use council resources for
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purely political purposes, including
designing and distributing party political
material produced for publicity purposes.

However, your authority may authorise you
to use its resources and facilities for pofitical
purposes in connection with your authority's
business. For example, holding surgeries in
your ward and dealing with correspondence
from your constituents. In this case. you
must be aware of the limitations placed
upon such use for these purposes. Using
your authority's resources outside of these
limitations is likely to amount to a breach of
the Code of Conduct.

advice provided
ving reasons

Considerin
to you and

N &
i

SeeParagraph7 ... .

Please note: paragraph 7 is not mandatory for parish

councifs, However, your parish may choose to include
an obligation to take account of your clerk's advice in

the Code your authority adopts,

You must have regard to advice from your
monitoring officer or chief finance officer
where they give it under their statutory
duties,

If you seek advice, or advice is offered to

you, for example, on whether or not you
should register a personal interest, you
should have regard to this advice before
you make your mind up. Failure to do so
may be a breach of the Code of Conduct.

You must give reasons for all decisions in
accordance with statutory reguirements and
any reasonable requirements imposed by
your authority, Giving reasons for decisions
is particularly important in relation to
requlatory decisions and decisions where
people’s rights are affected.

Where members disagree with officer
recommendations in making a decision,
members will need to take particular care in
giving clear reasons for the decision.
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08 L
LESmn Rl n L R 14 Trapfield Close
Bearsted
Maidstone
ME14 44T
i 21% August 2011
Dear Mr Fisher

Re: Bearsted Parish Council

I am writing to express my concetns about the irregulatities which have ocourred during
the recruitment process for the position of Handyman for Bearsted Parish Council and the
ptoblems I have experienced in trying to get this matter properly investigated. T am the
Assistant Clerk to Bearsted Parish Council and was specifically tasked with undettaking
the recruitment of the Handyman because Mr Dave Elstone, the husband of the full time
Clexk to the Council, Helen Elstone, was expected to be an applicant for the post.

I belicve that Cllr Cheis Dyke and Cllr Jon Hughes have breached Section 2 (¢), Section 4
and Section 5(a) of the Code of Conduct as follows:-

2. A Member must ;

(a) promote equality by not discriminating unlawfilly against any person.
(b) treat others with respeci and

(c) not do anything wiich compromises or which is likelp to compromise fhe
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority.

4, A Member must not in his official capacity, or any other circumstance, conduct
himself in a manner, which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office or
authority info disrepule,

3. A Mewber

() must not in his official capacity, or any other circumstance, use his posiiion as a
Member Improperly fo confer on or secure for himself or any other person, an
wdvantage or disedvantage

The involvement of Clir Chris Dyke and Clir Jon Hughes in the appointment of the
Handyman has compromised the impartiality of Helen Elstone in the appointment of her
husband as handyman. 1 believe that their actions could reasonably be regarded as
bringing their office or authority into disrepute as the recruitment process has been
flawed by their actions. They have also used their position as Members to improperly lo
confer on or secute an advantage to Dave Elstone in getting the job.

I also believe that Clir Richard Ash, Cile Paul Blackmore and Clir Paul Young (Vice
Chairman) may have also breached Section 4 of the Code of Conduet,
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4. A Member must not in his official capacity, or any other cireumstance, conduct
limself in « manner, which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office or
authority info disvepute.

All three Councillors were aware of the irregularities of the procedure of appointing the
Handyman and yet took no action. It was the decision of the Parish Council that Helen
Elstone have no part in the recruitment process.

1 am further concerned that I have been slandered in an Open Council Meeting where the
Chairman accused me of criminal activities and also implicated my husband. This is in
breach of Section 4 and Section 2 (b) and (¢)i-

2. A Member must :
(a) promete equalily by not discriminating wnlawfully against any person.
(b) treat others with respect and

(¢} not do aniything which compromises or which is lkely 1o compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the authority.

4. A Member must not in his official capacily, or any other circumstance, conduct
himself in a manner, which could reasonably be regarded us bringing his office or
authority into disrepute,

A full chronology of the concerns I have expressed and copies of all the docuinents I
refer to are attached. Please let me know if you need anything else from me and I am
willing to meet with you to discuss this matter, 1 would be grateful if you would
investigate this as a matier of urgency.

Yours sincerely

Wendy Licence (Mrs)
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COMPLAINT ABOUT _ BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL'S RECUITMENT
PROCESS FOR A HANDYMAN

Chronology of everts

11.2.11 I was appointed by Bearsted Parish Council as Assistant Clerk to provide
cover whenever the full time cletk, Helen Elstone, was on leave o sick, I was to work 25

days per annum, for 3 houts per day to cover the Parish Office and attend evening
meeting if necessary.

10.3.11 I received training in the Parish Office from Helen Elstone about the office
systems and encouraged by her o0 look at files, if I had time, so that I could familiarise
myself with how the Partish Council wotked.

The Parish Council was soon to advertise for the post of Handyman and [ was also aslked
by Cllr Cheis Dyke to deal with the job applications for this post as Helen Elstone’s
husband, Dave Elstone, was expected to be one of the applicants. Dave Elstone had
already been working for Bearsted Parish Council since February 2011 as a casual litter
picker

20511 Helen Elstone emailed me to ask if it was OK. for the job applications for
the handyman post to be sent to my home address. See Appendix 1 1 said it was OK.

277111 The advert for the handyman post appeared in the KM ~ Appendix 2. Tt
was very vague; gave no details of the specific work to be done and required no
qualifications or previous experience. It did not specify from where or from whom further
details could be obtained. It gave no contact details for the Parish Councll and required
all applications to be sent to my home address. A job description was not prepared to be
sent to anyone expressing an interest in the post, :

11.7.11 T passed all the 20 job applications that I had received direct to the
Chajrman of Beatsted Parish Council, Cllr Clris Dyke at his home address so that the
applications did not go through the office. Clir Chris Dyke told me to do this. 1 did not
réceive an application from Dave Elstone,

21.6.11 Having considered all the applications, Cllv Clxis Dyke returned them to
me via my husband Geoff who is a Bearsted Parish Councillor. IHe gave then to my
husband just before the beginning of the Community Committee meeting held at
Madginford Hall and they were brought back to my home. Cllr Chris Dyke asked mo to
invite 5 applicants to interview, including Dave Elstone. Dave Elstone had sent his job
application via the Parish Council office and not to my home address as required in the
advertissment,

22.6.11 Letters were posted to 5 candidates calling them to interview
27.6.11 The day of the interviews

1 worked in Parish Office during the day as Helen Elstone was on a course. She had asked
me to contact a fireworks company for testimonials and, as I could not find a phone

o1-
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number or email address for them, I scrolled back through the received emails on the
office computer hoping to find an ¢-mail from the company. The gplit soreen on the
office PC shows a preview of an email without actually opening it and, as I scrolled
down, I saw a preview of an e-mail from Cllr Jon Hughes Appendix 3 about the questions
to be asked at the interview for the Handyman’s job and the model answers, When I
opened this e-mail, it was clear that Helen Elstone had written both the questions and
answers and-had passed them the Cllr Jon Mughes for comment and, following his
approval, she had passed them to Cllr Clwis Dyke Appendix 4. Clir Jon Hughes is the
Chairman of the Bearsted Parish Council Environment Committee and is, in effect, the
line manager for both the Council’s Litter Picker and its Handyman,

The interviews wers hekd in the Parish Office on evening of 27" June. Only 3 out of the 5
invited candidates attended. 'When 1 arrived at the office, Cllr Chrls Dyke was
photocopying sets of questions to be asked of the candidates (appendix 5).  The
questions were given out and I saw that they were mainly the questions and answers that
had been drafied by Helen Elstone,

The interview panel consisted of Cllr Chris Dyke, Cllr Richard Ash and Cllr Paul
Blackmore. 1 sat in on all 3 interviews and made notes on them. As the job advert had
been for a Handyman and there had been no job description, only Dave Elstone was able
to accurately answer the horticultural question - neither of the other 2 candidates had
expected this question and one of them said that he had expected the Handyman's job to
be all about maintaining the halls in the Parish,

All 3 candidates were scored on the answers they gave and whether the answers matched
the answers that Helen Elstone bad written. The results were counted and Dave Elstone
scored the highest. I asked the pancl if 1 could speak to them in confidence and 1 told
them that Helen Eistone had written the questions and answers and 1 expressed my severe
concern about this situation, Cllr Chris Dylke told me that he was aware that the questions
had gone through the office. Clir Richard Ash said that Dave Blstone would have had an
advantage as he had been the Council’s litter picker for several months. Cliv Paul
Blaclkmore said nothing, Cllr Chris Dyke then telephoned Dave Elstone to offer him the
Job. He then told me to write to Dave Blstone confirming the job offer and that when he
formally accepted it, | should write to the other candidates to inform them they had been
unsuccessful,

After Cllr Richard Ash and Clir Paul Blackmore had gone, Cllr Chris Dyke told me that
they had purposely advertised the job with an howdy rate so that Dave Elstone could
apply for it and that if the job had been put out to tender, he would not have been allowed
to submit a tender, He did not explain to me why this would have been.

28.6.11 I'worked in the Parish Office again on this day as Helen Elstone was still
on a course, I decided that I should check the e-mails that I had seen the previous day to
se¢ if Helen Elstone’s questions were exactly the same as the ones asked by the interview
panel. The e-mails confirmed that they wete and, in addition, I also found a subsequent e-
mail Appendix 6 which Helen had sent to her husband, Dave Blstone, prior to the
interviews actually giving him the interview questions and answers that she had agreed
with Cllr Jon Hughes and passed on to Cllr Chris Dyke.
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[ felt very shocked and sickened by all this, particularly as 1 had been asked to
specifically deal with the recruitment of the Handyman to ensure that it was done in a
fair, open and honest way and to ensure that Helen Elstone would not be scen as having
any involvement in the recruitment process as her husband was onc of the applicants, X
was also very concerned that if the truth of what had happened became generally known,
it would reflect very badly on the Parish Council,

I, therefore, telephoned Cllr Chris Dyke to express my increasing concern about how the
handyman had been recruited. He told me that Clir Jon Hughes had given him 3 questions
three weelks ago and that he (Chyis) had written 3 more. (There were in fact 5 questions
and answers which Helen Elstone had written and none that I could see from Jon
Hughes.) The only questions and mode! answers that | saw were the 5 that Helen Elstone
sent to Cllr John Hughes and then on to her husband and which were used in the
interview.

Cllr Chris Dyke told me again to send the confirmation letter to Dave Elstone and to send
apologies to the other candidates. I continued to stress my concern because the e-mails
clearly showed that not only did Helen Elstone write the questions and answers but she
also sent a copy to Dave Elstone. At this point, Cllr Chris Dyke sounded quite agitated by
my persistence and asked how I knew all this. I told him that the e-mails were on the
office PC and that I could give him copies if he wanted. He requested that 1 provided
copies to him,

29.6.11 This was my last morning in the Parish office. 1 printed the e-mails
(Appendix 3 & 6) which Cilr Chris Dyke had requested and my husband, Cllv Geoff
Licence, delivered them to his house in the evening.

1711 I began to get increasingly worried about how {he Parish Council had
handled the interviews and the recruitment of the handyman so 1 wrote and hand
delivered to Cllv Chris Dyke’s home a letter formally expressing these concerns and
asking that, as & whistle blower, my disclosures fo him be treated in a confidential and
sensitive manner and that the matier be properly investigated, Appendix 7

1711 I received a reply from Clir Chris Dyke dated 8 July 2011 saying that as I
had marked my letter ‘Private & Confidential’, he could not discuss it with anyone.
Appendix 8

14711 I telephoned Clir Chris Dyke and he led me to believe that he wanted to
discuss the matter with Cllr Richard Ash and I agreed to this. He told me that he wanted
to meet with me and my husband, Clir Geoff Licence, and that he would ask Clir Richard
Ash to be present. He would not give me any details as to what he wanted to talk to me
about and 1 was told to call him back on 15 July and give him some dates,

15.7.11 I phoned Clir Chris Dyke in the motning and explained that my husband
didn’t want to get involved as he felt, quite rightly, that it was nothing to do with him. I
asked Cllr Chris Dyke what he wanted to talk about but he would not give me any details
and said he would call back later.
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177,11 As 1 had not heard anything further from Clr Chris Dyke, 1 called him
again on Sunday evening. e told me he had written a letter to me which he would
deliver by hand to me the following day.

18.7.11 I received the letter which was agatn requesting a mesting and suggesting
that someone else be present. Again, no details were given as to what the meeting would
be about, Appendix 9 1 asked Cllr Pat Marshall if she would be willing to attend the
meeting with me as I know she is a well respected and senior member of the Parish
Council and is knowledgeable of Parish Counci! matters and extremely trustworthy, I
gave Clly Pat Marshall a brief summary of the irregularities in the appointment of
Handyman that 1 had discovered as 1 thought this was what the meeting would be about,
Cllr Pat Mashall listened but did not comment as she wanted to remain impartial for the
meeting, She kindly agreed to be present as an independent and unbiased person and I
emailed dates to Chris Dyke for a meeting and he read the email at 6.30pm on 19.7.11.
[‘\P()‘(Zv\dx{fﬁ e

19.7.11 The Parish Council Finance & General Policy Committee Meeting took
placed at 7.30 pm. My husband, Geoff, is & member of this committee and he came home
terxibly shocked and upset by what the Chairman of the Committee, Clir Chris Dyke, had
told them,

Cllr Chris Dyke told the Committee that ‘someone had hacked into the office computer
and fooked at and downloaded confidential documents about 2 weeks ago’, He went on to
say that ‘this person is known and had had a guiding hand’. He also said that this was a
breach of the Data Protection Act and & criminal offence. Although names weren’s
mentioned, it was obvious that Cllr Cheis Dyke was talking about me and implying that
Geoff had ‘guided’ me in what [ had done. Cllr Chris Dyke also told the committee that a
request had been sent to Maidstone Borough Council for an IT technician to examine the
Parish Council computer that the matter was to be referred to the police. A resolution to
this effect was catried with oue abstention from Cllv Geoff Licence, my husband. See
Appendix 10 page 4, 14) Correspondence 11). All of this was discussed at an open, public
meeting with all & members of the commiltee plus the Cletk, Helen Elstone, in
attendance, The motion in the draft minute was subsequently amended to exclude the
Police involvement.

I became very frightened and very upset at this toen of events, I, therefore, sought my
own personal legal advice and was informed that, contrary to what Clir Chyis Dyke had
told the Finance and General Policy Commiteee, there would have béen no breach of the
Data Protection Act as I am au employee of the Council and it is, therefore, an entirely
internal matter, My lawyer also told me that Cllr Chris Dyke’s insistence on my having a
meeting with him and not telilng me the purpose of the meeting was against ACAS
guidelines as he would not provide me with any information about what the meeting was
to be about, I was also advised that 1 have a written grievance against Clir Chris Dyke in
this respect - which I may well pursue.

[ am also taking further legal advice on the inacourate information that Cllr Chris Dyke
provided to the Finance and General Poticy Commitiee and the clear inference that 1 had
unlawfully looked at and downloaded confidential information and committed a criminal
offence.
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23.’7.}1 {received a [etter from Chris saying that he had been advised not to have a
meeting with me. Appendix 11 :

26,711 As it had now been nearly 4 weeks since I sent iy initial letter to Cllr
Chris Dyke expressing my concerns about the recruitment of the Handyman and he had
still not sent me a substantive reply, I hand-delivered to his home another letfer
specifically requesting infoxmation about the concerns [ had raised. Appendix 12

2.0§.11 I received a reply (Appendix 13) from Cllr Cheis Dyke dated 31 July
stating that my letter to him of 1 July covered three issues:

1. The “Appointment of Litter Picker” - I found this quite inoredulous as my letter made
no reference to the fitter picker and I wondered if Clle Chris Dyke has actually read or
understood my letter!

2. “Appointment of Handyman” in which Cllr Chris Dyke confirmed that he did, in fact,
ask Helen Elstone to ‘submit’ questions and that Cllr Paul Young, the Vice Chairman of
Bearsted Parish Council, had made the final choice about them. 1 had no previous
knowledge of Cllr Paul Young's invelvement even though I was specifically tasked with
dealing with the recruitment of the handyman, Clir Chris Dyke did not explain why the
questions and answers drafted by Helen Elstone and approved by Cllr Hughes were the
exact ones that were asked at the interviews, Neither did he explain why Helen Elstone ¢~
mailed these exact questions and answets to her husband, Dave Elstone, which provided
him with an unfair advantage at the interviews,

3, Dave Llstone’s insurance - which does not cover his family members who have been
allowed to work for the Parish Council under his company name, ‘Clean and Tidy’,

3.8.11 1 felt exiremely concerned that after over a month, Clir Chiis Dyke had
stitl not addtessed my concerns or showed any inclination to investigate them. In
addition, his letter of 31 July confirmed that he, Helen Elstone, Clir Jon Hughes and Cllr
Paul Young had all been involved with the drafiing of the interview questions which was
contrary to everything that any Counciilor had ever said and contrary to the expressed
wishes of the Parish Council which was that Helen Elstone play no patt in the recruitment
of the Handymat.

I am deeply concerned about the unfair allegations made against me at the Finance and
general Policy Committee meeting on 19 July and this was raised with without
my knowledge and without the Councillors being in possession of the faots at an open
Public Meeting with no opportunity for me to state my case. As I was worried about the
inaccutate and false allegations made against me and by implication my husband Geoff
by Cllr Chris Dyke at the Finance and General Policy meeting, an open Public Meeting
on 19 July,. 1, therefore, decided to write an open letter to all the Parish Councillors about
the matter and I emailed it to them all. Appendix 14

48,11 An emafl was circulated to all Councillors informing thom that an
extraordinary meeting was to be cafled to discuss the issues fully. Appendix 15

7.8.11 The meeting was formally called for 11 August 8 at 7.30pm. Appendix 16
-5
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11.8.11 At approx 6.15pm, my husband, Geoff, received a phone call from another
couneillor, Cllr Helen Cuming, saying that Cllr Chris Dyke had cancelted the meeting
due to ‘circumnstances beyond his control’. There was no explanation as to why Cllr Paul
Young, the Vice Chairman, could not chair the meeting in the Chairman’s absence.

16.8.11 An email from Cllr Ciwis Dyke was circulated to all councillors
apologising for cancelling the meeting that was to have been held on 11 August and
informing them that it will be re-atranged for sometime after 5 September. The e-mail
explains that the ‘main players in the event’ are not available until this time and that
Councillors will be able to look at all the paperwork and ask any questions, Appendix 17,

Wendy Licence

20 August 2011
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Mail :: Inbox: Advertisement for handyman ‘ hitp://websmail renaissancecrafis.could/imp/message.phpPactionlD=p...

Rate: Fri, 20 May 2011 15:37:59 +0100 (20/05/2011 15:37:59 BST}
From: Clerk <clerk@bearstedparishcouncil, gov.uks
Toi wendy@renaissancecrafts.co,uk
Reply-To: clerk@bearstedparishcouncil,gov.uk
Subject: Advertisement for handyman

Wendy

Following the recent questions raised In relation to employment issues Chris has asked whether you would be happy to
recelve alf applications addressed to you at your home address in respect of the advert that is to be placed in the KM.
Once recelved could you lialse direct with Chris/don in respect of arranging intesvisws ete and then provide admin support
forthis. If you keep a record of hours worked in this respect we can arcange for payment along with June hours,

Regards

Helen Bistone

Mrs Helen Elstone FILCM

~~

Clerk {0 Bearsted Parish Council

This emall and eny aftachments to it may be confidential and ara intended solely for the use of the individual to whom il
Is addressed,

Any views or opinlons expressed are sofsly those of the author and do not necessarily ropresent those of Bearsted Parish
Couneil.

If you are not the infended recipient of this email, you must neither take any action based upon ifs contents, nor copy or »
show it to anyone.

Pilease contact the sender if you bolieve you have received this email In emror

55

1 of'{ 21/08/201t 22:20




APPENDIX B
MBC/11/5 - ANNEX B - Documents Submitted by Mrs Wendy | icence

e 21

sGonaral, -

»

| At e N

TOTED MANDUNAN.

arb, part of the Clrcle Housing, o o &
wiorgost Independest provider of .o Env . mgmsmp.mmsxibbUNeu; -
svices n tha UK W pravide vital ' Suok 0 Soll Evploged Hoglyming ko earry ot gonerud an wanrs
duttos around ‘The fadish. CT Urgently-requlret -5,

ppork ko ngcrly._g}m‘vu!ugrablp ’

. Supporting people to Tive * A ; 4
Earh up to 250 partime | -

Paid st 1 rale of £8.50 por hous, s vaotuoy i for

| Duato owx, axpanalon |

OFFICE 'OLEANERS
Ilc&ulm& for

Toxloy & Sitlingbournd.

Hourly vatea
RTAQ - BRSO

Vipaléps cauk CalText Yyetla
07965 100058 L. RonSi 191 3‘0%%%‘%?3?&‘2‘3%”&'

s S s |
M. ., . ., JNE N
day 265051 D122 450645 ¥ 1 9 Saoyetarial -

atly It Sholrown hioma 15 bt tho : ]
oyt : O . varluble Jouss, avernging 10 Hours perwook, e :
wrythln“g wc. dg. - : ’ s Yo will bo requited 1o provide ol etguipment and pegsoss Not B;‘;bg fg{azzug R
othe € \ necossary livences. . oL 07837 §7421 )
tly hav the °“°§'f’“9 0f)p0rt\1nltles Applications \writog o Myg W Llccu_c::,'l)cx\rs\ed Pacish ESTATE AGEHY Sitngoouing - T
t . h" . Ad i ) Councll,14'5\‘:\pﬂc1(1€lose,mnmed MEggul i Sﬁ‘l)ef? .QXQ{?O!\W-QWQ\“\ ‘Er(;u%'
nership AGVISOLS, | Clotnginer 10 3w ) Mt FR | IR
SOl (i b local 816 Ex”ﬁ"?&';fg“m‘fﬁ:‘w s | B

Permanant, Full and part time hours available
iks, Kent - . . .- Refz2283/K .

ioking for pedple to Joln the, new.Partpership depar’tmeht, to
1n effective and efflctent suppart service for Invicta Telecare,
include a range of-dutles from clerical and financial wotk to
nt and Stock tianagement.”. .
essiul candidates witl be good communicatars, have previous:
«ce I an adminlstrative role, good organisational and 17 skllts,
ability to prioritise work foad and managé contficking deadtines. -

Dator B Sune 2011, Assassment Date: 17 & 20 Juna 2011.

rplease vhlt%vww.clrcle.org.ulqcorporételcareers and complate
ication forr. {f you are unable o compléte your application

Ploae upply to
a1022 076b4T

oot / Golfege ovt Staff - O
[ Schoot t g Supp tal Not anly-will-you be ‘earning
Impottantly, yeu wili be heli

T ooy T || e
A5 THORNHILL (ENDOWED) 4 1 you are prepared to worlcfr

Jease wilte quoting the relevant roference numperfo: * :
ing Otficer, Ctrcle, 6 Central Avanio, Norwich NR7 OHR PRIMARY SCHOOL hor wogk) T the cortre of v
willsr  ouan application pact, Brldge Strect, Wyo, Ashiord, YKont TN28 50A B annor, can wilte Jetters ony
iately v afe unabie to acceptLys.. t‘e):()lg{:)'& 313781 emalls ofﬂce@ln%yj.kcnnsdx,ulf‘ ~you ave who wo ate 100! ng
\ents a1t sublectto satisfactory cilminal clesrance, A ceirmingl seord Witk ot Reguive A Higher Lovel mcnmgAmStm‘t o e ; sulres i
b areclido yol from employmont g wltia P fox Koy Stagetox ” ) Qur admrilstration requ res s
ues dlversliy and oncourag’clt spgileagions from rolnority groups. "o stoyt 18t Septomber 204% . C?dﬂ?P“;“es T?"“‘é‘d(’ihar g:sop
’ T ’ \Vg ate Ruekdng Lo uppollm x d usil %\ig\n{ s ) " iA ) g,‘ rﬁ’z:’g'd co%l eclélsgxlgf Japaé
HIFA, 0 Join "our lalented -au suppottive staff at this you;\’m be Involved Wil ‘.ms!

sonisieading' (Ofsted 2009) nad popular yiltage sehool,
e aro 25,3 pec wosk tern (ime only, Kont Schome, Bond ¢

it 17-20 pro pats,
o will consldor quullfics HLTAS or.a TA with ot lcass 3
feico. Applicaton fosuis e

Maidstone Tor all the.world k&

This {5 Ideal work I you havg
park time eraployment. =+

TN .' + . . ‘
sNciwg Life Cliinash < {ERE pomorcd’

3

v

%

ereouVe 7T 3 FYorGshone’
P Ak ohs LIRS I I h (S 1N
S “Teléphone 0162 794555,3

(0 ¥
3 a 3 . el
> y%"t“w\ﬁ_ M from the
schpol office. .« . o )
Become { Z Thoselioo) gmlg\llfls pcmunc\a‘x{ccomﬂmwd (o safegiarding ga%on\;g‘;sﬁ:?mstad pl?“ﬁ
- Bychotherapit || iRt ity oot | || aieone o
Y ist i —-w---r"""""'"""‘“““ Criminol Records Bprony. - RS ow Hytha Lang - s
i ypnOt graplst ' & Engneoring /. ey xClos}ugI)n(ol'mesdwldl!tlul\e ! _me\;‘{ﬁ | tarkfiold, ' ;
.elpqmexsandgamfgomus‘mrI\ogr Feonnfoal ettt fgerview Datess Thursduy 2801 Juno Bl Kegt: - . .
Aocredls, Profossofil Dipkroas s 1498 § A A ME20 65G. -
'ﬁ-miaﬂaﬁmﬂﬁnt T B W = pdyson@thekmgx@

Venyo: The Beaugiful Aylestord Priory

", Classesfill qitekly - actno
984 cu\a\ \'expcxienocd\ x 's capabie o S Richurd Waits ind . ('
qual{tyiuatcv.\]auomofTVactiis,sa@L(lc e "m‘gg‘of{;:b‘:l@ i
SySIems, qn,:g;pggt_gpow/p‘.aywsyswn Almshouse Charitles, %
) 7

A
Tnaddiifotwedlio pigitre ex artencedngiens for the
T nstallattsi of commamal diswdbulion systems. , - f°
Mustbe ol smart appea\anqemdmpmﬁ:sslol\anm .
) workdng attitude. basylong
Exolent opportunittestojolnabusy N
.. usblished company

. - . ]
R Cler/Chiof Officoy CEA0.000
Faunded in 1579 Lo provite alinshouse tccommoiation, persion grasy
plos cduzntionn sd gc@em! rontsiothoso Jn need w’tl}
. ' . . Cily of Rechostor InKent, l:
Challenge . Tho syososstil candidaio il b bnd ofstedf and g
dny operations, 13 10f tha Chahles, na wef

kAl
. pod Niudslag with ndvisors and apentes

Requivements . An oxperioncsd g suliably qualified
solated vz 1 Proven semont, organisall % o ad il
Y Wrorato. Bighs stondands of fitteyinbiy uud diploiacyy

&
tructural Steel Datatler .

(ard thinking deslgn and bulld ontraceor
lalfsing within tha agrcuitural sector requlres

Key tasls - ovemsosing h reguacinghpiennnes aod woieivad {6%‘%
varlows festilzntiul servives, tiblidiag Bront moking faotlities sy
dql- To obtada an informaplppantapplisafion s, plaas contdeidys
4 B Q(uﬁﬁos:0‘1'6:5'11842124,qfc~muil;t;rubam,qmpriﬁzl\. %

Ca e '"{.‘ldsiﬁéﬁilé%i'ﬁjw_ﬁllcdﬂéi\sSpm‘?i,‘r',!ii\i‘io,;

mg;lmed andfded!;:‘?tehd pers‘op to joln an 1 ;

wnding team for wald o offar an ‘exgiting e deorn SURIAL . . cpppoinunent from ) Decentber;

ortuniy togother with . compatitlve package, ' . m;;;‘gr:@g;;;g' . e L TR o
Charity Rlanagensy

sisccessful applicant will ba able to demonsteate |

T ] .
y @W&iﬁg'ﬁ@@ﬂ%%@%@ 111 Do you have a dedire fo work 1t & raultt aganoy:s g;g 05
SLAE

ack record of structural steel AutoCAD/ Mt : _,
ICfad bfed gwl%n producing fabrlcation and = J?m‘c.l‘l aflursp oy afgg‘fnr..l,ﬁ i\;ﬂf‘i‘m‘g \'M*géﬂw 11 Qeabléd ohlidran, young peoptd aad thelr famiife
wfacturing drawings. - oincluds doeng avtandachours, s BE BV 300 a0t 4| b peur naw paront driven eharitabie. com s, SOLE
; : : 1oV Qe é“"f""g-‘d fos.c0d o W inosthoe {3} 5 welluelifiect and enthuslastia ﬁ&énﬁgev.to.é\qu %%
§ Is & multi-tasldng role and raquires a cak, do ool SCORDmonggement on adyentdgs- - T, 4 | and 86 400 pro rata, The {our obaritles the DISIoIR
wi: with & wiliingness £ get involved withall 73 ] L2 u{x.::;m J?Q!qrgwyl@};qmﬁdmd,. " A Tolowe: o it g
wets of the busthess. . < . ' " Eordatomniat discuysidn plouse ot Hona Edmonds or BACE : PN
3991;’ please en z;'ﬂ)' v tog. sher it . NMRM&bgow%a?ﬂwef?ﬁ:“Eﬁma‘?ﬁoyo“ o gg?‘g&r; ;‘.‘;g;\\r}vae%l!:'aren X
nalt your otherwitha . - < 7 v, pramsdavey| @nhsinot tor iy mallogede < 31 b £
% Mdg - Maldstone 48 6

7

i mi,§ é AEAN
by, Thaot G SAIRNS
Suicoossl anplIGRAS Mg revious B¥E:

varing tetter to Luke Alexander at
o@eoloagribulldconkor . . 2 (Ashio)

N . s y | 7 DN
lmmm‘wgﬁ’Iﬂ&nAﬁJ{iﬂWW hefyel -“JE%&WWQOJ”“&- o tnclud
Ja Aartbstid. Ashford Road, Bathersden, ‘.

BARTAVH G PIACTICE NAFAGERL

S

NS eTO AR - T, 0
LR




APPENDIX B
MBC/11/5 - ANNEX B - Documents Submitted by Mrs Wendy Licence

‘Cléfk | ~ ‘ @

From: J & F Hughes [thughes@advent-glectrical.co.uk]
Sent: 07 June 2011 16:00
To: clerk@bearstadparishcouncit.gov.uk

Subject; Re: Questlons

L.ove youl. could you send them to CD for his input?

Sent: Tuasday, June 07; 2001 1236 PM & ¢
To: Jobn Hughes! . - S co

Suhjéct: Questions

Jan

As promised some thoughts re-questions for Interviews

. When working in the parish cutting back hedgerows etc how do you propose to dispose of the arisings?
Answer should be that they have a waste carrlers licence or Intend to burn [t on site as any other act is unlowful

o When working around the parish you notice something that you feel needs attentlon what action weuld you
take? .

Answer should be refer to parish clerk os they need to realise that no actfon can be taken without prior approval

»  Some tasks may require mote than one person under health and safety legislation how would you deal with
this?

¢ * What qualifications/experience to you possess to help you carry out this duty?

o Atlsk assessment relating to each task undertaken will be required. What type of risks do you anticlpate
encountering in your duties?

How’s that for starters? ©

1

Helew Blstone

Mrs Helen Elstone FILCM
Clerk to Bearsted Parish Councit

This email and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of
the Individual to whom It Is addressed.

Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessatily represent
- those of Bearsted Parish Councll.

IF you are not the intended recipient of this emall, you must neither take any action based upon
its contents, nor copy or show It to anyone.

Please contact the sender if you believe you have recelved this email in error
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. 6

Clerk

From: Clerk {clerk@bearstedparishcouncil.gov.uk]
Sent: 08 June 2011 09:07

To! ‘Chris Dyke'

Subject: FW: Questions

Chris

See email below regarding some thoughts Jon had for the handyman interviews, Jon has suggested that perhaps
you and Richard Ash could carry out the Interviews since it will be him and Bernard that are identifying the works etc

Regards

Helew Elstone

Mrs Helen Elstone FILCM ]
Clerk to Bearsted Parish Council

T emall and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of
b Individual fo whom it is addressed.

Any views or apinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessatily represent
those of Bearsted Parish Council.

IF you are not the intended recipient of this email, you must neither take any action bas'ed uporn
its contents; nor copy or show It to anyone.

Please contact the sender if you believe you have received this emall in error

From: J & F Hughes [mailto:jhughes@advent-electrical.couid
Sent: 07 June 2011 16:00

To: clerk@bearstedparishcoundl.aav.uk

Subject: Re: Questions

Couid you send them to CD for his mput?

From'g_ﬂ,{"' R SR T
Senti:Tuesday,. une(J?, 20.11 (2igePlr e
Tt tohn Hughes‘ ' ‘
Subject: Questions: . ‘

Jan

As promised some questlons put together from your thoughts for interviews

e When working in the parish cutting back hedgerows etc how do you propose to dispose of the arisings?
Answer should be that they have a waste carriers licence or Intend to burn it on site as any other oct is uniaowful

»  When working around the parish you notice something that you fee! needs attention what action would you

take?
Answer should be refer to parlsh clerk as they need to realise that no action can be taken without prior approval
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/ ¢ Some tasks may require more than one person under health and safety leglslation how would you deal with
this? ' '

¢ What qualifications/experiance to you possess to help you carry out this duty?

s Arisk assessment relating to each task undertaken will be required. What type of risks do you anticipate
encountering in your dutles?

Frelen Blstone

Mrs Helen Flstone FILCM
Clerk to Bearsted Parish Council

This email and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of
the individual to whom It is addressed,

Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent
{ se of Bearsted Parlsh Councll. ;

Ifyou are not the intended recipient of this email, you must nefther take any actfon based upon
its contents, nor copy ot show It to anyone.

Please contact the sender If you believe you have recelved this emall in error
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REARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

Candidate Name:
Date / Time:
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes
Score{l to
5)

60

What qualifications / experience do you
possess o help you carry out the
Handyman duties?

Candidates-will need to display evidence of
Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers
Licence, relevant industry qualifications
etc. |

Relevant real world experience clso
required In handyman duties, horticulture
etc.

When working in the Parish cutting back
hedgerows etc., how do you propose to
dispose of the arisings?

Candidate should have a waste carriers
licence or intend to burn it on site as any
other act is unlawfil.

When working around the Parish yon
notice something that you feel needs
attention. What action should you take?

Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
cannot take any action without prior
approval from the Clerk.

Some tasks may reqguire more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from
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this?

their team

What prep work and paperwork {if any}
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

Can you give us examples of similar work
to that required carried out before, giving
examples?

Ability to demonstrate previous work &
clients would be desired.

The Handyman role will require you to be
flexible on hours — what are your thoughts
on this?

Candidates will need to demonstrate their
willingness to be flexible and show
commitment to possible unsociable hours
as and when needed.

Are you able to give us details of
references?

Successful references from previous
employers / character references would be
desired

TOTAL SCORE
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~

o
Clerk
From: Clerk [clerk@bearstedparishcouncil.gov.uk}
Sent: 07 June 2011 12:39
To: ’ ‘tlean_gind_fldy@live.co.uld'
Subject: FW: Questlons

Helew Blstone

Mrs Helen Elstone FILCM
Clerk to Bearsted Parish Coundil

This emall and any attachiments to it may be confidential and are intended solely for the use of
the inaividual to whom It is addressed.

-Any views or opinions expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessaf//y represent
t{vose of Bearsted Parish Councl,

If you are not the intended recipient of this email, you must neither take any action based upon
- fts contents, nor copy or show it to anyone.

Please contactthe sender If you belleve you have received this smail in error

Frowm: Clerk fmalito:clez'}g@fgea“rgt@gp@_d,ang_g_ungil.go_\L:giﬂ
Senty 07 June 2011 12:39

To: "John Hughes'

Subject: Questions

Jon

As promised some thoughts re questions for interviews
. & Whenworking in the parish cutting back hedgerows etc how do you propose to dispose of the arisings?
A vershould be that they have a waste carriers licence or Intend to burn it on site us any other act Is unlawful
"¢ When working around the parish you notice something that you feel needs attentlon what action would you
take?

Answer should be refer to parish clerk as they need to realise that no actlon can be taken without prior approval

¢ Some tasks may require more than one person under health and safety legislation how would you deal with
this?

¢ What qualifications/experience 1o you possess to help you carry out this uty?

e Arisk assessment relating to each task undertaken will be required. What type of risks do you antlczpate
encountering in your duties?

How's that for starters? ©

Helen Elstone
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PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL 14 Trapfreld Close
Bearsted
Maidstone
MEI4 41T
1% July 2011
Dear Chris

Further to our recent conversations, 1 would like to officially volce my concerns under
Bearsted Parish Council’s Whistleblowing Policy.

I believe that Helen Elstone has conducted hetself improperly and unethically in respect
of the employment of her husband, Dave Elstone, and I think her actions could bring the
Couneil into disrepute.

I believe that the emails which 1 have given you cleatly show that not only was she
involved in drafting questions and answers for the candidates, she also sent a copy to
Dave which gave him an unfair advantage. It is my understanding that she was expressly
told that she should have no dealings in this matter and that is why 1 have been involved
in the recruitment procedure.

[ am also concerned that members of her family have been working for Clean and Tidy
for the Parish Council without insurance as the policy only covers Dave and, while
thankfully there was no incident while this happened, I believe that this could bring the
Council into disrepute.

1 believe that Helen has used her office as Clerk to the Council to procure pecuniary
advantage for members of hey family.

1 would be grateful if you will treat my disclosures in a confidential and sensitive manner,
I feel that this matter should be fully investigated.

Yours sincerely

Wendy Licence
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®

29 Greystones Rd
Bearsted

Kent

ME15 8PD

8.7.11

Wendy Licence

Dear Wendy
Thankyou for your letter dated 1,711,

The contents of the letter are potentially very serious but 1aise a number of problems for me.
In the first instance the cvidence offered is very thin and does not cover all the points raised.

In addition by marking the letter Private and Confidential I am unable to discuss the contents
with anyone. ‘ '

Perhaps you could consider these points and get back to me

Yours sincerely

Chuis Dyke
Parish Chainman
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®
29 Greystones Rd
Bearsted
Kent
MR15 &8PD

17.7.11

Wendy Licence

Dear Wendy

Following our recent exchange of correspondence I have investigated the matters involved.
This investigation in itself has thrown up an issue we need to discuss, With that in mind I
repeat my suggestion that we meet in the near futuzs, I always prefer to hold such meetings
with someone else present. I would advise you to do the same.

Onee | have some possible dates we can look at evening dates in the parish office.

Yours sincerely

Chris Dyke
Parish Chairman
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Mail :; sent-mail: [No Subject] hitp:/Awebmail renaissanceerafis.co.uk/imp/message.phplactioniD=p...

9a

Date: Tue, 19 Jul 2011 14:42:51 +0100 [10/07/2013 14:42:61 BET]
From: wendy@renaissancecrafls.co.uk
To! cidyke@onetel.com
Ces p.marshall356@btinternet.com
Boa: geoff. 14@talldtalk.net
Subject: {No Subject]

Dear Chris

0

I have checked the Qiary and I can make Tuesday 26th, Wed 27th or ¥Friday 29th,
Hope one of these dates is convenient for you. I have asked Pat Marshall to come
with me as she is a Senior Parish Councillox and I believe she is knowlegdable
and trustworthy.

Looking forward to hearing from you soon

Kind regards
Wendy
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of the Finance and General Purposes Committes held at
Madginford Hall, Egremont Road, Bearsted on Tuesday 19¢h July 2011 at 7.30pm

Present: Messrs Dyke, Hughes, Licence, Smith, Stark and Young, Madams Dunford and
Marshall MBE together with the Clerk, Mrs Elstone.

1) Apologies for Absence: None

2) Election of Committee Chairman and Vice Chairman including Declaration of
Acceptance of Office
1t was proposed that the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the full council act in those
capacities upon this commiliee also, Agreed unanimously,

3) Declaration of Interest: None other than those declared within the Register of
Interest. Mr Hughes advised that he had been lobbied in respect of item 14 —
Correspondence — Heather Langley bench

4) Terms of Reference
The Clerk produced a draft copy of the Terms of Reference for approval. Mr Stark agreed
to continue to carry out the internal audit checks.

5) Audit Commission

¢ Audit 2009-2010

i) The Clerk advised that no response has been received to date regarding the
outcome of the challenge made regarding the accounts. The Audit Commission advises
that this has been passed to the District Auditor for referral to the Legal Officer and should
be with the parish shortly,

if)  The anticipated audit cost resulting from this challenge is £2,000. The annual bill
for audit is £550.

1) Question was raised as to what action should be taken once the decision is knows.
It was agreed that in the interest of openness and transparency the matter should be
reported to residents. Counciliors are still concerned that it is only Bearsted that is being
questioned regarding payments to the JPG. All other parishes have had their accounts for
the year audited with no question regarding the payments,

iv)  If the parish councit is found not to have acted within the law it is unknown what
action will be taken against them or whether the insurance policy will cover the council for
a reimbursement.

o Audit 2010-2011

i}  Since the challenge on the accounts will not affect any figures contained within
them, the Audit Commission have now issued revised Notice of Audit posters which have
been placed within the notice boards. New date for submission of accounts is 2nd
September, The accounts were approved at the June full council meeting so once this date
arrives the Clerk can submit them without further consultation with the council.

6) Land and Buildings Account

1) Tt was agreed that £5,000 should be transferred to the account from the precept, as
agreed at the January finance committee meeting, and that the increase of funds within the
account should be one of the goals within the four year plan for the council.
Discussion took place as to how this could be achieved, It was agreed that the type of land
that would be purchased shoutd be identified as part of these plans.

if) It was suggested that enquiries be made to see if 100-200 residents would be
prepared (o act as a guarantor for £1,000 each. These guarantees could be used to secure a
mortgage should any land become available,
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iti)  As Boughton Monchelsea are known to be purchasing land around their parish it
was proposed that they be invited to the October meeting to discuss how they achieved
this. Mr Hughes proposed that he invites a local accountant to the meeting also to act as
business advisor on the issue.

iv) Tt was agreed that following this meeting a set of tacgets be identified to move the
matter forward,

Action: Funds to be transferred from current account fo Land and Building account.

Boughton Monchelsen representative and accountant to be invited to October meeting

7) Assel register .
i) The addition of the low level lighting onto the asset register at a cost of £18,075
will result in an additional insurance premium of £82.39 ~ agreed
il)  War Memorial — cover currently stands at £20,000 which is considered low.
I Action: Clerk to get quotation for replacement and caver revised accordingly |
i)  Question was raised as to whether the drains in Church Landway fall under South
Bast Water or whether they are a private sewer
Actlon: Clerk to ascertain ownership ]

8) Future banking practices

) Discussion took place regarding the transfer of accounts to Unity Bank. This is an
action that a number of patish councif’s have undertaken with good reviews. This will
allow for internet banking and online monitoring,

iiy  Question raised as to whether a deposit account is also offered by the group as at
present all parish funds sit within such an account and are ‘swept’ to the current account to
cover payments,

Action: Clerk to prepare report for September full council meeting giving comparison

detalls re charges, interest etc.
iii)  Youth Forum account — signatortes on the account need to be amended. If was
therefore agreed that these be Mr Licence and Madams Dunford and Marshall, In the
interim payment to Madginford Hall, in respect of Youth Club hall hire was agreed for
payment from current account.
Action: Forms to be completed and returned to Clerk for action
Funds to be transferred to current account when signatories set up

9) Budget Monitoring — 1st quarter 2011-2012
i) Question was raised regarding the admin budget being over the quarterly target, It
was agreed that this amount has peaks and troughs throughout the year and would be
maintained within the annual figure. '

i)  Classic Car show — following discussions with the insurance company it transpites
those events held on the Green that are not solely parish events will requite their own
events insurance cover. It was proposed that Mr Hill is co-opted to the Community
committee, as organiser of the event, and is asked to hand over ownership to the council,
with him maintaining control of the day, but being accountable to the parish. The same
could be dome for the Sports and Activity Day, although the Community Warden’s
agreement fo the parish council having overall say over the event was questioned,

] Action: Clerk to contact Philip Hill and Dawn Riach-Brown regarding the matter I

i)  Income ~ these figures will be reduced this year following the cancellation of
Music on the Green.

¢ The Rarmers Market income prediction is based on 20 stalls per market, however
this is not being achieved. It was noted that this was set up as a community project and
was not intended {o be an income generator for the parish,
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10) Councillors Allowance
Request from Mr Ash that the committee consider reducing the maximum number of
meetings a councilor could claim for, in terms of the allowance, to the original figure of 20
meetings, since all councillors are now eligible to claim.

% Mr Young proposed that Mr Ash’s proposal be accepted. Agreed

11) Standing Orders
Clerk advised that the 2010 Standing Orders had not been amended to show how Code of
Conduct matters be dealt with. 1t was agreed that all incidents be reported to the Finance
and General Policy committee for action,
Aetion: Clerk to amend Standing Orders and issue fo councillor on disc for reference,
Hard copies available for Councillors upon request,

12) Financial Regulations
i}  Since the adoption of the Financial Regulations in March 2009 NALC have issued
the following amendments:

e Ttem 6.5(b) Increase in amount Clerk can pay out for urgent repairs/replacements
to £500 from £200;

¢ Ttem 11(b) The suggested figure for tenders increased to £20,000
As a matter of note the Clerk advised that at the recent Clerk’s conference MBC issued the
following figures:

+  THRESHOLDS FOR INVITATION TO TENDER (ITT)

v Supplies, Services & Works £75,000 MBC
v Supplies & Services £156,442 EU
4 Works £3,927,260 BU
In response to these figures, Councillors agreed that the threshold should be increased to
£30,000, in light of the costs associated with recent works,
ity  The Clerk referred the following items to the councillors:

» Item 2.5 states that a three year forecast of Revenue and Capital Receipts and
Payments is prepared at the same time as the annual budgel. This has not been carried out
in the past and should be introduced.

Action: Clerk to ensure this matier is considered at budget preparation I
¢ ltem 14.3 — Annual health and safety ingpection of assets to be carried out
| Action: Clerk to carry out 1
<% It was proposed by Mr Hughes, seconded Mr Young that the outlined amendments
be approved, Agreed
Action: Revised Financial Regulations to be issued qlong with Standing Orders to all
councillors on disc

13) General Policy Review
i)  The Clerk presented a list of policies required by law, suggested policies and those
already approved or requiring adoption, It was agreed that all policies be put in place for a
uniform adoption at the October meeting.
] Action: Policies to be prepared for consideration
ify  Grant policy ~ a revised policy was circulated amongst councillors for
consideration. This takes the principles of the current policy and expands them.
# It was proposed by Mr Young, seconded Mr Stark that the revised policy be
adopted. Agreed

Aetion: Policy to he amended }
iy  Youth Club policies — Mr Licence advised that once he had passed his Introduction
to Youth Work course he could be named as the designated Child Protection person within
the policies.

¢ Regarding the club’s first aid policy Mrs Riach-Brown and Mrs Cuming are
qualified first aiders.
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° Question raised regarding first aid fraining for all councillors.
Action: Clerk to ascertain who is first aid trained and tdentify in-house training [

14) Correspondence
i) Request for donation towards cost of purchasing bench in memory of Heather
Langley, The Borough Solicitor has advised that this would be permitied, despite Miss
Langley’s political standing,

Mr Hughes stated that the parish council maintains the memorial benches on the Green,
following installation, as per the Sponsor a Seat policy, developed by Mike Harrls. This
could be the parish council’s confribution to this cause.

Mr Licence felt that as a member of the Bearsted and Thurnham Socicty Miss Langley did
a lot for the parish however, on no other occasion has the parish council contributed to
such a purchase,

Discussion followed regarding the placement of memorial benches. Would Miss Langley’s
bench be more appropriate on BWT land as she was a member of the Trust?

% It was proposed by Mr Young, seconded by Mr Hughes that the parish decline to
contribule for reasons of political neutrality, advising that the parish will take over
maintenance of the bench, following installation,

i) Mr Dyke advised councillors that when accepting chairmanship of the council, in
2010, he had not anticipated that he would be faced with the highly personalised and
vitriolic issues that have occurred in that time. These have included:

o Abusive telephone calls and actions against the Clerk;

» Complaints from resident that the parish council is not doing its job properly;

» Referral, by a councilor, to the monitoring officer regarding the conduct of a

fellow councilor;

¢ Complaint to Paul Carter regarding the employment of the litter picker and

Handyman;

» The most recent of these incidents is one of great concern which has caused
sleepless nights and affected the home life of himself, Mr Young and the Clerk.

During the Clerk’s recent absence, due to training, the parish council computer’s records
wete accessed with personal files being opened, emails sifted to find specific information
and employment refated websites visited. These files were opened in a succinet manner
which would suggest that the perpetrator knew the exact information they were seeking,
The perpetrator is known but what is not known is whether they were acting alone; the
reasoning behind these actions and what the information gained will be used for.

Such actions are a breach of the Data Proteetion act, and therefore a criminal offence.

4 Mr Stark, seconded by Mr Smith proposed that the matter be referred to the police.
Mr Dyke proposed that prior to this the examination of the computer takes place so that all
the facts are before the parish council. A request has been sent to MBC for a technician to
visit the office o ascertain whether these files were just opened or whether they were
copied and/or printed, thus removing them from the confines of the office.

4 The proposal was therefore amended to read: It was proposed that Mr Dyke,
following examination of the computer, refer the matter to the police.

Vote — 6 for, 1 abstention.

Mr Young requested that if any councilor had any information regarding this matter they

approach either himself of Mr Dyke. All information offered will be treated in confidence.
 Action: Clerk to chase MBC regarding computer examination

15) Date of next meeting 18th October 2011

There being no further business the meeting closed at 9,15 p.m,
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Action Points from Finance and General Policy Comumitéee 19th July 2011

Land & Buildings a/c Transfer £5000 Clerk
Boughton Monchelsea rep and accountant to be
invited to October meeting

Asset Register Replacement cost quotation to be requested Clerk
Ownership of sewer to be identified

Future Banking Report on Unity Bank to be prepared Clerk
‘ Youth Forum forms to be completed BD, GL, PM
Cost of hall hire to be transferred to current
account upon completion of forms Clerk
Budget Monitoring ~ Email to Philip Hill and Community Warden Clerk
re ownership of events
Standing Orders Document to be amended and circulated Clerk
Financial Regulations Document to be amended and circulated Clerk

Three year forecast to be introduced
Health and Safety inspection of assets to be
carried out

General Policy Review Policies to be prepared and circulated Clerk
Grant policy to be amended and circulated
First aid courses to be identified

Correspondence Chase MBC re technician visit Clerk

Ttems for Ratification
1) Councillors Allowances — Maximum meeting allowance to be amended to 20

2) Standing Orders, Financial Regutations and Grant policy to be approved

3) Donation towards cost of bench to be refused with maintenance being covered by
PC
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29 Creystones Rd
Bearsted

Kent

MREL5 8PDy

22.7.11

Wendy Licence

Dear Wendy

T have been advised to hold over our proposed meeting for the moment pending other
investigations :

Yours sincerely

Chiis Dyke
Parish Chairman
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PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAY, 14 Trapfield Close
Beavsted

ME14 4HT

26" July 2011

Dear Chris

Further to my letter of 1™ July, I would be grateful if you would inform me what
investigations, if any, have been undertaken in respect of the concerns I have raised,
Please can you also inform me what actions, if any, have been or wilt be taken in respect
of this matter,

Kindly inform me of your findings and actions within 7 days from the date of this letter
or I will have no option but to refer this matter to a higher level.

I ook forward to your reply and to assisting you with your enquiries.

Yours sincerely+

Wendy licence.

/3




APPENDIX B
MBC/11/5 - ANNEX B - Documents Submitted by Mrs Wendy Licence

29 Greystones Rd
Bearsted

Kent

ME15 8PD
31711

Wendy Licence
14 Trapfield Close

Dear Mys Licence

Following your recent letter I have today taken legal and professional advice to olose my

investigation, You need to appreciate to do this I have had 1o tall to a wide range of councitlors and
contaots within the Borough Council.

Your complaint covered thres issues:

1, Appointment of Litter Picker
This was the subject of an earlier investigation following a comp]aint senit to the couneil via
Paul Carter. The legal advice given confirmed by selting a price on the work involved, the
sompetitive element in tendcrmg was removed and the process followed was sound, As you
offered no new evidence on this issue X consider it elosed,

2. Appointment of Handyman

This appointment followed the recommendations we had received following the above. At the
full Council meeting held on the 10" May 2011 I discussed arrangements for filling this post
with colleagues. I asked a range of people including the clerk to submit potential standard
questions to Paul Young to prepare for the interview. During this process Mr Bistone was
asked to confirm the new job did not overlap his existing duties. The copies of emails sent at
that time only relate to this initial trawl, The final choice of questions was onty prepared by
Paul on the day of the interview (27" June 2011) and were sent to me divect, Mr Elstone
obviously had some idest what would be involved buf he did not know what additional
questions had been added, The suggestions from the clerk were obvious things to ask in the
ciroumst'mces

If you have any issues wnh this they should be dlt‘cet(‘.d at myself since the clerk was acting
undel my direction.

3. Insm‘ance of other people working for the léter picker.
Thank you for pointing out that D. Elstone's insurance did not cover this. The policy has now
been amended

1 do not find any issue to reprimand the cletk, Any ‘internal appointment’ always puts the internal
candidate at an advantage if they are good at their job, Conversely they are at a disadvantage if they
have performed badly. Mr Elstone seems to have performed very well as a litter picker, T anticipate he
will do equally well as.our Handyman, .

Yours sincerely

Chuds Dyke
Parish Chairman
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CONFIDENTIAL 14 Trapficld Close
Bearsted
MEL4 43T
2 August 2011
Dear Parish Counciliors

Some of you will be aware of problems that have occurred within the Parish Council’s
office recently,

I was appointed as Assistant Cletk earlier this year to cover holidays and illness on a
casual basis and I was encouraged by Helen Elstone to look at files, if I had time, so that |
could familiavise myself with the Parish Council..In March | was asked to deal with
applications for the Handyman Job as Dave Bistone, trading as Clean & Tidy, was likely
to apply and therefore Helen should not be involved. The advertisement stated that all
applications shoukl be sent to my home address and I passed these on to Chris Dyke on
11.06.11. There was no application from Dave Elstone to my home address.

On 21.06,11, Chris sent the sorted applications via Geoff for me to invite 5 candidates to
interview, including Dave Elstone, and this I did,

I worked in the Parish Office from 27" 20" June as Helen was on a course, Helen asked
me to contact a fireworks company for testimonials and, as I could not find a phone
number or email address, I scrolled back through the received emails hoping to find an
email from the company. The split screen shows a preview of an email without opening
the email and as 1 scrolled down I saw a preview of an email from Jon Hughes about
questions to be asked at interview for the Handyman’s job, From this, it was quite clear
that Helen had sent questions and answers to Jon,

The interviews were held on 27" June (eve) and only 3 out of the 5 candidates attended,
When 1 arrived at the office Chris was photocopying sets of questions to be asked of the |
candidates and they were mainly the questions (and answers) that had been set by Helen.
The interview panel consisted of Chris Dyke, Richard Ash and Pau! Blackmotre. The
candidates were marked out of § for their answers, There had been no job description
and the advert had been for a Handyman so neither of the other 2 candidates expected the
horticultoral questions which had been set by Helen. The results were counted and Dave
Elstone scored the highest. I asked the panel if I could speak to them in confidence and L
told them that Helen had written the Qs & A’s and I sxpressed my concern about this
sitwation. Chris told me that he was aware that the questions had gone through the office
and my concerns were dismissed, 1 was told to write 1o Dave offering him the
appointment and when he formally accepted I should write to the other candidates to
inform them they had been unsuccessful,

1 felt very concerned about this as I had believed that [ bad been involved to ensure that
the appointment had been made in a proper and fair way and I was concerned that if this
came to light it would reflect badly on the Pavish Council, So I phoned Chxis on Tues
28" June 1o express my concern, He told me that Jon had given him 3 questions three

75




APPENDIX B
MBC/11/5 - ANNEX B - Documents Submitted by Mrs Wendy Licence

weeks ago and that he (Chris) had written 3 more. (There were in fact 5 Q & A’s which
Helen had written. and none that I could see from Jon,) 1 was told to send the
confirmation letter to Dave and send apologies o the other candidates. 1 continued 1o
stress my concer because the emails clearly showed that not only did Helen write the
Q’s & A’s but she also sent a copy to Dave, Chtis told me to give him coples of the
emails. T did not have the car on Wednesday and 1 got Geoff to drop the emails off to
Chris after Youth Club, Up to this point I do not think that Chyis knew that Helen had
actually written the Qs & A’s.

On 1* July, T wrote and hand delivered a letter to Chris formally expressing my concern
about the matter and asking that, as a whistle blower, my disclosutes to him be treated in
a confidential and sensitive manner and that the matter be properly investigated, On 11"
July T received a reply saying that as 1 had marked my lotter “Private & Confidential he
could not discuss it with anyone, On Thurs 14" July I phoned Chris and he led me to
believe that he would discuss the matter with Richard Ash and I agreed to this. He told
me that he wanted to meet with me and Geoff and that he would ask Richard to be
present. He would not give me any details as to what he wanted to talk to me about and I
was told to call back on Friday and give him some dates. I phoned Chris on Friday
morning and explained that Geoff didn’t want to get involved as he felt, quite rightly, this
was nothing to do with him. I asked Chils what he wanted to talk about but he would not
give me any details and said he would call back [ater,

I did not hear anything from Chuis so 1 called him again Sunday evening, He told me he
had written a Jefter to me which he would hand deliver on Monday. 1 received the letter
on Monday which was again requesting a meeting and suggesting that someone else be
present, again no defails were given. [ asked Pat Marshall if she would be willing to
come with me as I felt that she is a senior member of the Council and is knowledgeable
of Parish Council matters and extremely (rustworthy, Pat kindly agreed to be present as
an independent and unbiased person and I ematled dates to Cheis for a meeting,

Chuis read my email on Tuesday 19" July, Later that evening there was a meeting of the
Finance and General Purposes Cominittee of which Geoff is a member. During that
meeting Chris told the Committee of problems in the office with petsonal files being
tooked at and possibly downloaded and that this was in breach of the Data Protection Act
and therefore a criminal offence (you might like to see the draft minutes for full details)
and the finger was quite clearly pointed at me! The minutes read that “It was proposed
that Mr Dyke, following examination of the computer, refer the matter to the police”,
This was carried with 1 abstention,

This happened in an open meeting and as this matter is now in the public arena I feet it is
right to write to each one of you. I had gone fo Chris, as Chalrman, because I had thought
it was the right and proper thing to do. I believed that the problems with the appointment
of the Handyman should be dealt with internally so that the Council’s integrity would
remain intact,
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[ have taken legal advice and [ have been told that for Chuis to call me to meeting without
providing information is against ACAS guidelines and I have a wrilten grievance against
him, if I so chose. [ have also been told that as this is an internal matter it does not
breach the Data Protection Act (if this is what Paul Fisher has advised Chris it would
seem the Council may have some very serious problems with his legal advice).

1 am still concerned at the irregularities with the appointment of the Handyman. I have
acted in the best inferests of the Council at all times and belioved that T was taking the
right course of action by referring the matter to the Chairman,

Although T feel somewhat betrayed in what has happened to date, I am writing to all
members of the Council in the hope that this matter can be fully and properly investigated
internally, thus avoiding bringing the Council into disrepute. Instead of wondering who I
can frust in this, I have decided to trust each and every one of you, as 1 have had no
opportunity to state my case, and my hope is that you will look into what has happened.

Thankyou for taking the time to read this. [ am willing to answer any questions and to
help in any way I can. '

Yours very sincerely

Wendy Licence

77




APPENDIX B
MBC/11/5 - ANNEX B - Documents Submitted by Mrs Wendy Licence

Letter from Mrs Licence hitp//epw.mail.aol.cony34047-111/talktalk-5/en-gh/mail/PrintMess...

15

From: Clerk <clerk@bearstedparishcouncit.gov.uk>

To: Barbara Dunford <barbara.dunford@btopenworid.com>; BERNARD CARINE
<bernard.carine@btinternet.com=; Chris Dyke <cdyke@onetel.com>; Dennis Spooner
<thespoonergang@hotmail.com=; Geoff Llcence <geoff.14@tatkialk net>: Helen Cuming
<helen@mananafsnat.co.uk>; Jonathan Hughes <jhughes@advent-electrical.co.uk>; Michael Stark
<mstarkd@tiscall.co.tk>; Mike Cuming <mike@manana fsnet.co,uk>; Pat Marshatl
<p.marshali360@btinternet.com>; Paul Blackmore <blackmors_p@yahoo.co.uks: Paul Young
<paulyoung@talktalk.net>; Richard Ash <richardash@maidstone.goviuks: Trevor Smith
<trevor.smith77@talktalk.net>

Bubject: Letter from Mrs Licence

Date: Fri, 8 Aug 2011 13:17

nview of the letter circulated from Mrs Licence yesterday Chris will be calling an extraordinary parish
coundil meeting to discuss the Issues fully. Date to be circulated in due course.

Regards

Helen Elstone
Mrs Helen Elstone FILCM

,  Clerk to Bearsted Parish Councll

' This email and any attachments to it may be confidential and are intended sofely for the
use of the Individual to whom it is addressed.
Any views or opinfons expressed are solely those of the author and do not necessarily
represent those of Bearsted Patish Council,
I you are not the intended reciplent of this email, you must neither take any action based
upon its contents, nor copy or show it to anyone.
Please contact the sender if you believe you have received this email in error

/8
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Agenda Bxtraordinaty Meeting 110811 higpif/epweanail aok.cony34047-11 1/talktalk-5/en-gb/mail/ PrintMess. .

From: Clerk <clesk@besrstedparishcouncil.gov.uk>
Tor Barbara Dunford <barbara,dunford@btopenworld.com>; BERNARD CARINE

<bernard.catine@btinternet.com=; Chris Dyke <cdyke@onetel.com>; Dennis Spooner
<thespoonergang@hotmail.com>; Geoff Licence <geoff. 14@talktalknet>; Helen Cuming
<helen@manana.fsnet.co.uk>; Jonathan Mughes <jhughes@advant-electrical.co.uk>; Michael Stark
<mstarkd@tiscali.co.uk>; Mike Cuming <mike@manana.fsnet.co.uk>; Pat Marshall
<p.marshall356@btinternst.com>; Paul Blackmore <blackmore_p@yahoo.co.uk>; Paul Young
<paulyoung@talktali.net>; Richard Ash <richardash@maldstone.gov.uk>; Trevor Smith
<trevorsmith77@falktalk.net>

Subject: Agenda Extraordinary Meefing 110811
Date: Sun, 7 Aug 2011 14:52
Aftachments: Agenda_Extraordinary_Meeting_110811.pdf (145K}

lattach agenda for extracrdinary meeting to be held this Thursday 11t August,

Regards

Helen
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http:/7epw.mail.aol.comv34047-1 11 Atatktalk-5/en-gb/mail/PrintMess. .

i

From: Parish Councit Clerk <clerk@bearstedparishcouncil.gov.uk>

To: Barbara Dunford <barbara,dunford@btopenworld.com»; BERNARD CARINE

<bernard.carine@btinternet.com>: Dennis Spooner <thespoonergang@hotmail.coms; Geoff Licence
<geoft. 14@talkialk.net>; Helen Cuming <helen@manana.fsnat.co.uk>; Jonathan Hughes <jhughes@advent-
eleclrical.co.uk>; Michaet Stark <mslarkd@tiscali.co.uk>; Mike Cuming <mike@manana.fsnet.co.uk>; Pat
Marshall <p.marshall356@btinternet.com>; Paul Blackivare <blackmore,_p@yahioo.co.uk>; Paul Young
<paul.young@talktalk.net>; Richard Ash <richardash@maidstone.gov.uk>; Trevor Siith
<trevor.smith7 7@talklalk.net>

Subject: FW. meeling

Date: Tue, 16 Aug 2011 10:07

————— Oxiginal Message~—~r—w

From: Chris Dyke (mailto:cdyke@onetel.aon)
Sent: 15 Rugust 2011 18:13

To: clark@bearstedparisheouncil.,gov.uk
Subject: meeting

I am very soxry I had to cancel the extraordinary meeting due last week.
When ¥ arrzived home that evening I was informed we had been raided by
intexnet and lost a great deal of money. Naturally we were somewhat stunned.
The bank has now returned the money so all is well.

Irom now onwards holidays mean the main players in the event are not all
available until the week commencing Sth Sept. We can look at all the
paperwork and you can ask any questions you wish to place.

I will ask Helen to set a date and venue. This is in preference Lo tacking
it onto the normal meeting as such sensitive jssues are not best discussed
late in the evening

Rogards
Chris
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Head of Legal services C/,(' .

MBC

Dear Paul

Complaint of Member Misconduct ref MBC/11/5

Thank you for your letter of the 20" Sept.

My first comument is that Mrs Licence is not an employee of the authority as she claims. She was offesed
work on a self employed basis when the clerk is absent. Her duties were limited to opening mail, checking
emails and selling bin bags. She is the third person carrying out this role in the last year, which is on an ad
hoe basis,

My record of events shows

£,

N

In the auturn of 2010 the parish finalty parted company with the village handyman services
provided by Tony Croucher of TCC services. Both sides wers unhappy with the atrangement, The
council with the level of service provided and TCC with the money paid.

The Environment Committee chose to advertise for someone to carry out litter picker duties based
on the national minimum rate of pay. They had to choose between Mr Elstone or the son of Tony
Croucher from TCC. In view of the above it is no surprise Mr Elstone was appointed.

I subsequently veceived a complaint via Paul Carter of KCC, questioning the methodology of this
appointment. I consulted yourself and you confirmed since the pay rate was set in advance there
was no competition on price and the procedure was sound. You did offer advice on how fo
improve matters i the future by not using Mrs Elstone in any future appointment involving her
husband.

[ discussed this with Mrs Elstone and colleagues after our meeting when it was declded to seek a

handyman service. We decided to:

»  Remove Mrs Elstone from the process and use Mrs Licence instead

¢ Route applications via Mrs Licence.

¢ Clr John Hughes opted to stay out of the process because he knows Mr Elstone well,

»  We decided to draw up a list of ideal questions to use in the interview. [ asked everyone who
felt they had any ideas of questions to send them 1o Cle P, Young so he could draw up a final
list and scoring plan.

We received over 20 replies with a late entry from Mr Elstone passed to me by hand in the week
before the short listing,

Together with Clr Ash and Clr Blackmore we short listed § candidates of whom only 3 attended,
The actual list of questions was delayed and only passed to me be email from Cir Young on the
afternoon of the day of the interviews, It came to my home etnail and was not seen by anyone until
1 printed it off that evening in the office. We added another gquestion by hand 1o the list once Clr
Ash and Blackmore had seen the final version.

We took care that each interviewer kept his opinion to himself and the weighting until all the
scores were collected, .

Using the score system Mr Elstone came out the clear winner, One candidate was quite unsuited
and the other looked reasonable but lived on the other side of Maidstone.
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My comments are:

1. The original complaint was made against Mrs Elstone, [ have accepted I was in ervor in asking her
for her ideas of questions, Hence any blame remains mine only.

2. Neither Mrs or Mr Elstone ever saw the final version of the questions. After our initial discussions
I took care not to route any further work via the office up to and including the day of the interview,

3. Mrs Licence did rajse her concemns on the evening but I found it difficult to respond since I knew
nobody had seen the final question paper. On reflection overnight I asked her to forward what she
had seen on BPCs emails. This confirmed item 2. 1 consulted Clrs Ash Young and decided the
process was sound and Mrs Elstone had not acted improperly.

Subsequent events/comments

1. On her return to work Mrs Elstone discovered a range of documents see atached had been
opened in her absence. Mrs Licence makes great play of having stumbled across certain
emails. She never explained why she was opening other sensitive documents involving the
clerk and Clr Ash's Code of Conduct issue. She does not explain why she felt the need to
work back through over 200 emails to find the evidence she provides.

2, 1felt we now had a second issue on our hands. Somebody was accessing the parish cornputer,
They knew exactly what to lock for and where. I do not feel Mrs Licence was capable of
doing this as the issues were too complex. She could have opened the computer but would
have needed advice and goidance,

3. With over 20 years experfence as a union officer and official I am aware that a common
response to a ‘Whistleblower Complaint’ is a counter charge. 1 was very concerned not to be
seen to go down this route without evidence, In particular I wanted to see if we had any
evidence that these documents had been printed off or transmitted outside the office in which
case the Data protection Act could have been contravened,

4. Toonsulted you on this issue and took your advice to get in an IT specialist. We were not able
to get beyond seeing what had been opened, '

5. When reporting to the council I did not mention Mrs Licence by name, nor anyone else, My
thoughts at that time were that she may have been manipulated by someone else. 1 opted 1o
wait and see if any concrete evidence were to arise showing who had opened the documents
and if someone outside the office had seen them, What evidence I subsequently obtained is in
para 4 of document 14 in the complaint file.

Murs Licence complains that I did not investigate her complaint but I did investigate the complaint
against the clerk. 1 have some worries about how we collected the questions but foel we went as
far as we could to carry out a fair process. A good internal candidate will always have an
advantage over an unknown outsider. Conversely if' Mr Elstone had not done well in his litter
picking duties he would have not been shortlisted,

;t was very difficult to respond to Mrs Licence or meet her because we had two problems running
in parallel. The DP Act issue took precedence in my mind and I was advised not to mest her until
this was resolved,

Mrs Licence complains that we cancelled meetings with the council to discuss the issues, The first
was cancelled on the day concerned. When I arrived home I found my wife very upset. Somebody
had removed her life’s savings from a savings account. T was in no state to run a meeting and Cly
Young would not have aceess to all the information. In deference to my wife T did not want the
precise reasons for this decision fo be widely known, though I did explain to councillors at a later
date afler the money was recovered. Subsequent meeting proposals were difficult because many of
the main players including myself were on holiday.

T hope this helps your enquiries,

1 woul'd like you to contact my predecessor Clr P, Walton and ask him to explain why he advised
me vsing Mrs Licence was a mistake in view of certain events at the Downs Mail,
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! also suggest you ask Mus Licence how someone gained access to the attached list of documents,
who saw them and what was the interest in the Code of Conduct complaint against Clr R. Ash.

Yours sincerely

C. Dyke
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

Candidate Name: __

Date / Time: %) Z"S ;73, ,/ LIS//,' .

Question

Correct Answer

Candidate
Score (1 to
5)

Notes

What qualifications / experience do you
possess to help you carry out the
Handyman duties?

Candidates will need to display evidence of
Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers
Licence, relevant industry qualifications
ete.

Relevant real world experience also
required in handyman duties, horticulture
etc.

Higwpd - [froarey Vi
8i/ G - ReTle2r 97
(OrY,

M{WM G INET-

{12 Mgl sEL VR
When working in the Parish cutting back | Candidate should have a waste carriers U Net U (VESD (TBp
hedgerows etc,, how do you propose to licence or intend to burn it on site as any { "77 s r’) P ' v ﬁ\ U
dispose of the arisings? other act is unlawful. \7 it T ¢ ”ﬁ}
When working around the Parish you Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates R : N7 T i
notice something that you feel needs cannot take any action without prior f';} MM L}}S & 7#/2{

attention. What action should you take?

approval from the Clerk.

<) M e

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from
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W4 stttmnrr

14
this? their te % z ¢ ;. o
o ¥ @ Wwty UL RISE 1 fojaney
What prep work and paperwork (if any) A Risk Assessment relating to each task ' ' 985~

should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

undertaken will be required

Pissrel | s Opbry o

) '

Can you give us examples of similar work

Ability to demonstrate previous work &

PN AR Eititg,

to thatsequired earrfechout beforergiving—| clients would be desired. @ Ty
examptes? 16 WpWPYP) Lofs, - e
Ty AW ey T
The Handyman role will require you to be | Candidates will need to demonstrate their ]
flexible on hours - what are your thoughts | willingness to be flexible and show @ %} PZ/E) 2&0 ﬁ é/ U V 3 b)
on this? commitment to possible unsociable hours 1 J ~ -
as and when needed, ! ZWWV /](' /%/M P b/

Are you able to give us details of

Successful references from previous

WH

ﬁfffy / L/{;

fe 7 1 haract Id b ay
references Z;r;,?rz,;ers / character references would be ( 5) 17(/;'}1/ /¢ ///’7512 7/ ?’)7 g
B (o) PnlshaE I
Gy AN/ 772
AL AR L R
3 :\
TOTAL SCORE [25)
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews -~ Questions for Candidates
] o

XB

Candidate Name: . 2/ >/
Date / Time: g-te . My
Question Correct Answer Candidate Notes
Score (1 to
5)
What qualifications / experience doyou | Candidates will need to display evidence of Oviren B Sens
possess to help you carry out the Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers T‘: el

Handyman duties?

Licence, relevant industry qualifications
etc.

Relevant real world expertence also
required in handyman duties, horticulture
etce.

*

(U o

psh (o S~

A

‘When working in the Parish cutting back
hedgerows etc., how do you propose to
dispose of the arisings?

Candidate should have a waste carriers
licence or intend to burn it on site as any
other act is unlawful.

Nay @ Mczocs

When working around the Parish yon
notice something that you feel needs
attention. What action should you take?

Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
cannot take any action without prior
approval from the Clerk.

Neet Sidyy 2T .
b

Tere sape
T Wd%,.d’ Hele

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk -
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from

Coe o Si”
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this?

their team

What prep work and paperwork (if any)
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

Can you give us examples of similar work
to that required carried out before, giving
examples?

Ability to demonstrate previous work &
clients would be desired

The Handyman role will require you to be | Candidates will need to demonstrate their .
flexible on hours ~ what are your thoughts | willingness to be flexible and show HQ/}( Mo
on this? commitment to possible unsociable hours 9]
as and when needed, Rl a2y
Sy ’F_f@c
Are you able to give us details of Successful references from previous ) ca
references? employers / character references would be 4o e.

desired

.
2 (s £

&
VAR P ) K 2 9] l\;]?,s»‘«,()
N

TOTAL SCORE
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

Candidate Name:

B

Date / Time: 1?/ (dolle)
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes
Score (1 to
5)

What qualifications / experience do you
possess to help you carry out the
Handyman duties?

Candidates-will need to display evidence of
Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers
Licence, relevant industry qualifications
etc.

Relevant real world experience also

(e

(,“\anno(‘é‘ mean P“C"L{,v{“j M
basa s &
Qugseh CC‘-‘—“ Coxlont
6ﬁ;nw -
Predim &/Lu»er

onl

required in handyman duties, horticulture b h &{m\l@
etc. ul M -
}
} C Q_\@ G&).( C,FL 3 pepnl A
When working in the Parish cutting back | Candidate should have a waste carriers Nete [ aen S e £ cewder
hedgerows etc., how do you propose to licence or intend to burn it on site as any ( m 0 9(2L .
dispose of the arisings? other act is unlawful. ’ ?

When working around the Parish you
notice something that you feel needs
attention. What action should you take?

Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
cannot take any action without prior
approval from the Clerk,

il a,LL 9@(‘6/ .

natoc be  redévart

petts

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legistation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from

U
e

W(_‘-‘}L, (,LL *\.{_,Ljhjié LRV ) -t

g
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this?

their team

What prep work and paperwork (if any)
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

Dungere, Ht & Tooucs
@L%}"’t\‘?@g C L& Cﬁlé_c{{l_% .

Can you give us examples of similar work
to thatrequired carried out before, giving
examples?

Ability to demonstrate previous work &
clients would be desired.

Qusgihs Gurl,
{ ms@a:»l/u% hibcher. .

The Handyman role will require you to be
flexible on hours -~ what are your thoughts
on this?

Candidates will need to demonstrate their
willingness to be flexible and show
commitment to possible unsociable hours
as and when needed,

Flesible Job -same
coep. pluand paink. | .
*‘:-/-em{) v».(q@.sc;b'{g,-

Are you able to give us details of
references?

Successful references from previous
employers / character references would be
desired

9,2&

G

Peninden Mealdh ¥

Occ .,Lgml:}rng
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

7

Candidate Name: _ : )
Date / Time: ? ”("5 GD}/é///
: — rJ&(??ﬂ(!,{;&f,pL &
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes - N /}7 7n/
Score (1 to . , N
5) 25 | Qg 42

What qualifications / experience do you
possess to help you carry out the
Handyman duties?

Candidates will need to display evidence of
Public Liability Insurance/Waste Carrigfs
Licence, relevyzzt industry qualifications
etc.

Relevant real world experience also
required in handyman duties, horticulture
etc. v

SuV,

o
O by 4001
RE_ ok Sl [ e

odl/S | ) Jusoadndir

i~ ﬂ/\
Uepeeheds (¢

)

When working in the Parish cutting back
hedgerows etc., how do you propose to
dispose of the arisings?

Candidate should have a waste carriers
licence or intend to burn it on site as any
other act is unlawful,

Nig LyeE R Y
02 pan if Jortboy i

When working around the Parish you
notice something that you feel needs
attention. What action should you take?

Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
cannot take any action without prior
approval from the Clerk.

Plvg (1t ¢ ot

:(/'\g ?'

L W”/Qf _ 5%/(7/ V4 1 (;};} N gl

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct

number of suitably qualified peaple from
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Wnlp S8

5 -Uppgse Wiay,
|

this? i . s o i gl ks )
i their team (25005 #0186 G g
sod o 4§ < ~ v/
What prep work and paperwork (ifany) | 4 Risk Assessment relating to each task SOV AW - HE /4
should be carried out before undertaking | undertaken witl be required T A
any task? @ 1o - ﬁ*ﬁﬁ ﬁgj&%ﬁ/’”@ﬂ %’? L{
Can you give us examples of similar work | Ability to demonstrate previous work & s/ ' VI
g / to that required carried out before, giving | clients would be desired, @ % ;\/ U)T‘}’;SW &% /’)”mf /ﬁ
‘ examples? - jm

VI 195 ol e
The Handyman role will require you to be | Candidates will need to demonstrate their Ne P .
flexible on hours ~ what are your thoughts | willingness to be flexible and show 4 Ve P 7 /Z?I‘v/ Ve }/ # ‘\75/ L
on this? commitment to possible unsociable hours N N

as and when needed. Qase” ?’ ’3 ™"
Are you able to give us details of Successful references from previous s SN 7
references? employers / character references would be (g/ ity (g i’/((Z/y { i /'/
. desired o, ‘7 o i
ViS5 VI L pup TR e
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

Candidate Name:

Date / Time: A7 [ (60
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes
Score (1 to
5)
What qualifications / experience doyou | Candidates will need to display evidence of QA, (cuab o, ra. olrim
possess to help you carry out the Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers \S a;{;.

Handyman duties?

Licence, relevant industry qualifications
elc.

Relevant real world experience also
required in handyman duties, horticulture
etc.

Pw‘? e Lfab/ z(’y’a Ing .
B ey}
Wagle Cartiers (iance.

(_;-wna to do gﬂwp%rﬂ
Mc.x‘-«, Pé\([

When working in the Parish cutting back
hedgerows etc, how do you propose to
dispose of the arisings?

Candidate should have a waste carriers
licence or intend to burn it on site as any
other act is unlawful.

i A remetl
g/gw‘?’l C‘Y‘- 9'(

¢ c-m,\]oug(, b\,u:u?

When working around the Parish you
notice something that you feel needs
attention, What action should you take?

Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
cannot take any action without prior
approval from the Clerk.

Phens.. 3 cha [ H@{m .
dgcacs - il

fer larsh - acds on v

bach

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from

Loone + malz

cn.
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this?

their team

What prep work and paperwork (if any)
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

LA,

1€¢a{«,p¢=,§j«(‘\ CA.[CQZCE. .

Canyou give us examples of similar work
to that required carried out before, giving
examples?

Ability to demonstrate previous work &
clients would be desired.

Rl earance

voas LG cequr @ Qﬁ\C’LC

Cilder fidy. o

e sk
Rarten J% { I):}Ztmf

The Handyman role will require you to be
flexible on hours - what are your thoughts
on this? :

Candidates will need to demonstrate their
willingness to be flexible and show
commitment to possible unsociable hours
as and when needed,
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Are you able to give us details of
references?

Successful references from previous
employers / character references would be
desired

Guikbch Yodddh Ca fe
cleone™
e (%cl,/c{,l-zé,.é

Ca ‘/’\é’,

Other oce uJ“XJ)ZoaS?

?/augrjwm/; .z
P

(s

TOTAL SCORE

o

93




\__.h/”'/\

)

o

MBC/11/5 - ANNEX D - Documents 2 Submitted by Parish Councillor Christopher Dyke

BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

APPENDIX B

Candidate Name: wy/
B B’
Date / Time: ___(~%% Aj/
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes
Score {1to
5)
‘What qualifications / experience do you Candidateswill need to display evidence of «t\ o 2. s

possess to help you carry out the
Handyman duties?

Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers
Licence, relevant industry qualifications
etc.

Relevant real world experience also

required in handyman duties, horticulture |-

ete.

5

SUEE

When working in the Parish cutting back
hedgerows etc., how do you propose to
dispose of the arisings?

Candidate should have a waste carriers
licence or intend to burn it on site as any
other act is unlawful.

5

When working around the Parish you
notice something that you feel needs
attention. What action should you take?

Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
cannot take any action without prior
approval from the Clerk.

e—N,
C

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety |
legislation. How would you deal with

9
Handyman should undertake a Risk!
Assessment and engoge the correct
number of suitably qualified people from

/
2
e
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this? their team
What prep work and paperwork (if any) A Risk Assessment relating to each task > Vi % =8 T .
should be carried out before undertaking | undertaken will be required [ N W < ST
any task? ———— TR
Can you give us examples of similar work | 4bility to demanstrate previous work & N
to that required carried out before, giving | clients would be desired. i3 L\M&:Fo—-q £ ﬁamf
examples? §
The Handyman role will require you to be | Candidates will need to demonstrate their 5
flexible on hours — what are your thoughts | willingness to be flexible and show wﬁ%j" 'E”V\fs Con
on this? commitment {o possible unsociable hours v N ’
as and when needed. A—
Are you able to give us details of Successful references from previous AL U
references? employers / character references would be L
desired
Wkl ofae o e da ok 4

2 A ?
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

Candidate Name: __,

vao | PHely

Date / Time: ]
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes
Score (1 to
5) :
What qualifications / experience do you Candidates will need to display evidence of VI ST 1k 3
possess to help you carry out the Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers wf
Handyman duties? Licence, relevant industry qualifications I‘f P 57,/‘/ “‘&7'\',277@\//{‘4"
etc. '; .
Relevant real world experience also . 4% [‘[n Jj éﬁ LWz V) j
required in handyman duties, horticulture “7 [ /\«Q f é}\ﬂ‘[y/ VE [ty FiR7em ’
etc. ’
F////'t/ f-lé.’ /@JBMM/
When working in the Parish cutting back | Candidate should have a waste carriers ,
hedgerows etc., how do you propose to licence or intend to burn it on site as any ﬂ/ﬁ M’Mﬁ i
dispose of the arisings? other act is unlawful. v
then working around the Parish you Refer to the Parish ({Ierk as candia'fztes . It ) ]’W?‘}B 77e i
notice something that you feel needs cannot take any action without prior I Wi P 7%
attention. What action should you take? | approval from the Clerk. Wi Gy g N il /~U5’-
Some tasks may require more than one Handyman should undertake a Risk 1 p

person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from
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this?

their team

Lt Ty — Wdtfog

What prep work and paperwork (if any)
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

Deigs o) I

Can you give us examples of similar work
to-thatrequired-carrietout before giving
AP (i1 Vpoif Do |y ERAS

Ability to demonstrate previous work &
clients would be destred.

79,

The Handyman role will require you to be
flexible on hours - what are your thoughts
on this?

Candidates will need to demonstrate their
willingness to be flexible and show
commitment to possible unsociable hours
as and when needed,

57

Are you able to give us details of
references?

Successful references from previous
employers / character references would be
desired

§3*
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

4@,

. . . PR
Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates Lﬁ“‘ﬁ—\ \SWﬁ
Candidate Name: . i1 ’
/
Date / Time: %‘P‘\" o>
Question Correct Answer Candidate | Notes
Score (1 to
5)

What qualifications / experiencedo you | Candidateswill need to display evidence of ?/{ - jw{wf”
possess to help you carry out the Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers LN
Handyman duties? Licence, relevant industry qualifications . i W

etc. 2 —i

Relevant real world experience also >y les 3««*’%

required in handyman duties, horticulture ’)LM

ete. e B ") \\xg\r/g;/u, Fhr

i | = B AL, —

‘When working in the Parish cutting back | Candidate should have a waste carriers “\C_“”‘L‘*"j ’
hedgerows etc,, how do you propose to licence or intend to burn it on site as any o sg e w,,,,_ i
dispose of the arisings? other act is unlawful. %
When working around the Parishyou Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates
notice something that you feel needs cannot take any action without prior g

attention, What action should you take?

approval from the Clerk.

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from
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this?

their team

What prep work and paperwork (if any)
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

Can you give us exatnples of similar work | Ability to demonstrate previous work & beoeal Sooachecd”

to that required carried out before, giving | clients would be desired. é _ O‘k}ﬁ\; .

examples? o o St
TN AT AT

The Handyman role will require you to be | Candidates will need to demonstrate their S prv.

flexible on hours - what are your thoughts

willingness to be flexible and show

Ekr_&a&,ﬁbd%k%

on this? commitment to possible unsociable hours
as and when needed,
Are you able to give us details of Successful references from previous
references? employers / character references would be
desired
{hell ¢hre g diz- 4o GH Az i ;
e AA/C*\NUZSOLV il ﬂﬂ i GL e K R
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Handyman Interviews - Questions for Candidates

XB

Candidate Name:
Date / Time: 22 (1%e
Question Correct Answer Candidate Notes
gc):ore (1to , Bop re e

What qualifications / experience do you
possess to help you carry out the
Handyman duties?

Candidateswill need to display evidence of
Public Liability Insurance, Waste Carriers
Licence, relevant industry qualifications
etc.

Relevant real world expertence also
required in handyman duties, horticulture
etc.

; [ ¢ N 5
Eleckst clan Gen - nehid
0o paeples gamém};%
CWJ.%E . g(wesrui/"dlﬁ - ong
P('{"""v(\";ﬂﬁ »

fé bri cé,@

When working in the Parish cutting back
hedgerows etc, how do you propose to

Candidate should have a waste carriers
licence or intend to burn it on site as any

dispose of the arisings? other act is unfawful, o Pass

When working around the Parish you Refer to the Parish Clerk as candidates 1 day : < {L 4
notice something that you feel needs cannot take any action without prior ) ([ \?/a' e [LL . cadk
attention. What action should you take? | approval from the Clerk. a fc'v‘ﬂg,cr beem we /\a\ o

¢ Wt&‘ﬁ,(‘:é

derb

Some tasks may require more than one
person under Health and Safety
legislation. How would you deal with

Handyman should undertake a Risk
Assessment and engage the correct
number of suitably qualified people from

Vel ha,?‘b:)
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this?

their team

What prep work and paperwork (if any)
should be carried out before undertaking
any task?

A Risk Assessment relating to each task
undertaken will be required

clhod obalenmba

¢ !\L“é‘i‘lfi,\j :

Can you give us examples of similar work
to that required carried out before, giving
examples?

Ability to demonstrate previous work &
clients would be desired.

?66*;\/{,6‘7 3@%9 in Plu

i gewdin \ovs

P H H
Mo odzera

cxrcdaoasl:

The Handyman role will require you to be
flexible on hours — what are your thoughts
on this?

Candidates will need to demonstrate their
willingness to be flexible and show
commitment to possible unsociable hours
as and when needed.

Are you able to give us details of
references?

Successful references from previous
employers / character references would be
desired
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Becent Bocuments

Mew
Contract of employment

HMRC duplicated P45 CEP

Handyman contract

i

Qpen

[ L

Disciplinary procedure
Conyert pinary p

un

Grievance Procedure

WHISTLEBLOWING

WHAT THE PARISH COUNCIL HAS DOME 50 FA...
List of Parish Coundil Powers and who does w.,,
Kevin letter re Code of Conduct 120410
Complaint re R Ash 3002311

Print ¥ P Fishier re Register of Members Interests 17061

Leg

Sae

0

Save As B
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grievancefl]

Prepare  F brs M Hobbs.Market Manager
Letterhead

Send B Renaissance Crafts lether to parents 2011
Acceptance letter 2011

Publishh # Covering letter registration form 2011
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Hit From Your

Find your Jocal Gl 1476
Chocolate Eating and Tea Duinking.., - the Bubble The People Who Really Benefit From Your
Chocolate Eating and Tea Drinking.. -~ The Bubble school quizpdl (application/pdf Obicet) Church
resources | Home | Traideraft Emploving “zero hours” staff Hvi Revenue & Customs: Employment
status: employved or seif-employed? HM Revenue & Customs: Employment status: emploved or seif -
emploved? Tax and National Insurance when employing people in vour home ; Directgov - Money,
tax and benefits Employving the self-emploved eraployving the self emploved - Google Search
emplovment law - Google Search Running a Business | Top 10 Lepal tips Risk assessment: avoiding
danger Upcoming changes 1o the law for SMEs Holiday Entitlement for Sale Traders | Holidays Self-
Emploved Holiday Entitlement for Sole Traders | Holidays Sel-Emploved Employing the self-
emploved Emploving “zero hours” staff Guide to written statements of emplovment Guide (o
written statements of employmeni emploving the self emploved - Google Search Employving the self-
emploved Hiring self-emploved stafl falytrade quiz - Google Search auiz_aw.pdf (application/paf
Obiect) primary _quiz 09.pdf {application/pdf Oblect) fairtrade guiz - Google Search Divine
Chocolate divine - Google Search Youth Resources - Tearfund Step up 1o the plate - Tearfund Pagk

3.t (application/pdi Obiect) Yhe Peonle Whe Really Bel

fundraising resaurces. sweet justice.pdl (application/pdl Objecl) Chureh resources | Home |

Traideraft publications facisheets brief history of traidersft.pdf {application/pdf Object)
pubilications why bother.ndf (application/ndf Obiect) Factsheets | Home | Traideraft Resources |
Home i Traiderafl Producer support ~ "going the exira mile” | Home | Traideraft What s fair rage?
{ Home | Tratderaft traideradt - Google Search The People Who Really Benefit From Your Chocolate
Lating and Tea Drinking.. — The Bubbie The People Who Really Benefit From Your Chocolate Fating
and Tea Drinking... — The Bubble Fairtrade ~ The Bubble chacolate - The Bubble The People Who
Really Benefit From Your Checolate Eating angd Yea Drinking.., = The Bubble The People Who Really

From Yeur Chocolate Ealing and Tea Driaking.. - The Bubble UK Tearcradl - The Subble Created -

Falr Trede Gifts - Faic Trade Jewellery - Fairly Traded Gifts Irom_Around the World tearcraft uk «

Google Search tearcraft - Google Search The Fajrtrade Foundation | Fairtrade - Resources The
Fairirade Foundation. § Fairtrade - Sudolky The Fairtrade Foundation | Fun & Games One World
irtrade games Be the lifeblood

Week - Downloadable Games Childrons Global Footprints Quiz
animation The chocolate trade pame fairtrade games - Google Search falrivade - Google Search
Fairtrade - CAERQD fairtrade games - Google Search chocolate-trade-game-introductory-

activities tem16-38179. hdf {application/pdf Ohject) fairtrade games - Google Search fajrtrade -
Google Search Rivine Chocolate - Miscellaneous Diving Chocolate - Fairtrade Divine Chocolate - Facts

Rivine chocolate divine chocolate - Google Search Dovwnloads - Tearfund For Churches - Tearfund
Resources - Tearfund tearfund - Goopte Search The Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade - History The
Fairtrade Foundation |_Fairtrade - History The Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade - The Fairtrade
Foundation The Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade - Fairtrade is unique The Fairtrade Foundation |
Fairtrade - FAQs The Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade The Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade -
Fairtrade is unique The Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade - Who needs Falrtrade? The Fairtrade
Foundation_| Fairtrade - Facts and figures £14_church action guide 2011 download.pdf

Fairtrade Foundation | Fairtrade - Downloadable campaign resources
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29 Greystones Rd
Bearsted

Kent

ME1S5 8PD
31711

Wendy Licence
14 Trapfield Close

Dear Mrs Licence

Following your recent letter T have today taken legal and professional advice to close my
mvestigation. You need to appreciate to do this I have bad to talk to a wide range of councillors and
contacts within the Borough Council,

Your complaint covered three issues:

1.  Appointment of Litter Picker
This was the subject of an earlier investigation following a complaint sent to the council via
Paul Carter. The legal advice given confirmed by seiting a price on the work involved, the
competitive element in tendering was removed and the process followed was sound. As you
offered no new evidence on this issue 1 consider it closed.

2. Appointment of Handyman

This appointment followed the reconmendations we had received following the above, Af the
full Council meeting held on the 10" May 2011 I discussed arrangements for filling this post
with colleagues. I asked a range of people including the clerk to submit potential standard
questions to Paul Young to prepare for the interview, During this process My Elstone was
asked to confirm the new job did not overlap his existing duties. The copies of emails sent at
that time only relate to this initial trawl, The final choice of questions was only prepared by
Paul on the day of the interview (27" June 2011) and were sent to me direct. Mr Elstone
obviousty had some idea what would be involved but he did not know what additional
questions had been added. The suggestions from the clerk were obvious things to ask in the
circumstances,

If you have any i{ssues with this they should be directed at myself since the ¢lerk was acting
under my direction,

3. Xunsurance of other people working for the litter picker,
Thank you for pointing out that . Elstone’s insurance did not cover this, The policy has now
been amended

I do not find any issue to reprimand the clerk. Any ‘internal appointment’ always puts the internal
candidate at an advantage if they are good at theit job. Conversely they are at a disadvantage if they
have performed badly. Mr Elstone seems to have performed very well as a litter picker. I anticipate he
will do equally well as our Handyman.

Yours sincerely

Chris Dyke
Parish Chairman
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Annexe L2.,txt

From: cdyke@onetel . com

Sent: 18 January 2012 19:25

To: Keith Trowell

Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct complaint MB/11/4 -

ComplainantCiir.
Geoff Licence (My Ref : KET/T001474)

Dear Keith )
with regards the appointment of the handyman I have nothing to add/comment.

with regards the possible breach of the Data Protection Act I do have serious
issues.

It was decided between myself, the clerk and paul Youn%‘that there was
evidence to show an unauthorised access to the parish files on the computer.

I feel it is my duty as chair and even as a citizen to report when I feel a
crime may have been committed. I did that in the first instance to mg
colleagues. If 1in statin? the time period and location of such possible an
eveg% causes mr and mrs licence to feel they were accused that is not my
problem.

BK invoking the CoC_both Mr and Mrs Licence could be seen to be standing 1in
the way of a possible criminal investigation.

Such an investigation should in my opinion take precedence over the CoC
inquiry. :

It wouXd certainly seem strange for someone reporting that a crime may have
taken place should be subject to an CoC investigation.

It could be said that the events do not justify such a serious approach but

%he incident was one of the major causes of the clerk going on long term sick
eave,

The Tikelyhood is now that the Clerk will be well ﬁTaced to take Jegal action

against the council. Such an event would prove botn costly and damaging.

Regards

Chris Dyke

Quoting Keith Trowell <Keith.Trowell@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>:

Ptease find attached for your perusal a copy of my draft. report
reTapin% to the above-mentioned complaint. The various Annexes are
nﬁt included at this stage but can be provided if you wish to see
them,

I shall be grateful if you will consider the draft and e-mail me with
any comments you may have.

Many apologies for the huge delay that have arisen in this matter.
Regards,

Keith E.Trowell _ ) ' )
Group Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer Legal Services Tunbridge
wells Borough cCouncil Town Hall Royal Tunbridge wells Kent TN1 1RS
DX : 3929 Tunbridge Wells

T: 01892 554481
F: 01892 554027

keith.trowell@tunbridgewells.gov.uk<mailto:keith.trowell@tunbridgewel]
s.gov.uk> www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk<http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/>

Document: TM001474/013877
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keith.trowell@iunbridgewells.gov.uk
www . tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Document: TM001486/013871

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of
the author and do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council. If you are not the intended recipient, be advised that you have
received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding,
printing or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118
or e~mail to infoltunbridgewells.gov.uk.

This e~mail is confidential and intended solely for Lhe use of the individual
to whom

it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the
author and

do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. If you
are not

the intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in
error and

that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail
is

strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council

IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118 or e-mail to
infoltunbridgewells.gov.uk.
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From: Wendy Licence [wendylicence@yahoo.co.uk]

Sent: 30 January 2012 08:35

To: Keith Trowell

Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct Complaint MB/11/5 -
Complainant Mrs. Wendy Licence {(My Ref : KET/T001486)

Attachments: Reply to Draft.doc

Dear Mr Trowell
Re:- Complaint MBC/11/5

Thank you for sending me your draft report and the accompanying annexes. 1 am concerned at the
inconsistencies in the evidence particularly with regard to the interviews and documents provided by
some members, Have the inconsistencies been investigated to establish the truth? The Councillors have
all replied to my allegations and I presume that I am allowed to reply to their comments and allegations,

[ am concerned that it appears that the potential breaches of the Code of Conduct referred to by the Sub-
Committee have not been properly examined as Paragraph 19.5 mentions breaches which are not in the
Referral Notice. Furthermore, the Sub-Committee has identified Par 3 (i) (b) you must not bully any
person to be investigated and the draft report has not covered this, please can you explain why?

[ am also shocked by Cllr Dyke's allegation that somehow [ (and possibly my husband) are conspiring
with Les Btheridge who is someone we hardly know. I am also shocked by the allegations that 1 have
been trying to discredit both the clerk and Cllr Ash, and this is something which is quite untrue, The
allegations are pure speculation on Clir Dyke's part, and completely untrue, and have no relevance to this
tnvestigation which is about the Members conduct.

I am also concerned that my complaint should be seen in the realm of “relationships within the Parish” as
to the ordinary man in the street it would clearly be about the Members actions at the irregularities in
appointment of the Handyman, which I had quite legitimately raised.

I am also shocked by the closing remarks in 20.3 of the report and, in particular, the reference to
“previous knowledge” as 1 thought that the investigation would be conducted in a fair and unbiased
manner. Please can you explain what previous knowledge you have considered? How has this previous
knowledge influenced your decision? What does the phrase “potential further complaints” mean? Are
there outstanding complaints against BPC to be considered?

I am concerned that in 20.2, having concluded “that Clly Dyke's actions as rvegards the appointment
process breached the Code™ you suggest that no further action is required as he intends to resign. To
date, he has resigned as Chairman but still intends to stay on the Council. There does not seem to be any
proper undertaking given by Cllr Dyke to resign from BPC and I would suggest the time frame is
extremely loose and totally unacceptable. What happens if he does not resign? 1 am alarmed that
someone who has been found in breach of the Code may continue on the Council.

Much of the Draft Report is based on hearsay and speculation and 1 believe that the Report, as it stands, is
flawed and the Sub-Committee's Decision Notice of Referral for Investigation needs to be properly
addressed.
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Please find enclosed accompanying response to your draft report. I am sorry if this appears long but 1
have quoted extensively from the report so that it would be clear as to what I am referring to, hence the
length of my reply. If you need any further clarification on any matter piease don't hesitate to contact me,

Yours sincerely

Wendy Licence (Mrs)

From: Keith Troweli <Keith. Trowell@Tunbridgewelis.gov.uk>

To: wendylicence@yahoo.co.uk

Sent: Monday, 16 January 2012, 17:40

Subject: CONFIDENTIAL ; Code of Conduct Comptlaint MB/11/5 - Complainant Mrs, Wendy Licence (My
Ref : KET/T001486)

Please find attached for your perusal a copy of my draft report refating to the above-mentioned
complaint. The various Annexes are not included at this stage but can be provided if you wish to see
them.

I shall be grateful if you will consider the draft and e-mail me with any comments you may have.
Many apologies for the huge delay that have arisen in this matter,

Regards,

Keith E. Trowell

Group Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer
Legal Services

Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

Town Hall

Royal Tunbridge Wells

Kent TNI IRS

DX : 3929 Tunbridge Wells

T: 01892 554481
F: 01892 554027

keith.trowell@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
www tunbridgewells gov.uk
Document: TM001486/013874

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of
the author and do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council. If you are not the intended recipient, be advised that you have
received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding,
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printing or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e~mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)}1892 526121 extension 3118
or e-mail to info@tunbridgewells.gov.uk.

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom

it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the
author and

do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. If you
are not

the intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in
error and

that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail
is

strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-maill in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Berough Council »

IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118 or e-mail to
infoltunbridgewells.gov.uk.
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MBC/11/5 Confidential reply
Executive Summary

The Allegations

2.3 ClIr Hughes accepted Helen Elstone's questions and actually asked her to forward them to Clir Dyke which is
shown in my appendix 3.

Investigation Outcome

2.5 (a) “although there were mcgu/anttcas in the appointing of the Parish handyman these did not affect the
legitimacy of the appointment ....etc”

I believed that this investigation is concerning Member Code and not the legitimacy of the appointment which
would be a BPC internal investigation,

It was made quite clear by Paul Fisher's, who wrote to Cllr Dyke, via BPC's Office, on 27.4 11, that the Clerk
should have no part in the recruitment process. Therefore having been given sound legal advice and choosing to

ignore it, and in some cases blatantly disregarding it by asking the Clerk to be involved, could reasonably be seen
to have breached the Member Code of Conduct.

2.5 (b) “the irregular ifies in the appointment process may reasonably be regarded as having brought BPC and its
Chairman into disrepute”

This relates to paragraph 4 of the Code. If this is thc case then all Councillors involved in the recruitment process
may reasonably be regarded as having brought BPC into disrepute and have broken the Code as it was made quite
clear by Paul Fisher's letter of 27.4 11 to Cllr Dyke, sent via BPC's Office, that the Clerk should have no part in the
recruitment process. All the Councillors involved were aware of this advice.

2.5 (e) I would dispute this statement as if you treat someone with respect you do not “make false and inaccurate
allegations” against them. Therefore it is reasonable to conclude that there has been a breach of the Code.

Legislation, the Code and Guidance

4.4 The Standards Sub-Committee also said that 3(ii) (b) you must not bully was also identified as a potential
breach of the Code in respect of Clly Dyke. This does not seem to have been part of the investigation.

Interviews, Evidence & Consideration
5.1 Clir Young is the Vice Chairman of BPC, not Cllr Hughes.
6. Background

6.1 1 am surprised and concerned that my complaint should be seen in realms of “Relationships within the Parish”
as I thought the complaint I raised was regarding the conduct of Members during the appointment of the
handyman. I fail to see how this is about “highly personalised issues” which is merely Clr Dyke's opinion. [
believe the recruitment process was actually a straightforward procedural issue with guidance from Paul Fisher (in
his letter to Cllr Dyke dated 27.4.11), to help BPC follow correct procedures.

Documents Submitted by Cllr Dyke
8.1 Is this a typo? Should it be 20117

12 Interview of Cllr Young

12.1 Cllr Young's email of 3.10.11 show many inconsistencies.

Cllr Young has failed to show that the questions he provided were very different from the ones the Clerk had
provided. There were in fact minimal alterations to the questions that the Clerk had provided. In question 1 the
word “Handyman” was added. Question 5 was tweaked but not sufficiently to have made any significant
difference to the question. The questions of examples of work, flexibility and references are usual questions that
could be expected at an interview as were the extra questions the Panel asked.

In his email of 3.10.11, Cllr Young says that “as we wanted the interview process to remain impartial and “kept
away from our clerk.” he then goes on to admit that some of the questions and answers were the ones drafted by
the clerk so he knew that the clerk had been involved.

Cllr Young claims that he made the quesnons ;‘ele\)aln;]'tg the job description” but in fact there was no job
description.
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12.1 (b} Again I can only re-iterate that Cllr Young has failed to show that the questions he provided were very
different from the ones the Clerk had provided. There were in fact minimal alterations to the questions that the
Clerk had provided. In question 1 the word “Handyman” was added, Question 5 was tweaked but not sufficiently
to have made any significant difference to the question. The questions of examples of work, flexibility and
references are usual questions that could be expected at an interview as were the extra questions the Panel asked.

Interview of Cllr Hughes

13.1 T refute Clir Hughes' allegation in his reply of 26.9.11, that my complaint is malicious and his implication that
my complaint is linked to the anonymous complaint 10 Paul Carter is completely fictitious, The first time I heard of
a complaint being sent to Paul Carter was when I shadowed the Clerk at the Full Parish Council meeting in March
2011. T believe it is important to look into this allegation as it will show that there is very definitely no link
between the two complaints. I believe that Cllr Hughes' statement is in fact malicious and is trying to undermine
my credibility. ’

I am concerned that Clir Hughes speculates I am motivated by my husband who is to stand as a rival to Cllr Ash in
May 2012 elections as at the time I was in the Parish office, my husband was recovering from heart surgery and
was quite ill so there was no thought of him standing as a Borough Councillor, In fact, at the time, the concern was
whether he would be fit enough to continue as Parish Councillor.

Clir F Hughes is not an impartial Parish Councillor as the minutes of BPC's meetings shows she always says what
her husband says.

13.1 (a) This is the first time that there has been any mention that Cllr Hughes avoided being on the interview
panel because he had been working with Dave Elstone on small jobs. If this is true, this will give BPC yet another
problem as one of the councillors giving the handyman work is someone who actually works with him on small
jobs. In my appendix 4, Helen Elstone tells Cllr Dyke that Clir Hughes suggested that Clirs Dyke and Ash be on
the panel as he (Cllr Hughes) and Cllr Carine will be identifying works. This is quite extraordinary as it is quite
normal for managers to interview potential employees.

13.1 (b) Mr Elstone was actually appointed litter picker in February 2011 and not 2 years ago. Records in BPC
Office will confirm this.

13.1 (e) Clir Hughes did send the questions to Mrs Elstone which is shown in my appendix 3 so his statement is not
frue.

13.1 (g) The advertisement was for Assistant Clerk and the communication (dated 13.5 11) to Paul Fisher refers to
me as so. Cllr Hughes was not involved in my appointment so would not have necessarily known my title.

Interview of Cllr Dyke

16.1 (a) Cllr Dyke stated that “Others had been appointed previously on similar terms”, There had been one
previous part time clerk who actually worked regular hours and had a contract of employment.

16.1 (¢) BPC has always had a Handyman. When Mr Elstone became litter picker it was just part of the job which
the previous handyman had done,

16.1 (¢) I was never asked to draw up the advertisement, I was only asked to receive the applications and
administer the recruitment process. I do not know who drew up the advertisement.

16.1 (g) 1 am surprised that Cllr Dyke states here that the intention was to send the interview questions to the short
listed candidates, this has never been stated before and yet in 16.1 (g) he says that “.it could not be right.”
referring to Mrs Elstone sending the questions to her husband in 16.1 (m)

16.1 (i) Why was there no mention of horticulture in the advertisement? Clir Dyke would have seen the
advertisement before it was published.

16.1 () Following the interviews I did not say that Mr Elstone had seen the questions as at the time I had only seen
the email (appendix 3) from Cllr Hughes to Mrs Elstone regarding the questions. In his statement of 4" October
2012, ClIr Blackmore confirms “Wendy then stated "I thinkll-f%fn may have seen three of the questions.” ™
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16.1 (m) “He thought that could rot be right..” In Cllr Blackmore's comments 17.1 (f) he states that “Clir Dyke

said he was aware that the questions had gone through the Parish Office..” and this actually contradicts what Cllr
Dyke says here.

16.} (o)' I refute Cllr Dyke's statement that he phoned me the following evening as I phoned him and 1 can produce
an itemised phone bill which shows my call to him. Not only did he tell me to send the letter of confirmation of job

offer (Cllr Dyke had phoned Mr Elstone after the interviews to offer him the job) but he also told me to send letters
to the unsuccessful candidates.

16.1 (q) In 16.1 (o) Clir Dyke confirms he felt that there was not a problem with the interview process and yet here
he says he hoped the letters had not gone out; this would seem to be quite contradictory,

16.1 (r) I am extremely shocked by Clir Dyke's statement which speculative rather than factual, In particular, I am
amazed that Clir Dyke felt that someone was looking for something “against Cllr Ash who may be a rival to Clly
Licence in the Borough elections next year” as at that time my husband was recovering from heart surgery and our
concern was whether or not he would be fit to continue a Parish Councillor as his health was still quite poor, so
there was no way that any thought of becoming a Borough Councillor was being given any consideration at that
time. I can not understand why Cllr Dyke should say such a thing. I believe that such an allegation is little more
than a smoke screen and actually has nothing to do with the issue at hand.

With regards to discovering the email it was most certainly by chance that I found it. At that time [ believed the
recruitment process to be completely fair and honest, after all I had been asked to oversee the procedure so that Mrs
Elstone would have no involvement and I had no reason to think otherwise, I genuinely discovered the email while
1 was trying to track down contact details of a company Mrs Elstone had asked me to contact,

16.1 () This is another statement which has shocked me, it is completely untrue and 1 believe it to be completely
speculative. Mr Etheridge was on BPC some time ago and 1 had met him at the Christmas Council Meeting in
2009. 1 saw him again earlier this year when I was in the office as he popped in for something but I don't think,
from the conversation we had, that he recognised me. I was not aware of any tension between him and Mrs Elstone
and there is no “relationship” between Mr Etheridge and my husband, they only know each other through being on
BPC at the same time and because Mr Etheridge is on the hall committee. Clir Licence runs the Youth Club and
has had contact with Mr Etheridge in that capacity from obtaining the hall keys. I am astounded that Cilr Dyke has
alleged that I was effectively conspiring with someone I have only met on a couple of occasions.

16.1 (v) Again, this is repetition of previous speculation and there is to be nothing to back up Clir Dyke's
allegations and the reason for this is that Cllr Dyke's allegations are completely untrue. Cllr Dyke mentions the
Whistle blowing policy, which 1 had also requested protection under but only to learn that the Clerk advised BPC
that it did not have one as it had not been adopted.

16.1 (w) The minutes of the mesting of 19" July clearly show that Clir Dyke gave enough information to allow
Councillors to work out who he was talking about. Cllr Dyke specified that it happened when the clerk was absent
due to training. Documents accessed were identified at the meeting but the meeting was not properly minuted.

16.2 T am shocked by Cllr Dyke's subsequent statement which is complete speculation with no factual basis. The
key issue in this investigation is the conduct of members during the appointment of the handyman.

The evidence given in the form of a print out of the documents which had been accessed is weak as it is only a brief
list of documents and does not suppost the claim that they were opened in an “accurate order” and, if the full list
was submitted, it would prove otherwise because 1 looked quickly at most of the documents to try to get up to
speed with what was current.. To focus on this point is merely an example of the diversionary tactics which the
Chairman uses.

[ have no knowledge of any claims by Mr Etheridge. Neither myself or my husband have any idea what Cllr Dyke
is referring to. Cllr Dyke has failed to prove his allegation.

My complaint is only against councillors who were involved in the recruitment process, Cllr Dyke's statement is
absolutely incredulous and as, not only I am not sure what he is talking about, I really do not know how to respond
to it. It sounds like some kind of conspiracy theory, whict Ecéuaily has no substance, and I think this is little more
than another smokescreen to try to cast aspersions on my 8.
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“When this failed to reveal..etc.. they switched their complaint o one third of the council.,” again I am shocked by
Cllr Dyke's insistence on some kind of conspiracy theory. In 16.1 (t) Clir Dyke says “..he thought of Cllr Licence
as quiet and easy going and not behind anything” and here he is accusing us both of conspiracy. There is
inconsistency in Clir Dyke's evidence.

If the Council is in disarray it is because Cllr Dyke has blatantly disregarded legal advise given by Paul Fisher in
the recruitment of the Handyman. Furthermore, he is trying to turn away the focus of the problem by making
scurrilous accusations against myself and my husband.

16.3 Having seen the email attached in Annex E, I am confused as to how this relates to me. This is clearly an
email, sent 1* July 2010, from Mr Etheridge to Cllrs Dyke and Young and Cllr Dyke has not explained how they
dealt with this at the time. Neither has Cllr Dyke explained how this relates to either myself or my husband. 1do
not know what Mr Etheridge's concerns were,

Analysis of Evidence and Reasoning
18.6 What evidence is there that Cllr Hughes had actually formulated any questions?

Why is it “unsurprising that he (Cllr Hughes) would have had some conversation with the clerk as to questions for
potential applicants™? Paul Fisher clearly advised (in his letter dated 27.4.11) that Mrs Elstone should have no
involvement with the recruitment process and by having “conversation with the Clerk” Cllr Hughes completely
disregarded the legal advice that Paul Fisher gave. Any reasonable person would consider that, in the light of the
legal advice from Paul Fisher, it was EXTREMELY surprising that Cllr Hughes would have discussed anything
about the recruitment process with the Clerk. As Chairman of the Environment Committee and drawing up the
criteria for the handyman role it is obvious that Cllr Hughes would have been best placed to formulate questions so
there was no reason for him to talk to and involve the clerk about potential questions. I am absolutely surprised
that any councillor would discuss such matters with Mrs Elstone given the legal advice received and the fact that
there had been a previous complaint concerning the appointment of Mr Elstone as litter picker. Therefore Cllr
Hughes must have used his position improperly and his actions are extremely likely to bring BPC into disrepute if
they become known.

18.7 What “skill set” was required? There was no job description and the job advertisement was vague so no
candidate could be expected to know. Cllr Young adinitted he knew of the Clerk's involvement (12.1(b) ) and he
also anticipated that there may be problems with the appointment (12.1 (d) ) so it would seem quite reasonable to
expect that he would be careful to ensure that the whole process was honest and fair,

There were in fact minimal alterations to the questions that the Clerk had provided. In question 1 the word
“Handyman” was added. Question 5 was tweaked but not sufficiently to have made any significant difference to
the question. The questions of examples of work, flexibility and references are usual questions that could be
expected at an interview as were the extra questions the Panel asked.

Again, Cllr Young knew of Paul Fisher's advice that Mrs Elstone be kept out of the equation and he was aware of
the Clerk’s questions and answers. It is quite reasonable to expect that any fair-minded person would be concerned
at the appointment considering the circamstances . They would also be alarmed to learn that Cllr Young had been
given legal advice for the Clerk to be “kept away” from the recruitment process, he knew of the clerk's involvement
and did not act on it. Therefore Cllr Young's actions are extremely likely to bring BPC into disrepute if they
become known,

18.8 (b) How can the questions have been the “type that would be expected...” when they did not match the job
description in the advertisement?

18.8 (d) “...they believed then and subsequently...” what evidence is there that the Panel believed “subsequently’'?
There is no note of such statement,

18.8 (e) Clir Ash admitted (15.1 (¢) ) that it was agreed that Mrs Elstone should not be involved in the recruitment
process and this confirms that the councillors involved were aware of the advice Paul Fisher had given.

Cllr Dyke admitted (16.1 {d) ) “Paul Fisher advised and suggested the Helen Elstone should stand aside from the
process of appointing a more general handyman.” and ﬁ.gilé this confirms that councillors were aware of Paul
Fishet's advice,
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In knowing this, the panel would have known there was something wrong with the procedure when I informed

thgm that some questions had come through the office. It is reasonable to assume that this action, if known, will
bring BPC into disrepute in the eyes of an ordinary man.

18.9 I find that there was no deliberate wrongdoing on the part of the Panel” yet the panel were aware that Mrs
Elstone should not be involved in the recruitment process, they knew the questions had come through the office and
they still allowed the appointment to be made. 1 believe an ordinary man on the street could reasonably think this
to be wrong and again, if this becomes known, it will bring BPC into disrepute.

18.10 “In essence it is agreed that Clir Dyke certain statements that others considered to be not only inappropriate
but also such as 1o place him in breach of the Code of Conduct” 1 do not understand what is meant by this
statement, please can you explain this,

18.12 ClIr Dyke's view is purely supposition and there are no facts to support this. Cllr Dyke has failed to prove
his allegation. There is no substance to the suggestion that I took advantage of Mrs Elstone's absence and Clir
Dyke admitted that it was not easy to prove anything (16.1 (w) ) and this is because there was actually nothing to
prove. The evidence given in the form of a print out of the documents which had been accessed is weak as it is
only a brief list of documents and does not support the claim that they were opened in an “accurate order” (16.2)
because, if the full list was submitted, it would prove otherwise. To focus on this point is merely an example of the
diversionary tactics which the Chairman uses,

18.15 (b) This should read “... the Parish Clerk was on a training course....” as stated in the minutes of 19" July.

18.16 (a) Clir Dyke says he “.félt it was proper and legitimaie to voice his concerns,” 1t would be right to voice
his concerns in front of a committee, in camera, but this was in an open meeting and, while there were no members
of the public present, the minutes are public documents and as such the allegations are available for public scrutiny.

18.16 (b) Clir Dyke states he avoided "... duates, times...”. The minutes of F&GP Committee clearly contradict this
as Cllr Dyke is recorded as saying “During the Clerk’s recent absence, due to training..”.

18.19 Cllr Dyke is recorded as saying “..Such actions are a breach of the Data Protection Act” is an accusation
and it was clearly directed at the individuals concerned.

18,20 Re F&GP Committee. “..perceptions and interpretations..” Cllr Dyke was quite definite in what he told the
commiittee, Cllr Dyke did not say it was his perception or interpretation of the situation, it was spoken as fact.

18.21 In 18.18 you state that you “...accept that Cllr Dyke's statement to F&GP Committee were such that Parish
Councillors present may have assumed a link to Mys Licence.”..... ..it seems to me that his statements would have
at the very least raised a suspicion in the minds of some Members that Mrs Licence had behaved improperly.
Additionally it seems imprudent to have mentioned criminal offences and involving the police at that time.” and
this actually substantiates the allegations against Cllr Dyke that he breached the Code.. Furthermore, it was in an
open meeting and, while there were no members of the public present, the minutes are public documents and as
such the allegations are available for publie scrutiny.

18.22 The analysis that my husband and Lhave “. read a little more into the situation than actually exists..." is
flawed. Clir Dyke has already stated that he believes there has been “..some collusion between Mr Etheridge and
Cllr Licence and his wife...”’; Clir Hughes in his email of 26.9.11 talks of “.anonymous complaint via Paul
Carter....” " link between the two complaints.” and “.Mr Geoff Licence.. who is likely to stand... against Richard
Ash...". This certainly proves that the anonymous complaint to Paul Carter which was mentioned at the F&GP
meeting was alluded to me. Perhaps more to the point, it clearly shows that it is actually Cllrs Dyke and Hughes,
and Cllr Young (who has tried to prove my “crimes”) who are reading more into the situation than actually exists.

Furthermore, their allegations are of a serous nature and are libelous.

“...Cllr Dyke found himself in a difficult situation that he handled with diligence..” If Cllr Dyke had diligently
followed the legal advice that Paul Fisher had given him this whole situation would never have atisen.

19, Conclusion

19.2 If Cllr Dyke is a “conscientious Chairman” it wouldlbd dasonable to expect him to have diligently adhered to
the legal advise he asked for and was given by Paul Fisher in his letter of 27.4.11. A conscientious man would
also be consistent in his evidence.
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19.5 I am concerned that the Sub Committee which met on 19" September did not identify the potential breaches of
the Code which have been mentioned here, Irefer to the referral notices dated 21.9.11 which sets out the relevant
paragraphs:-.

Clir Ash:- “That by his conduct in relation to the appointment of a Parish Handyman, Cllr Ash
a) conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office and authority into
disrepute (par 5)”

Clir Blackmore:- “That by his conduct in relation to the appointment of a Parish Handyman, Clir Blackmore
a) conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office and authority into
disrepute (par 5)”

Cllr Young.- "That by his conduct in relation to the appointment of a Parish Handyman, Cllr Young
a) conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office and authority into
disrepute (par 5)"

Clly Hughes.- “That by his conduct in relation to the appointment of « Parish Handyman, Cllr Hughes

a) Compromised his impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of BPC (par 3 (i) (d)

b) conducted himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office and authority into
disrepute (par 5)"

cJused his position as a member improperly to confer or secure for any other person an advantage or disadvantage
(par 6)

1 do not understand why it would seem the investigation has assessed other parts of the Code in respect of these
Members, 1 am also concerned that Par 20.2 of this report would contradict the statement here in regards to Clir
Dyke.

20 Closing Remarks

20.2 What happens if Clir Dyke does not resign? 1t is generally known that Clir Dyke intends to stay in the Chair
until ongoing problems with Bearsted Cricket Club are resolved. In 16,2 of this report it is recorded that Cllr Dyke
will resign the Chair at the end of January 2012 and resign from the council as soon as the Code is concluded.
There does not seem to be any proper undertaking given and I would suggest the time frame is loose and
completely unsatisfactory. ’

203
This final paragraph is based on pure speculation and completely flawed.

What is the “ previous knowledge” referred to here? Iam extremely concerned that this previous knowledge may
have been prejudicial to the investigation. It was only after a careful consideration that I felt I had to report this
matter outside BPC and the matter has always been about the conduct of the named councillors in the recruitment
process and also Cllr Dyke's remarks during the F&GP Committee meeting of 19.7.11 so I am extremely concerned
that there is an influence of previous knowledge, I believed the purpose of this investigation was that it would be
completely impartial. Please can you tell me what previous knowledge you have considered?

“ from potential further complaints.. " again what are these? How has this affected the investigation? I believe that
the first sentence of 20.3 makes the investigation flawed and the findings unsafe.

“I fear that there exists a tendency in some quarters to allow personal and political differences to disturb effective
service to the community” What is the evidence for this statement? 1 do not believe my complaint is due to
personal matters as there is no personal benefit of any kind to either myself, family or friends, indeed, I
have actually lost out because since raising my concerns about the recruitment process of the Handyman,
I have not worked in the Council Office. So taking this action has been costly to me personally.

What “political differences” are being referred to here? I understand that Cllr Dyke has speculated that 1
took advantage of the clerk being away to try to gain information on the clerk and Clir Ash, but nothing
could be further from the truth. I find his allegation si?fgng and offensive and also libelous. Also, there
is absolutely nothing to substantiate this allegation,
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You “.understand that as a result,..etc.. the current Parish Clerk is presently on extended medical
absence.” Is this statement the result of medical evidence being provided to prove that this is the case? 1
would like to suggest that if the Clerk it on sick leave it may be that being “found out” has actually caused
her stress. It would seem that this is what Cllr Dyke has speculated in 16.2 and I believe this should not
form part of the closing remarks as, again, there is no evidence to support the statement.
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From: geoff.14@talktalk.net

Sent: 30 January 2012 09:18

To: Keith Trowell

Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct Complaint MB/11/4 -
Complainant Clir. Geoff Licence (My Ref : KET/T001474)

Attachments: MBC114 Response.doc :

Dear Keith,

[ attach my response to your report, sorry it's a bit long but | wanted to go over all the points,

Chris Dyke resigned as chairman on 20th January by e-mail from deputy chairman. | hope that is the
correct date, because a letter of resignation has not yet been seen. He walked out of the meeting on the

17th January as he refused to chair it. He has not resigned from the council. He still wishes to remain on
the council,

Please call me if anything which [ have commented on is not clear.
Thanks for your help,
Kind Regards

Geoff Licence

----- Original Message----

From: Keith Trowell <Keith. Trowell@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>

To: geoff. 14@talktalk.net

Sent: Mon, 16 Jan 2012 17:48

Subject: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct Complaint MB/11/4 - Complainant Clir. Geoff Licence (My
Ref : KET/T001474)

Please find attached for your perusal a copy of my draft report relating to the above-mentioned
complaint, The various Annexes are not included at this stage but can be provided if you wish to see
them.

| shall be grateful if you will consider the draft and e-mail me with any comments you may have,
Many apologies for the huge delay that have arisen in this matter.

Regards,

Keith E.Trowel!

Group Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer

Legal Services
Tunbridge Welis Borough Council
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Town Hall
Royal Tunbridge Welis
Kent TN1 1RS

DX : 3929 Tunbridge Wells

T: 01892 554481
F: 01892 554027

keith.troweli@tunbridgewelis.gov.uk
www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Document: TM001474/013878

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of
the author and do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council. If you are not the intended recipient, be advised that you have
received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding,
printing or copying of this e~mail is strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118
or e-mail to infoBtunbridgewells.gov.uk,

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom

it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the
author and

do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. If you
are not

the intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in
error and

that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail
is

strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council

IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118 or e-mail to
infoltunbridgewells.gov. uk.

118




 APPENDIX B
MBC/11/5 - ANNEX L - Responses to Draft Report

Documents Submitted by Cllr Dyke
8.1 Is this a typo? Should it be 20117

10, Interview of Wendy Licence 14.11.11
10.1 Mrs Licence's complaint is also Par 3.1~ you must treat others with respect

10.2 What does * did not provide purported allegations” mean?

12. Interview of Cilr Dyke

12.1 (a) I am extremely shocked by Cllr Dyke's statement and 1 believe it to be speculative
rather than factual. In particular, T am amazed that Clir Dyke felt that someone was looking for
something “against Cllr Ash who may be a vival to Cllr Licence in the Borough elections next
year” as at that time 1 was recovering from heart surgery and my concern was whether or not I
would be fit to continue a Parish Councillor as my health was still quite poor, so there was
consideration of becoming a Borough Councillor at that time., I consider myself to be a
conscientious Parish Councillor working for the benefit of the community so | was more
concerned as to whether or not 1 would fulfill my duties propetly considering my health at that
time. I cannot understand why Cllr Dyke should say such a thing,. I believe that such an allegation
is liftle more than a smoke screen and actually has nothing to do with the issue at hand.

With regards to my wife discovering the email it was most certainly by chance that she found it.
At that time she believed the recruitment process to be completely fair and honest, after all she
had been asked to oversee the procedure so that Mrs Blstone would have no involvement and she
believed that to be the case. Again this is pure speculation rather than fact. I had no hand in
directing my wife to any e-mail.

12.1 (¢) This is another shocking statement and it is completely untrue and 1 believe it to be pure
speculation. I only know Mr Etheridge from being on BPC. 1 was not aware of any tension
between him and Mrs Elstone and there is no “relationship” between Mr Etheridge and myself.
My only dealings with Mr Etheridge is because he is on the hall committee and I run the Youth
Club and have contact with Mr Etheridge only in that capacity. He is not or never has been a
personal friend but merely an acquaintance, 1 am astounded that Cllr Dyke has alleged that there
has been some kind of conspiracy here.

12.1 (e) Again, this is repetition of previous speculation and there seems to be nothing to back up
ClIr Dyke's allegations. Cllr Dyke mentions the Whistle blowing policy, which my wife had also
requested protection under but the F&GP Committee was told by the Clerk that it did not have
one as it had not yet been adopted.

12.1 (f) The minutes of the meeting of 19" July clearly show that Cllr Dyke gave enough
information to allow Councillors to work out who he was talking about, Cllr Dyke specified that
it happened when the clerk was absent due to training. Documents accessed were identified at
the meeting but the meeting was not properly minuted.

12.(g) When Clir Dyke spoke at the F&GP Committee Meeting on 19" July he did not look at all

in my direction so he cannot say my body language gave councillors this impression. This is
NOT FACT,
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12.2 I am shocked by Cllr Dyke’s subsequent statement which is complete speculation with no
factual basis. The key issue is the investigation of Cllr Dyke's remarks at the F&GP committee
on 19% July 2011,

The evidence given in the form of a print out of the documents which had been accessed is weak
as it is only a brief list of documents and does not support the claim that they were opened in an
“accurate order”  as, if the full list was submitted, it would prove otherwise. To focus on this
point is merely an example of the diversionary tactics which the Chairman uses.

I have no knowledge of any claims by Mr Etheridge. Neither myself or my wife have any idea
what Cllr Dyke is referring to. My complaint is only against Cllr Dyke. His statement is
absolutely incredulous and as, not only am T not sure what he is talking about, T am also not sure
how to respond to it. It sounds like some kind of conspiracy theory, which actually has no
substance, and I think this is little more than another smokescreen. Surely your investigation
should be based on fact not wild inaccurate theories. If this evidence is relied upon, or repeated 1
contend that it is libel and I will be seeking legal advice,

“When this failed to reveal..ete.. they switched their complaint to one third of the council..” again
I am shocked by Cllr Dyke's insistence on some kind of conspiracy theory. In 16,1 (1) Clir Dyke
says ‘“.he thought of Cllr Licence as quict and easy going and not behind anything™ and here he
is accusing me and my wife of a conspiracy. This is an inconsistency in Cllr Dyke's evidence,

12,3 Having secen the email attached in Amnex E [ am confused as to how this relates to me,
This is clearly an email from Mr Etheridge to Cllrs Dyke and Young and Cllr Dyke has not
explained how they dealt with this at the time. I do not know what Mr Etheridge's concerns
were. This, so called, evidence must not be taken into account,

13. Analysis of Evidence & Reasoning

133 “In essence it is agreed that Cllr Dyke certain statements that others considered to be not
only inappropriate but also such as to place him in breach of the Code of Conduct.” What does
this mean please? The sentence does not make sense,

13.4 .. the allegation is a little vague..” Can you say why this is vague please? If the allegation
is vague the Sub- Committee would not have referred it to you,

13.7 Cllr Dyke's view is purely supposition and there are no facts to support this. There is no
substance to the suggestion that anyone took advantage of Mrs Elstone's absence and Cllr Dyke
admitted that it was not easy to prove anything (16.1 (w) ) and this is because there was nothing
1o prove. The evidence given in the form of a print out of the documents which had been
accessed is weak as it is only a brief list of documents and does not support the claim that they
were opened in an “accurate order” (16.2) as, if the full list was submitted, it would prove
otherwise. To focus on this point is merely another example of the diversionary tactics which the
Chairman uses.

13.9 (b) This should read “.. the Parish Clerk was on a training course....” as stated in the

minutes of 19" July. Ever yone present on 19" July was aware that Wendy was in the office at
that time,
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13.10 (b) Cllr Dyke states he avoided “.. dates, fimes...”. The minutes of F&GP Committee
clearly contradict this as Cllr Dyke is recorded as saying "During the Clerk's recent absence, due
to training..”.

13.13 Cllr Dyke is recorded as saying “..Such actions are a breach of the Data Protection Act” is
an accusation and it was clearly directed at the individuals concerned.

13.14 Re F&GP Committee. “..perceptions and interpretations..” Clir Dyke was quite definite
in what he told the committee. Cllr Dyke did not say it was his perception or interpretation of the
situation, it was spoken as fact,

13.16 The analysis that my wife and I have “.. read a little more into the situation than actually
exists...” is flawed. Cllr Dyke has already stated that he believes there has been “.some
collusion between Mr Etheridge and Clly Licence and his wife...”; Cllr Hughes in his email of
26.9.11 talks of  “.anonymous complaint via Paul Carter...” “.link between the two
complaints,” and "..Mr Geoff Licence.. who is likely to stand... against Richard Ash...”. This
certainly proves that the anonymous complaint to Paul Carter which was mentioned at the F&GP
meeting was alluded to my wife, Perhaps more to the point, it clearly shows that it is actually
Clirs Dyke and Hughes, and Clir Young (who has tried to prove her “crimes™) who are reading
more into the situation than actually exists.

13.15 In 13.12 you state that you “ ...accept that Clir Dyke's statement to F&GP Committee
were such that Parish Councillors present may have assumed a link to Mrs Licence...... ..it seems
to me that his staterments would have at the very least raised a suspicion in the minds of some
Members that Mrs Licence had behaved improperly. Additionally it seems imprudent to have
mentioned criminal offences and involving the police at that time.” and this actually substantiates
the allegations against Cilr Dyke that he breached the Code.. Furthermore, was in an open
meeting and, while there were no members of the public present, the minutes are public
documents and as such the allegations are available for public scrutiny. The committee voted 6 to
1 to inform the police.

14. Conclusion

143 If Cllr Dyke is a “conscientious Chairman’ it would be reasonable to expect him fo
diligently adhere to the legal advise he asked for and was given by Paul Fisher in his letter of
27.4.11, A conscientious man would also be consistent in his evidence,

15. Closing Remarks

153 What is the “ previous knowledge” referred to here? 1 am extremely concerned that this
previous knowledge may have been prejudicial to the investigation, It was only after a careful
consideration that I felt I had to report this matter outside BPC and the matter has always been
about Cllr Dyke's remarks during the F&GP Committee meeting of 19.7.11 so I am extremely
concerned that there is an influence of previous knowledge, I believed the purpose of this
investigation was that it would be completely impartial. Please can you tell me what previous
knowledge you have considered?
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“.from potential further complaints..” again what are these? How has this affected the
investigation? I believe that the first sentence of 15.3 makes the investigation flawed and the
findings unsafe.

What “political differences” are being referred to here? I do not belong to any political
party and I have no axe to grind against Cllr Ash who is an experienced and competent
Borough Councillor. 1 understand that Cllr Dyke has speculated that my wife took
advantage of the clerk being away to try to gain information on the clerk and Clir Ash,
but nothing could be further from the truth. I find his allegation shocking and offensive.
Also, there is absolutely no proof to substantiate this allegation.

I feel that in your conclusion you have been influenced by spurious so called evidence
from Cllr Dyke who ignored Paul Fisher's advice and involved the clerk in the
appointment of her husband as handyman. How on earth can you call him conscientious?

Clir Marshall told me after the meeting on 19® July that the way Clir Dyke Abrought up
- these accusations was to indicate a link between phone calls to the clerk and letters to
Paul Carter with my wife, Again there is no evidence to support this.
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REPORT OF AN INVESTIGATION INTO ALLEGATIONS
CONCERNING PARISH COUNCILLORS CHRISTOPHER DYKE, JON
HUGHES, RICHARD ASH, PAUL BLACKMORE AND PAUL YOUNG
OF BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

FINAL REPORT — ANNEXE M

Additional Information and Finding in Relation

to Paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code of Conduct

Keith TroWell, Investigating Officer
28" February 2012
My Ref : TM001486
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Introduction

It has been brought to my attention that as a result of missing information from
the papers supplied to me | have failed in my final Investigation Report to
address the Standards Sub- Committee’s concern that there was a potential
breach of paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code. In consequence | have produced
this additional Annexe to rectify the omission.

During the course of my investigation | did bear in mind the possibility that
there may be breaches of the Code that had not been specifically referred to
in my instructions including whether evidence of bullying existed.

Executive Summary

Mrs Licence’s allegations do not include any allegation of bullying and she
does not seek to support such an allegation in itself. One, however, needs to
consider whether the evidence supporting the alleged breaches complained of
would also indicate that Clir Dyke bullied Mrs Licence contrary to paragraph
3(2)(b) of the Code.

I have concluded that there is no evidence to support the contention that Clir
Dyke bullied any person in breach of 3(2) (b) of the Code.

Analysis of the Evidence

Whilst Mrs Licence does not allege bullying there are circumstances in which
the allegations of slanderous statements at the Parish Council's F&GP
Committee meeting on 19" July 2011 could be said to amount to bullying.
However, as | have concluded that paragraphs 3(1) and 3(2)(d) have not been
breached due in part to lack of evidence, | do not consider the statements to
be bullying.

| have also considered whether Clir Dyke’s actions following Mrs Licence’s
initial complaints concerning the handyman appointment amounted to
bullying. | accept that Clir. Dyke failed to meet with Mrs Licence to discuss
her concerns but then summoned her to a meeting without disclosing what the
meeting was to be about and, subsequently cancelled that meeting but | do
not regard this as sufficient evidence to conclude that these were acts of
bullying. '

Finding

On the basis of the information provided and evidence obtained that Clir Dyke
has not bullied any person in breach of paragraph 3(2)(b) of the Code.
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REPORT OF AN INVESTIGATION INTO AN ALLEGATION
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Keith Trowell, Investigating Officer
February 2012
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This report is submitted in consequence of Maidstone Borough Council’'s
Standard Sub-Committee’s decision on 19™ September 2011 to refer
Complaint MBC/11/4 for investigation. On the same date the Committee also
referred for investigation a related Complaint MBC/11/5 which is the subject of
a second report.

Due to the related nature of the complaints and referrals my investigations
have been carried out in tandem and this, in part, has contributed to the
delays in submitting the draft Reports.

Throughout this Report | shall abbreviate and refer to Parish Councillor
Christopher Dyke as “Clir Dyke”, Parish Councillor Geoff Licence as “Clir
Licence”, Bearsted Parish Council’s Finance and General Purposes
Committee as F&GP Committee” and Beasted Parish Council as “BPC”.

Executive Summary

The Allegation

Clir Licence, a member of BPC, has made a formal complaint alleging that Clir
Dyke, Chairman of BPC, by his conduct during a meeting of the BPC’s F&G
Committee on 19" July 2011 failed to treat others with respect and conducted
himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office
or authority into disrepute.

In particular ClIr Licence states that Clir Dyke told the Committee at the
meeting on 19" July 2011 that “ ... someone had hacked into the office
computer and looked at and downloaded confidential documents about two
weeks ago.” and that “... this person is known and had had a guiding hand.”.
Clir Dyke also told the meeting that what had happened was a breach of the
Data Protection Act and a criminal offence.

Clir Licence believes that it was obvious to all present that Clir Dyke was
referring to Mrs, Wendy Licence. Additionally Clir Licence says that there was
no agenda item covering this matter and that the allegations were made
during the public part of the meeting.

Investigation Qutcome

I have investigated this complaint at the behest of Maidstone Borough
Council’'s Monitoring Officer. The interviews that | have conducted and the
evidence that | have considered do not in my opinion support the allegations
to a sufficient degree to justify further investigation.

After thorough investigation | was able to establish the facts and conclude that
whilst Clir Dyke’s conduct may have appeared to some to have included
making false and inaccurate allegations | have found that there has not been
a failure to comply with the Code.

Parish Councillor Christopher Dyke’sX8ficial Details
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Clir Dyke and has been Chairman of BPC since May 2011. He is also
Chairman of the Parish Council’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.

In respect of the period covering the matter under investigation Clir Dyke has
given a written undertaking dated 10" May 2011 to observe the Code of
Conduct.

Legislation, the Code of Conduct and Guidance

This investigation was carried out under and in accordance with Part 3 of the
Local Government Act 2000 and the Standards Committee (England)
Regulations 2008.

Disclosure of information in this report and of the documents comprising the
annexes hereto may be an offence under Section 63 of the Local Government
Act 2000.

Bearsted Parish Council adopted the Code of Conduct (2007) on 12" July
2007.

The paragraphs of the Code of Conduct that were relevant to this
investigation are paragraphs 3(1) and 5 as set out below :-

Paragraph 3(1) - You must freat others with respect

Paragraph 5 - You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could
reasonably be regarded as bringing your office or authority into disrepute

The Guide for Members May 2007 published by the Standards Board for
England aims to provide a general understanding of the Code of Conduct and
its requirement. Chapter 2 of the Guide deals with paragraph 3 of the Code
and relevant extracts are annexed to this report (Please see Annexe A).

Interviews, Evidence & Considerations
| have interviewed in person :-

Clir Geoff Licence, the Complainant

Mrs Wendy Licence

ClIr Christopher Dyke, Bearsted Parish Council Member and the Chairman of
the Parish Council and Chairman of that Council’'s Finance and General
Purposes Committee, the subject of the complaint.

All those who | have interviewed have willingly and fully co-operated with my
enquiries for which | record my thanks.

| have endeavoured to contact Mr. Patrick Walton, former parish councillor
and BPC chairman but without suaoz&.
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Following each of the interviews | sent a summary of my interview notes to the
respective interviewees seeking and receiving confirmation that the notes
were an accurate representation of the answers given.

| have considered documentary evidence provided by the Clirs Licence and
Dyke and referred to my notes of interviews. Much of the information
obtained is factually uncontroversial but the personal opinions expressed are
more so.

In reaching my conclusions | have had regard to the 2007 Guide for Members
referred to above.

Background

Relationships within the Parish have become strained and it appears apparent
that there has been a tendency to allow personal feelings to cloud the
Council’s civic function. The Chairman has publically stated that he had not
anticipated that he would be faced with the ‘highly personalised’ issues that
had arisen.

Documents Submitted by Parish Councillor Geoff Licence

The documents submitted by ClIr. Licence are annexed to this report (Please
see Annexe B).

These documents were submitted with Clir Licence’s formal complaint form
and comprise —

(a) a statement of details dated 4" September 2011; and

(b)  draft Minutes of the PC’s Finance and General Purposes Committee
meeting on 19" July 2011.

Documents Submitted by Parish Councillor Christopher Dyke

Subsequent to the Standards Sub-Committee’s decision on 19" September
2010 Clir Dyke submitted a response which is annexed to this report (Please
see Annexe C).

Following the investigation interview on 2" December 2011 Clir Dyke
commented on the interview notes and referred to an e-mail which is annexed
to this report (Please see 12.2 and 12.3 below and Annexe D).

Interview of Parish Councillor Geoff Licence 14" November 2011
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In response to my enquiries and questions Clir Licence expanded slightly
upon the content of his complaint, gave some detail of his personal
circumstances and clarified certain elements. In general, however, there was
little to add the statement that accompanied his complaint form.

ClIr. Licence did specifically reiterate that the Chairman’s comments at the
meeting on 19" July 2011 would have been understood by most, if not all, of
those present to relate to Mrs. Licence and himself.

In addition Clir Licence considered the Chairman’s statement at that meeting
that a criminal offence had been committed was incorrect and misleading.
ClIr Licence also referred to paragraph 7.3 of the Minutes of the Parish
Council on 13" September 2011 which he regarded as inaccurate.

Interview of Mrs Wendy Licence on 14" November 2011

Mrs Licence was interviewed primarily in connection with her separate
complaint against a number of Parish Councillors including the Chairman. In
that complaint Mrs Licence had made some reference to the statements made
at the F&GP meeting on 19" July 2011 but that was not the subject of her
complaint.

In addition to answering questions relating to her complaint Mrs Licence
confirmed that she was very concerned over the Chairman’s statements at the -
meeting. She believes that inaccurate and false allegations were made
against her and, by implication, against ClIr Licence.

Interview of Parish Councillor Pat Marshall on 29" November 2011

In response to my enquiries and questions Clir Marshall provided answers
and comments as follows : '

(@)  She was not aware of the details of the matter until Mrs. Licence
telephoned her, as a senior councillor and impartial person, to ask that
she accompany her to a meeting with the Parish Council Chairman,
Chris Dyke. It was clear to her that Mrs. Licence had genuine
concerns but she did not ask for her opinion. She believed that Clir
Dyke had asked Clir Ash to accompany him but the meeting did not
take place. v

(b)  Mrs. Licence was appointed to see fair play in the handyman
appointment process.

(c)  She was mortified at the General Purposes & Finance Committee
meeting on 19" July 2011 when, out of the blue, Clir Dyke said there
was something he wanted to discuss. He started by saying something
along the lines of that when he took on the job he did not think it would
be so vitriolic and went on to mention abusive telephone calls to the
Parish Clerk. He also spokd& 3Hout the anonymous letter to Paul Carter
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(Leader of KCC) which led to Paul writing to him about the ‘litter picker’
appointment. Clir Dyke had showed her the letter from Paul Carter just
before the start of the meeting and asked for her advice to which she
said he should not to discuss it and should speak to Paul Fisher. The
item was removed from the agenda and she believed that Clir Dyke did
consult with Paul Fisher afterwards.

The meeting did not move into closed session. She feels that it should
have done although no members of the public were actually in
attendance. The Chairman said that he had concerns referring to the
abusive telephone calls, the anonymous letter and the complaint by Mr.
Street against ClIr Ash.

The Chairman went on to say that the Parish Council's computer had
been hacked into, personal files downloaded and the Whistleblowing
Act downloaded. There were two new councillors present and she
wondered what they thought about this. One of the new councillors
asked who had access and the Clerk said that she had been away for
3 days and that there was a relief in. The Chairman then said that it
was obvious who had done it and referred to a guiding hand behind it.
At this point she thought that it was obvious to all that he was referring
to Mrs. Licence and that they could have thought that Clir Licence was
the guiding hand. The proposal as she recalled it was for the IT
Department of Maidstone BC to look into the accessing/hacking of the
computer and, if it were so, it was a criminal offence under the Data
Protection Act and the police should be informed.

Knowing something of the background she felt very sorry for Clir
Licence who was present and must have felt humiliated and
embarrassed by what had been said and proposed. When the
proposal, as amended, was voted on CliIr Licence abstained.

She was hesitant as she felt that involving the police before
Maidstone’s IT had looked into the matter was premature. Also she felt
confused as she was uncertain whether this related to Mrs. Licence.
Everyone was stunned by the proceedings.

Minutes were subsequently produced and she e-mailed the Clerk, with
copies to all Councillors including the Chairman, saying that she had
concerns that the item concerned was discussed in an open meeting
and that whilst there were no members of the public present she felt
that due to the sensitive nature of the matter, the discussion of the item
should have been ‘in camera’ and the relevant Minute confidential.

She did not receive a response and the Minutes were published
unaltered.

Mrs. Licence had raised the matter with Clir Dyke in confidence but he
kept fobbing her off. He would not say what he wanted to discuss
when he requested a meeting.
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Clir Dyke had asked for evidence in the form of copies of e-mails. Mrs.
Licence printed them off and provided them to him.

Mrs. Licence was appointed as relief cover for the Clerk when she was
absent on holiday, training or sickness. She had been appointed that
year. When asked if she had a contract, Mrs. Licence said not.

The offending item was not on the agenda but it was still voted on
which is an irregularity.

She has been on the Parish Council for 40 years and things have
never been like this. It is not a happy Parish at present.

Interview of Parish Councillor Christopher Dyke on 2"! December 2011

In response to my enquiries and questions ClIr Dyke provided answers and
comments and he expanded some of the points made. During the interview
Clir Dyke stated that :-

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e

®

)

Mrs. Licence was self-employed. There was no contract of
employment. Her appointment was just to cover the Clerk’s absence on
an ad hoc basis. Others had been appointed previously on similar
terms.

Dave Elstone was employed as ‘litter picker’ on the minimum wage. There
had been an anonymous complaint to Paul Carter regarding the appointment
and advice was received from Paul Fisher to the effect that as the contract
was at a fixed price, nothing improper occurred.

As time went on it became apparent that there was a wider range of tasks to
be undertaken and that a different arrangement was required.

Paul Fisher advised and suggested that Helen Elstone should stand aside
from the process of appointing a more general handyman. Mrs. Elstone was
so advised and told that Mrs. Licence would handle the appointment process.
Mrs. Elstone had no involvement in the process apart from her input to the
sample questions.

Mrs. Licence was asked to help draw up the advertisement, receive the
applications and administer the process.

At around this time he had a conversation that included Paul Young and Mrs.
Elstone when interviews and model questions were discussed. It was
suggested that draft questions be sent to Clir. Young for him to draw them
together. He acknowledged that it was a mistake to have this conversation
when Mrs. Elstone was present.

The intention was to compile a shortlist and send the interview questions to
the shortlisted candidates. Hi\r?ger, CliIr. Young did not supply draft
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guestions until about an hour before the interviews. The Panel added three
questions to the list and copied the questions at the Parish Office. The
interview panel then decided who was going to ask each question and the
scoring system. ‘

Each member of the interviewing panel locked through the applications
independently and made their own shortlists of 5 candidates, All the
applications were received via Mrs. Licence except that from Mr. Elstone
which was given direct to him by Mrs. Elstone on the ground that it may
otherwise not have been received in time. Mr. Elstone’s application was not
opened before any of the other applications.

The Panel's choices and parameters were different. He was keen that the
appointee lived, in or next to, the village, had horticultural knowledge and
sufficient availability. Only one candidate was from Bearsted, a fireman. The
applicant from Horsmonden pulled out and, in the event, only 3 arrived for
interview.

After each interview each member of the Panel independently scored each
candidate before seeing the next candidate. The completed score sheets
were very similar. Mr. Elstone came out as the clear winner, he scored 140
and the others 90 or 60 respectively.

The whole process had been delayed by the anonymous complaint to Paul
Carter. The Parish has another contractor for the bigger work.

Following the interviews Mrs. Licence raised concerns. She said that Mr.
Elstone had seen the model questions. He.queried this saying Mr. Elstone
could not have seen the questions as he had only just seen them. Mrs.
Licence said that Mrs. Elstone had been involved in the question setting and
had sent the questions to Mr. Elstone.

He thought that could not be right and that the Panel had made the joint
decision to go ahead with the appointment.

He had thought about the matter overnight and wondered whether he had
missed something. Mrs. Licence had raised the matter nervously and he
thought that he may have appeared dismissive.

The following day he rang Mrs. Licence and asked what had led her to
believe something improper had occurred. Mrs. Licence referred to e-mails
she had seen. He requested copies of those e-mails and asked her not to
send out the appointment letter until later. He was shown the printed e-mail
and saw that these were not the questions asked. Mrs. Elstone would have
had an idea of the questions but they were questions that would have been
expected and he did not consider that the outcome was prejudiced
particularly as the scoring of the candidates was so clear.

Two other issues were raised. One relating to Mr. Elstone’s waste disposal
licence and the other concerning insurance. The first was raised and rectified

10




(@

(n

(s)

®

(u)

v)

APPENDIX B

within 4 or 5 weeks. The second related to Mr. Elstone’s son helping with
some work without insurance. Mr. Elstone was told that his son needed to be
on the insurance. He put this omission down to inexperience and the issue
was rectified.

By the Friday following the interviews, he was not sure if the letters had been
sent out. He had hoped not but when he realised they had, he decided to
stick with the Panel’s decision.

The background leading up to the Finance and General Purposes Committee
meeting on 19" July includes the fact that the computer shows as list of the
most recent “Word” documents opened. The first two items on the list related
to the Elstone’s licensed company and were unsurprising. The other
documents were of more concern, for example Mrs. Elstone’s contract of
employment and details of the code of conduct complaint against Clir Ash.
Mrs. Elstone was very distressed at this and telephoned Clir. Young. He (ClIr
Dyke) felt that someone was looking for something against the Clerk and
against Clir Ash who may be a rival to CliIr Licence in the Borough elections
next year, so he and Clir Young, who is something of an IT specialist,
examined the computer history. They found a large number of hits relating to
chocolate and a significant number relating to employment protection. Mrs.
Licence had claimed that she had come across an e-mail by chance but that
e-mail was some 210 e-mails back so Clir Young thought it virtually
impossible to find it by chance. He (Clir Dyke) had, however, when Mrs.
Licence took up her role, told her that she could look through things and
familiarise herself with matters and also that she should feel free to look at
records.

He did investigate Mrs. Licence’s first complaint which was against the Clerk.
As a result he wrote to her saying that the Clerk was free of any blame and, if
there had been an error, it was his in asking the Clerk to supply some model
questions.

He nevertheless felt that there had been some ‘guiding hand’ and believed
that someone may have been taking advantage of Mrs. Licence being in the
Parish Office. He referred to tension between the Hall Manager (Leslie
Etheridge) and Mrs. Elstone and to Clir. Licence’s relationship with the Hall
Manager. He, however, thought of Clir. Licence as quiet and easygoing and
not as being behind anything.

He had asked ClIr. Young if he could establish what documents had been
copied but he had been unable to do so. He also approached Paul Fisher to
see if Maidstone’s IT specialists could assist but were told, after a long delay,
they could not partly because the times were confused with the wrong dates
on the new computer.

He was concerned that there was a very serious issue and that someone was
trying to find information on Clir. Ash and Mrs. Elstone but delayed discussing
the matter in case more information came to light. He also felt constrained by
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their whistleblowing policy which made it difficult to suggest any complaint
against Mrs. Licence.

(w) By 19" July he decided that he had to say in broad terms what his concerns
were. He was aware that it was not easy to prove anything and in raising the
issue at the Committee meeting deliberately did not name anyone, did not
refer to specific dates and did not identify what documents had been
accessed. He did consider going to the police but decided to await
developments.

) When he made reference to a ‘guiding hand’ he did not have ClIr. Licence in
mind. He does not believe that all those present at the meeting on 19" July
would have assumed the references were to Clir. and Mrs. Licence. It was, in
his view, more likely that Clir. Licence’s body language indicated that his wife
may have been involved.

Subsequent to my interview of Clir Dyke he has made.the following comment :

“For me the key issue is not the appointment of the handyman but the actions of Mrs
license in opening such a range of documents in such an accurate order. | have
attached the original email sent to me by clir Ethridge last year which triggered off a
whole range of events. It is my belief that there has been collusion between Mr
Ethridge and Clir License and his wife to try and back up Clir Ethridges claims or find
new evidence against the clerk. When this failed to reveal anything of importance
they have switched their complaint to one third of the council and myself in particular.
We now have a council in disarray and a clerk on long term sick leave as a result.
For myself | feel | have done my best in amazingly difficult circumstances. | am now
accepting the wishes of my wife to stand down as chair from the end of Jan 2012 and
resign from the council as soon as the CoC is completed”

The e-mail referred to in the preceding paragraph is attached at Appendix D.
Analysis of the Evidence and Reasoning

Clir Licence alleges that Clir Dyke was in breach of paragraphs 3(1) and 5 of
the Code of Conduct by virtue of his failure to treat others with respect and
conducting himself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing his office or the Parish Council into disrepute.

The compliant centres around the statements made by Cllr Dyke at the parish
Council’s Finance and General Purposes Committee meeting on 19™ July
2011.

There is general consensus as to what occurred and was said at the F&GP
meeting although there is some differing recollection of actual words spoken.
In essence Clir Dyke made statements that others considered to be
inappropriate and such as to place him in breach of the Code of Conduct.
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During my interview of ClIr Licence he was given the opportunity to provide
further and specific details of the allegations. Whilst he did add some detail,
there was nothing else he wished to add..

The nub of the complaint is that Clir Dyke made public statements that, at the
very least, suggested that Mrs. Licence had behaved improperly thereby
failing to accord her due respect and bringing BPC into disrepute. | have
distilled the complaint to two issues. Firstly, were Clir Dyke’s statements
justified or improperly spoken wrong and, secondly, did those statements
amount to a breach of the Code.

Clir Dyke is firmly of the view that some improper use was made of BPC’s
computer and it was reasonable for him to make his concerns known to all
Members of BPC. ClIr Dyke has stated that he that in the light of the
cumulative computer record of documents that had been accessed he
believed that advantage had been taken at the Parish Clerk’s temporary
absence.

Having decided to alert BPC's Members of his concerns Clir Dyke was
anxious to express them in broad terms. He states that he was aware that it
was not easy to prove anything and was extremely careful not to name
anyone, not to indicate what documents had been accessed and not to refer
to any specific dates.

Notwithstanding Clir Dyke’s intention, some, including Clir and Mrs. Licence
are convinced that Clir Dyke’s statements could relate only to them. They
also take the view that others would easily link them to the statements.

Specifically, Clir Licence maintains that —

(@)  Clir Dyke told the Committee that ‘someone had hacked into the office
computer and looked at and downloaded confidential documents about
two weeks ago’ and that ‘this person is known and had a guiding hand’.

(b)  As Clir Dyke had said this had happened while the Parish Clerk was on
holiday training course, it was obvious to all Councillors that he was
referring to Mrs. Licence and that the person guiding her was him.

In response Clir Dyke says that —
(a) He feltit was proper and legitimate to voice his concerns.
(b) He avoided referring to names, dates times and documents.

(c) His reference to a guiding hand did not refer to Clir Licence.

137

13




13.11

13.12

13.13

13.14

13.15

13.16

APPENDIX B

(d)  He had authorised Mrs. Licence’s access to the BPC’s computer and
had encouraged her to familiarise herself with matters and to look
through records in order to do so.

(e) He had requested from Mrs. Licence copies of the e-mails to which she
had referred and she provided these.

The allegations contained in the compliant are serious and could potentially
give rise to breaches of the Code of Conduct. It is, however, important to
examine the allegations in context. On one hand the Chairman had valid
concerns that he believed the parish Council should be aware of and on the
other certain individuals in the full knowledge of the background believed that
the concerns related to and enabled them to be identified by others.

I accept that Clir Dyke’s statements to the F&GP Committee were such that
Parish Councillors present may have assumed a link to Mrs. Licence.
Members of the public were not present at that time so | have left that element
to one side. Whilst Cllr Dyke made some effort to avoid specifics it seems to
me that his statements would have at the very least raised a suspicion in the
minds of some Members that Mrs. Licence had behaved improperly.
Additionally it seems imprudent to have mentioned criminal offences and
involving the police at that time.

| also accept that to those immediately concerned the ltem 14 ii) of the
Minutes of the F&GP Committee meeting could be taken as referring to them.
| disagree, however, that they were accusatory towards individuals.

I have had regard to the information provided by Clir Mrs. Marshall which is
largely supportive of the Complainant’s views. We are though dealing with
perceptions and interpretations in this instance so | do not believe that this
information adds significant weight.

The investigation and the interviews conducted have failed to substantiate the
allegations to sufficient extent to lead me to believe that that Cllir Dyke’s
actions amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct.

My impression gained from the lengthy interviews is that there is an element
of tension between the parties and, indeed, between factions within PC.
Clearly CliIr Licence and his wife feel considerably aggrieved but | do wonder
whether they have read a little more into the situation than actually exists.
Conversely ClIr Dyke found himself in a difficult situation that he handled with
diligence albeit that with hindsight the matter could have been dealt with
differently.

14. Finding
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In drawing my conclusion | have had regard to the Guidance mentioned in 4.5
above. That Guidance states, as far as is relevant, in relation to paragraph
3(1) -

“ ... individuals should not be subject to unreasonable or excessive personal
attack. ... “

And in relation to paragraph 5 —

“As a member, your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny that
that of ordinary members of the public. You should be aware that your
actions in both your public and private life might have an adverse impact on
your office or your authority. ... “

ClIr Licence has a genuine and understandable concern relating to the overall
events of which this complaint forms a part and which are the subject of a
separate report.

Having considered all of the above | have concluded that Clir Dyke is a
conscientious Chairman who found himself dealing with a difficult and
challenging situation that he dealt with to the best of his ability. The facts as
they appear to me do not show that Clir Dyke failed to treat others with
respect or that his conduct could reasonably be regarded as bringing his
office or authority into disrepute. | have therefore found that there has not
been any failure to comply with the Code of Conduct5. Closing
Remarks

A difficult balance has been struck in assessing this investigation as much
turns on personal perceptions of Clir and Mrs Licence. They have a genuine
belief that Clir Dyke made open allegations against them which were totally
unjustified although | have noted that Clir Licence did not disclose an interest
in the matter as soon as he believed that the Chairman was referring to
himself and his wife. Cllr Dyke, however, considered it to be his duty to make
known his concerns

It is apparent to me that BPC is operating in an atmosphere of tension and
mistrust. [ fear that there exists a tendency in some quarters to allow
personal and political differences to disturb effective service to the community.
| understand that as a result the current Parish Clerk is presently on extended
medical absence and the current Chairman has resigned from that position.

| provided copies of my draft report to the parties and received a number of
observations from both Clirs Dyke and Licence. These responses are
annexed (Please see Annexe E and F). | have carefully considered these
comments, criticisms and questions and concluded that they do not change
my analysis or conclusion. '
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Keith E. Trowell

Group Manager (Legal Services)
& Deputy Monitoring Officer
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council

6™ February 2012
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APPENDIXB, . &

reating others with respect

You must treat others with respect.

In politics, rival groupings are common,
either in formal political parties or more
informal alliances. It is expected that each
will campaign for their ideas, and they may
also seek to discredit the policies and
actions of their opponents. Criticism of ideas
and opinion is part of democratic debate,
and does not in itself amount to bullying or
failing to treat someone with respect.

ldeas and policies may be robustly
criticised, but individuals should not be
subject to unreasonable or excessive
personal attack. This particularly applies to
dealing with the public and officers, Chairs
of meetings are expected to apply the rules
of debate and procedure rules or standing
orders to prevent abusive or disorderly
conduct.

_ Whilst it is acknowledged that some
members of the public can make
unreasonable demands on members,
members should, as far as possible, treat
the public courteously and with
consideration. Rude and offensive
behaviour lowers the public’s expectations
and confidence in its elected
representatives,

& THE CODE OF CONDUCT
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g with equality |

Complying
See Paragraph 3(2)(a)

You must not do anything which may cause
your authority to breach any equality laws.

Equality laws prohibit discrimination on the
grounds of sex, race, disability, religion or
belief, sexual orientation and age.

The provisions of these laws are complex.
In summary, there are four main forms of.
discrimination:

» Direct discrimination: treating people
differently because of their sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age.

+ Indirect discrimination: treatment which
does not appear to differentiate between )
people because of their sex, race, €
disability, retigion or belief, sexual
orientation or age, but which
disproportionately disadvantages them.

+ Harassment: engaging in unwanted
conduct on the grounds of sex, race,
disability, religion or belief, sexual
orientation or age, which violates another
person's dignity or creates a hostile,
degrading, humiliating or offensive
environment.
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+ Victimisation: treating a person less
favourably because they have
complained of discrimination, brought
proceedings for discrimination, or been
involved in complaining about or
bringing proceedings for discrimination.

Equality laws also impose positive duties
to eliminate unlawful discrimination and
harassment and to promote equality. They
also impose specific positive duties on
certain authorities.

Under equality laws, your authority may be
liable for any discriminatory acts which you
commit. This will apply when you do
something in your official capacity in a
discriminatory manner,

You must be careful not to act in a way
which may amount to any of the prohibited
forms of discrimination, or to do anything
which hinders your authority's fulfilment of
its positive duties under equality laws. Such
conduct may cause your authority to break
the law, and you may find yourself subject
to a complaint that you have breached this
paragraph of the Code of Conduct,

o

Bullying and intimidation

See Paragraphs 3(2)(b) and 3(2)(c)
You must not bully any person including
other councillors, council officers or
members of the public.

Bullying may be characterised as offensive,
intimidating, malicious, insulting or
humiliating behaviour. Such behaviour may
happen once or be part of a pattern of
behaviour directed at a weaker person or
person over whom you have some actual or
perceived influence, Bullying behaviour
attempts to undermine an individual or a
group of individuals, is detrimental to their
confidence and capability, and may
adversely affect their health.

This can be contrasted with the legitimate
challenges which a member can make in
challenging policy or scrutinising
performance. An example of this would be
debates in the chamber about policy, or
asking officers to explain the rationale for
the professional opinions they have put
forward. You are entitled to challenge fellow
councillors and officers as to why they hold
their views.

It is important that you raise issues about
poor performance in the correct way and
proper forum. However, if your criticism is a
personal attack or of an offensive nature,
you are likely to cross the line of what is
acceptable behaviour,
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You must not intimidate or attempt to
intimidate any person who is or is likely to be
a complainant, a witness, or involved in the
administration of any investigation or
proceedings relating to a failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct.

However much you may be concerned
about allegations that you or a fellow
councillor failed to comply with the Code of.
Conduct, it is always wrong to bully,
intimidate or attempt to intimidate any
person involved in the investigation or
hearing. Even though you may not have
breached the Code of Conduct, you will
have your say during any independent
investigation or hearing, and you shouid let
these processes follow their natural course.

If you intimidate a witness in an investigation
about your conduct, for example, you may
find yourself subject to another complaint
that you breached this paragraph of the
Code of Conduct.

Compromising the impartiality
of officers of the authority
See Paragraph 3(2)(d)

You must not compromise, or attempt to
compromise, the impartiality of anyone who
works for, or on behalf of, the authority.

You should not approach or pressure
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the

14 THE CODE OF CONDUCT
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authority to carry out their duties in a biased
or partisan way. They must be neutral and
should not be coerced or persuaded to act
in a way that would undermine their
neutrality. For example, you should not get
officers to help you prepare party political
material, or to help you with matters relating
to your private business. You should not
provide or offer any incentive or reward in
return for acting in a particular way or
reaching a particular decision.

Although you can robustly question officers
in order to understand, for example, their
reasons for proposing to act in a particular
way, or the content of a report that they
have written, you must not try and force
them to act differently, change their advice,
or alter the content of that report, if doing o
would prejudice their professional integrity.

Disclosing confidential
information
See Paragraph 4(a) o

You must not disclose confidential
information, or information which you believe
to be of a confidential nature, except in any
of the following circumstances:

* You have the consent of the person
authorised to give it.

+ You are required by law to do so.
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+ The disclosure is made to a third party for +  Whether you make the disclosure for
the purposes of obtaining professional personal gain. If you are paid to
advice (for example, your lawyer or other disclose the information, the
professional adviser) provided that disclosure is unlikely to be
person agrees not to disclose the reasonable,

» information to any other person.

+ The identity of the person to whom
the disclosure is made. It may be
reasonable to disclose information to
the police or to an appropriate
regulator. It is less likely to be
reasonable for you to disclose the
information to the world at large
through the media.

+ The disclosure is in the public interest.
This is only justified in limited
circumstances, when'all of the following
four requirements are met;

1. the disclosure must be reasonable

2. the disclosure must be in the public
interest « The extent of the information
disclosed. The inclusion of
3. the disclosure must be made in good unnecessary detail, and in particular,
faith ‘ private matters such as addresses or
: telephone numbers, is likely to render
the disclosure unreasonable.

4. the disclosure must be made in
compliance with any reasonable
requirements of your authority * The seriousness of the matter. The

more serious the matter disclosed,

- the more likely it is that the disclosure

will be reasonable.

=

In relation to the disclosure of confidential
information in the public interest, the four
requirements to be met are outlined in more
detail below. + The timing of the disclosure. If the
matter to which the disclosure relates
has already occurred, and is unlikely
to occur-again, the disclosure may be
less likely to be reasonable than if the
matter is continuing, oris likely to re-

+ Whether you believe that the oceur, :
information disclosed, and any

1. The first requirement, that the disclosure
must be reasonable, requires you to
consider matters such as:

allegation contained in it, is +  Whether the disclosure involves your

substantially true. If you do not
believe this, the disclosure is unlikely
to be reasonable.

authority failing in a duty of
confidence owed to another person.
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2. The second requirement, that the
disclosure must be in the public interest,
needs to involve one or more of the
following matters or something of
comparable seriousness, that has either
happened in the past, is currently
happening, or is likely to happen in the
future:

(a) A criminal offence is committed.
(b) Your authority or some other person

fails to comply with any legal
obligation to which they are subject.

(c) A miscarriage of justice occurs.

(d) The health or safety of any individual
is in danger. ‘

(e) The environment is likely to be
damaged.

(f) That information tending to show any
matter falling within (a) to (e) is
deliberately concealed,

3. The third requirement, that the disclosure
iIs made in good faith, will not be met if
you act with an ulterior motive, for
example, to achieve a party palitical
advantage or to settle a score with' a
political opponent,

t2 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

4. The fourth requirement, that you comply
with the reasonable requirements of your
authority, means that before making the
disclosure you must comply with your
authority's policies or protocols on
matters such as whistie-blowing and
confidential information. You must first
raise your concerns through the
appropriate channels set out in such
policies or protocols.

In summary, to decide whether the
disclosure is reasonable and in the public

" interest, you may need to conduct a
balancing exercise weighing up the public
interest in maintaining confidentiality against
any countervailing public interest favouring
disclosure, This will require a careful focus
on how confidential the information is, on
any potentially harmful consequences of its
disclosure, and on any factors which may
justify its disclosure despite these potential
consequences.

[n some situations, it is extremely unlikely
that a disclosure can be justified in the
public interest. These will include where the
disclosure amounts to a criminal offence, or
where the information disclosed is protected
by legal professional privilege.
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Preventing access 1o
information

See Paragraph 4(b)

You must not prevent anyone getting
information that they are entitled to by law.

You must not prevent any person from
accessing information which they are
entitled to by law. This includes information
under the Freedom of Information Act 2000
or those copies of minutes, agendas, '
reports and other documents of your
authority which they have a right to access.
To find out more about what types of
information the public can access; contact
the Information Commissioner’s Office by
visiting www.ico.gov.uk or by calling

0845 630 6060. '

Disrepute
See Paragraph 5

....... F T R Y T TSIV RE P ST Y

You must not bring your office or authority
into disrepute while acting in your official
capacity, or at any time through criminal
activity that leads to a c¢riminal ‘conviction.?

2 Transitional Note: Until such time as there Is Parliamentary
approval for amendments to section 52 of the Local
Government Act 2000 which reinstates the situation prior
to Collins J's decision in Livingstone v Adjudication Panel
for England 2006, the Code of Conduct does not apply
to conduct outside of the performance of your functions
as a member. Only if you have engaged in an activity
which has a link with. the functions of your office will any
conduct in your private capacity be covered by the Code
of Conduct, If the legislative amendments are passed, the
Code of Conduct will also apply to criminal activity which
has led to a conviction. |

APPENDIX B

As a member, your actions and behaviour
are subject to greater scrutiny than that of -
ordinary members of the public. You should
be aware that your actions in both your
public and private life might have an
adverse impact on your office or your
authority. Dishonest and deceitful behaviour
in your role as a member may bring your
authority into disrepute, as may conduct in
your private life which results in a criminal
conviction, such as dishonest, threatening
or violent behaviour.

Using your position
improperly

See Paragraph 6(a) =~

You must not use, or attempt to use, your

position improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of yourself or anyone else,

You should not use, or attempt to use, your
public office either for your or anybody
else’s personal gain or loss. For example,
your behaviour would be improper if you
sought to further your own private interests
through your position as a member.

In addition to paragraph 6(a), paragraph 12
is also relevant to the proper use of your
position. Paragraph 12 supports your role as
a community advocate, representing and
speaking for the concerns of your
community, even where you have a
prejudicial interest. This right applies to you
at meetings where you have a statutory right
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to speak or you are provided with the same
opportunity to speak as ordinary members
of the public would be allowed. If your
authority does not allow members of the
public to attend the relevant meeting for the
purpose of speaking to it, paragraph 12 will
not apply to you uniess you have a statutory
right to speak on the matter.

You must [eave the room or chamber
immediately after you have made the
representations, given your evidencs, or
answered questions, and make no further
attempt to influence the decision. If the
meeting decides that you must stop
speaking to the meeting, even if you have
more to say, you must stop and leave the
room, If you fail to comply with the meeting’s
direction or paragraph 12 of the Code of
Conduct, you may be found to have
improperly influenced the decision.

Fhe authority’s resources
See Paragraph 6(b)i) .

You must only use or authorise the use of
the resources of the authority in accordance
with its requirements.

Where your authority provides you with
resources (for example telephone, computer
and other [T facilities, transport or support
from council employees), you must only use

14 THE CODE OF CONDUCT

these resources or employees for carrying
out your local authority business and any
other activity which your authority has
authorised you to use them for.

You must be familiar with the rules applying
to the use of these resources made by your
authority. Failure to comply with your
authority's rules is likely to amount to a
breach of the Code of Conduct.

If you authorise someone (for example a
member of your family) to use your
authority’s resources, you must take care to

- ensure that this is allowed by your

authority’s rules.

Using resources fof
purposes only
See Paragraphs 6(b)(i)) and 6(c) =~

T proper

You must make sure you use the authority’s
resources for proper purposes only. It is not
appropriate to use, or authorise others to
use, the resources for political purposes,
including party political purposes. When
using the authority’s resources, you must
have regard, if applicable, to any Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the
Local Government Act 1986.

You should never use council resources for
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purely political purposes, including
designing and distributing party political
material produced for publicity purposes.

However, your authority may authorise you
to use its resources and facilities for political
purposes in connection with your authority's
business. For example, holding surgeries in
your ward and dealing with correspondence
from your constituents. In this case, you
must be aware of the limitations placed
upon such use for these purposes. Using
your authority’s resources ouiside of these
limitations is likely to amount to a breach of
the Code of Conduct.

§

Considering advice provided
1o you and giving reasons

See Paragraph 7

Please note: paragraph 7 is not mandatory for parish
councils. However, your parish may choose to include
an obligation to take account of your clerk's advice in
the Code your authority adopts.

You must have regard to advice from your
monitoring officer or chief finance officer
where they give it under their statutory
duties.

If you seek advice, or advice is offered to

APPENDIX B

you, for example, on whether or not you
should register a personal interest, you
should have regard to this advice before
you make your mind up. Failure to do so
may be a breach of the Code of Conduct.

You must give reasons for all decisions in
accordance with statutory requirements and
any reasonable requirements imposed by
your authority. Giving reasons for decisions
is particularly important in relfation to
regulatory decisions and decisions where
people’s rights are affected,

Where members disagree with officer
recommendations in making a decision,
members will need to take particular care in
giving clear reasons for the decision.
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Complaint of Member Misconduct — Bearsted Parish Council

I believe that Chris Dyke (Chairman) has breached Section 2 (b) and Section 4 of the
Code of the Code of Conduct during the meeting of the Finance and General Policy
Committee which took place on 19th July 2011

2. A Member miust :
(a) promote equality by not discriminating unlawfully against any person.
(b) treat others with respect and

(c) not do anything which compromises or which is likely to compromise the
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of the authority.

4. A Member must not in his official capacity, or any other circumistance, conduct
himself in @ manner, which could reasonably be regarded as bringing his office ot
authority into disrepute.

My wife, Wendy, has been working in the Parish Office on a casual basis to cover for the
Clerk’s (Helen Elstone) holidays and she was also asked to help with the appointment of
the village handyman as the Clerk’s husband was expected to apply and the Parish
Council had decided that Helen Elstone, the Cletk, should not be involved with the
vecruitment process, During her time in the office Wendy inadvertently discovered that
the Clerk had been actively involved in securing the job of village handyman for her
husband and Wendy brought this to the attention of Chris Dyke the Chairman., Chiis
Dyke asked Wendy for evidence of this and Wendy printed the incriminating emails for
him.

I am aware that Wendy has been trying to get this problem resolved and has spoken to
Chris Dyke about the matter and she has also written to him, On 14" July, Chris Dyke
requested a meeting with Wendy and myself. I declined attending a meeting as I felt that
the issue of the irregularities in the appointment if the handyman was something that
Wendy had brought to the Chairman’s attention and that it was nothing to do with me.
(NB The meeting between Chris Dyke and Wendy never happened)

On 19" July, in an open meeting of the Finance & General Policy Committee, Chris
Dyke told the Committee that ‘someone had hacked into the office computer and looked
at and downloaded confidential documents about two weeks ago’. He also said that ‘this
person is known and had had a guiding hand’, He said that this had happened while
Helen Elstone was on holiday so it was obvious to all Councillors that he was referring to
Wendy, as they would have known that she was in the office at that time, and that the
person guiding her was me. He also said that what had happened was & breach of the
Data Protection Act and a criminal offence.

Geoff Licence 4 Sept 2011
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Complaint of Member Misconduct — Bearsted Parish Council

I was completely shocked by these allegations. Ireally did not know what to say or do.
This particular item was not on the agenda and it was held in an open public meeting,
This was part of a list of problems that the Council had and it was reported in such a way
that it sounded like the same person (Wendy) was guilty of all the things stated. I found
this grossly insulting and humiliating and 1 abstained in the vote, Later, I was told by

-another Councillor that they felt that Chris had worded things in such a way at the
meeting it was obvious he was talking about Wendy and that | was clearly implicated in
the act.

When the draft minutes were circulated, they have been framed in such a way that they
accuse me, and my wife of criminal behaviour. [ find this absolutely shocking and I
believe that all this has been done to humiliate me and also to intimidate Wendy so that
she would not pursue the problems that she has discovered with the appointment of Helen
Elstone’s husband as handyman.

I have never complained about a councillor before but feel compelled to do so now. I
have taken legal advice and have been told that there was no breach of the Data
Protection Act. My wife, Wendy was given the password by the clerk as she ran the
office whilst the clerk was on training or holiday. If there was any personal information
on the computer it should not have been there. No documents have been given to anyone
except the Chairman, I believe that Chris Dyke has breached the Parish Council’s Code
of Conduet by failing to treat a fellow councillor with respect.

I also believe that Chris Dyke behaviour in the handling of this matter is in breach of
Section 4 of the Code of Conduct “4 Member must not in his officlal capacity, or any
other circumstance, conduct himself in a manner, which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing his office or authority into disrepute.” I 'believe that Chris Dyke’s behaviour in
an open public meeting could bring the council into distepute as he has made false and
libelous allegations against my wife and myself.

Geoff Licence 4 Sept 2011
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BEARSTED PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of the Meeting of the Finance and General Purposes Committee held at
Madginford Hall, Egremont Road, Bearsted on Tuesday 19¢h July 2011 at 7.30pm

Present: Messrs Dyke, Hughes, Licence, Smith, Stark and Young, Madams Dunford and
Marshall MBE together with the Clerk, Mrs Elstone.

1) Apologies for Absence: None

2) Election of Committee Chairman and Vice Chairman including Declaration of
Acceptance of Office
1t was proposed that the Chalrman and Vice Chairman of the full council act in those
capacities upon this committee also, Agreed unanimously,

3) Declaration of Interest: None other than those declared within the Register of
Interest. Mr Hughes advised that he had been lobbied in respect of item 14 -
Correspondence — Heather Langley bench

4) Terms of Reference
The Clerk produced a draft copy of the Terms of Reference for approval. Mr Stark agreed
to continue fo carry out the internal audit checks.

5) Audit Commission

*  Audit 2009-2010

i) The Clerk advised that no response has been received to date regarding the
outcome of the challenge made regarding the accounts. The Audit Commission advises
that this has been passed to the District Auditor for referral to the Legal Officer and should
be with the parish shortly,

if)  The anticipated audit cost resulting from this challenge is £2,000. The annual bill
for audit is £550.

i) Question was raised as to what action should be taken once the decision is known,
It was agreed that in the interest of openness and transparency the matter should be
reported to residents. Councillors are stifl concerned that it is only Bearsted that is being
questioned regarding payments to the JPG. All other parishes have had their accounts for
the year audited with no question regarding the payments,

iv)  Ifthe parish council is found not fo have acted within the law it is unknown what
action will be taken against them or whether the insurance policy will cover the council for
a reimbursement.

¢  Audit 2010-2011 (

iy  Since the challenge on the accounts will not affect any figures contained within
them, the Audit Commission have now issued revised Notice of Audit posters which have
been placed within the notice boards. New date for submission of accounts is 2nd
September, The accounts were approved at the June full council meeting so once this date
arrives the Clerk can submit them without further consultation with the couneil,

6) Land and Buildings Account

i) It was agreed that £5,000 should be transferred to the account from the precept, as
agreed at the January finance committee meeting, and that the increase of funds within the
account should be one of the goals within the four year plan for the couneil.
Discussion tock place as to how this could be achieved, It was agreed that the type of land
that would be purchased should be identified as part of these plans.

if) Tt was suggested that enquiries be made to see if 100-200 residents would be

prepared to act as a guaranior for £1,000 each, These gunarantees could be used to secure a
mortgage should any land become available.
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ili)  As Boughton Monchelsea are known to be purchasing land around their parish it
was proposed that they be invifed to the QOctober meeting to discuss how they achieved
this. Mr HBughes proposed that he invites a local accountant to the meeting also to act as
business advisor on the issue.

iv) Tt was agreed that following this meeting a set of targets be identified to move the
matter forward,

Action: Funds to be transferred from current account to Land and Building account,

Boughton Monchelsea representative and accountant to be invited to October meeting

7) Asset register
§)  The addition of the low level lighting onto the asset register at a cost of £18,075
will result in an additional insurance premium of £82.39 — agreed
i) War Memorial — cover currently stands at £20,000 which is considered low,
| Action: Clerk to get quotation for replacement and cover revised accordingly |
i)  Question was raised as to whether the drains in Church Landway fall under South
Bast Water or whether they are a private sewor
Action: Clerk to ascertain ownership ]

8) Future banking practices

i)  Discussion took place regarding the transfer of accounts to Unity Bank. This is an
action that a number of parish council’s have undertaken with good reviews, This will
allow for internet banking and online monitoring.

iy Question raised as to whether a deposit account is also offered by the group as at
present all parish funds sit within such an account and are ‘swept’ to the current account to
cover payments,

Action: Clerk to prepare report for September full council meeting giving comparison

details re charges, interest etc,
i)  Youth Forum account — signatories on the account need to be amended. 1t was
therefore agreed that these be Mr Licence and Madams Dunford and Marshall. In the
interim payment to Madginford Hall, in respect of Youth Club hall hire was agreed for
payment from current account,
Action: Forms to be completed and returned to Clerk for action
Funds fo be transferred to current account when signatories set up

9) Budget Monitoring — 1st quarter 2011-2012
i) Question was raised regatding the admin budget being over the quarterly target. It
was agreed that this amount has peaks and troughs throughout the year and would be
maintained within the annual figure,

i)  Classic Car show — following discussions with the insurance company it transpires
those events held on the Green that are not solely parish events will require their own
cvents insurance cover. It was proposed that Mr Hill is co-opted to the Commuwmity
committee, as otganiser of the event, and is asked to hand over ownership to the council,
with him maintaining contro} of the day, but being accountable to the parish. The same
could be dome for the Sports and Activity Day, although the Community Warden’s
apreement to the parish council having overall say over the event was questioned,

] Action: Clerk to contact Philip Hill and Dawn Riacl-Brown regarding the matter ]
iif) Income — these figures will be reduced this year following the cancellation of
Music on the Green,
o The Farmers Market income prediction is based on 20 stalls per market, however
this is not being achieved. It was noted that this was set up as a community project and
was nol intended to be an income generator for the parish.
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10) Councillors Allowance
Request from Mr Ash that the committee consider reducing the maximum number of
meetings a councilor could claim for, in terms of the allowance, to the original figure of 20
meetings, since all councillors are now eligible to claim.

% Mr Young proposed that Mr Ash’s proposal be accepted. Agreed

11) Standing Orders
Clerk advised that the 2010 Standing Orders had not been amended to show how Code of -
Conduct matters be dealt with. It was agreed that all incidents be reported to the Finance
and General Policy committee for action,

Action: Clerk to amend Standing Orders and issue fo councillor on disc for reference.
Hard copies available for Councillors upon request,

12) Financial Regulations
f)  Since the adoption of the Financial Regulations in March 2009 NATLC have issued
the following amendments:

¢ Ttem 6.5(b) Increase in amount Clerk can pay out for wgent repairs/teplacements
to £500 from £200;

o llem 11(b) The suggested figure for tenders increased to £20,000
As a matter of note the Clerk advised that at the recent Clerk’s conference MBC issued the
following figures:

+ THRESHOLDS FOR INVITATION TO TENDER (ITT)

v Supplies, Services & Works £75,000 MBC
v Supplies & Services £156,442 BEU
v Works £3,927,260 EU
In response to these figures, Councillors agreed that the threshold should be increased to
£30,000, in light of the costs associated with recent works,
ity  The Clerk referred the following items to the councillors:

s Item 2.5 states that a three year forecast of Revenue and Capital Receipts and
Payments is prepared at the same time as the annual budget. This has not been carried out
in the past and should be introduced.

Actions Clerk to ensure ihis matier is considered at budget preparation I
¢ Item 14,3 ~ Annual health and safety inspection of assets to be carried out
| Action: Clerk o carry out i
< It was proposed by Mr Hughes, seconded Mr Young that the outlined amendments
be approved, Agreed
Action: Revised Finanelal Regulations to be issued along with Standing Orders to all
councillors on disc

13) General Policy Review
1)  The Clerk presented a list of policies required by law, suggested policies and those
already approved or requiring adoption, It was agreed that all policies be put in place for a
uniform adoption at the Qctober meeting.
Action: Policies to be prepared for consideration
i)  Grant policy —~ a revised policy was circulated amongst councillors for
consideration. This takes the principles of the current policy and expands them.
= [t was proposed by Mr Young, seconded Mr Starl that the revised policy be
adopted. Agreed
| Actiom: Policy to be amended 1
fiiy  Youth Club policies — Mr Licence advised that once he had passed his Introduction
to Youth Work course he could be named as the designated Child Protection person within
the policies.
s Regarding the club’s first ald policy Mrs Riach-Brown and Mrs Cuming are
qualified first aiders.
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o Question raised regarding first ald training for all councillors,

Action: Clerk to ascertain who Is first aid trained and identify in-house training

14) Correspondence
i) Request for donation towards cost of purchasing bench in memory of Heather
Langley. The Borough Solicitor has advised that this would be permitted, despite Miss
Langley’s political standing,

Mr Hughes stated that the parish council maintains the memorial benches on the Green,
following installation, as per the Sponsor a Seat policy, developed by Mike Harris. This
could be the parish council’s contribution to this cause.

Mr Licence felt that as a member of the Bearsted and Thurnham Society Miss Langley did
a lot for the parish however, on no other occasion has the parish council contributed to
such a purchase.

Discussion followead regarding the placement of memorial benches. Would Miss Langley’s
bench be more appropriate on BWT land as she was a member of the Trust?

% Tt was proposed by Mr Young, seconded by Mr Hughes that the parish decline to
contribule for reasons of political neutrality, advising that the parish will take over
maintenance of the bench, following installation.

i) Mr Dyke advised councillors that when accepting chairmanship of the council, in
2010, he had not anticipated that he would be faced with the highly petsonalised and
vitriolic issues that have occurred in that time. These have included:

o Abusive telephone calls and actions against the Clerk;

»  Complaints from resident that the parish council is not doing its job properly;

¢ Referral, by a councilor, to the monitoring officer regarding the conduct of a

fellow councilor;

»  Complaint to Paul Carter regarding the employment of the litter picker and

Handyman;

» The most recent of these incidents is one of great concern which has caused
sleepless nights and affected the home life of himself, Mt Young and the Clerk.

During the Clerk’s recent absence, due to training, the parish council computer’s records
were accessed with personal files being opened, emails sifted to find specific information
and employment related websites visited. These files were opened in a succinet manner
which would suggest that the perpetrator knew the exact information they were seeking.
The perpetrator is known but what is not known is whether they were acting alone; the
reasoning behind these actions and what the information gained will be used for,

Such actions are a breach of the Data Protection act, and therefore a criminal offence,

. Mr Stark, seconded by Mr Smith proposed that the maiter be referred to the police.
Mr Dyke proposed that prior to this the examination of the computer takes place so that all
the facts are before the parish council. A request has been sent to MBC for a technician to
visit the office to ascertain whether these files were just opened or whether they were
copled and/or printed, thus removing them from the confines of the office.

% The proposal was therefore amended to read: It was proposed that Mr Dyke,
following examination of the computer, refer the matter to the police.

Vote — 6 for, 1 abstention.
Mr Young requested that if any councilor had any information regarding this matter they
approach either himself of Mr Dyke. All information offered will be treated in confidence,

Action: Clerk to chase MBC regarding computer examination

15) Date of next mecting 18th October 2011

There being no further business the meeting closed at 9.15 p.m,
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Action Points from Finance and General Policy Committee 19¢h July 2011

Land & Buildings a/c Transfer £5000 Clerk
Boughton Monchelsea rep and accountant to be
invited to October meeting

Asset Register Replacement cost quotation to be requested Clerk
Ownetship of sewer to be identified

Future Banking Report on Unity Bank to be prepared Clerk
Youth Forum forms to be completed BD, GL, PM
Cost of hall hire to be transferred to current
account upon completion of forms Clerk
Budget Menitoring  Email to Philip Hill and Community Warden Cletk
re ownership of events
Standing Orders Document to be amended and circulated Clerk
Financial Regulations Document to be amended and circulated Clerk

Three year forecast to be introduced
Health angd Safety inspection of assets fo be
carried out
General Policy Review Policies to be prepared and circulated Clerk
Grant policy to be amended and circulated
First aid courses to be identified
Correspondence Chase MBC re technician visit Clerk

Ttems for Ratification
1) Councitlors Allowances — Maximum meeting allowance to be amended to 20

2) Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and Grant policy to be approved

3) Donation towards cost of bench to be refused with maintenance being covered by
PC
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Dear Paul

Complaint of Member Misconduct ref MBC/11/5
Thank you for your letter of the 20™ Sept.

My first comment is that Mrs Licence is not an employee of the authority as she claims, She was offered
work on a self employed basis when the clerk is absent. Her duties were limited to opening mail, checking
emails and selling bin bags. She is the third person carrying out this rofe in the last year, which is on an ad
hoc basis,

My record of events shows

l. In the autumn of 2010 the parish finally parted company with the village handyman services
provided by Tony Croucher of TCC services, Both sides were unhappy with the arrangement, The
council with the level of service provided and TCC with the money paid.

2. The Environment Committee chose to advertise for someone to carry out litter picker duties based
on the national minimum rate of pay. They had to choose between Mr Elstone or the son of Tony
Croucher from TCC. In view of the above it is no surprise Mr Elstone was appointed.

3. T subsequently received a complaint via Paul Carter of KCC, questioning the methodology of this
appointment, I consulted yourself and you confirmed since the pay rate was set in advance there
was no competition on price and the procedure was sound. You did offer advice on how to
improve matters in the future by not using Mrs Elstone in any future appointment involving her
husband.

4. Idiscussed this with Mrs Elstone and colleagues after our meeting when it was decided to seek a

handyman service. We decided to:

e Remove Mrs Elstone from the process and use Mrs Licence instead

¢ Route applications via Mrs Licence,

¢ Clr John Hughes opted to stay out of the process because he knows Mr Elstone well,

¢ We decided to draw up a list of ideal questions to use in the interview. I asked everyone who
felt they had any ideas of questions to send them to Clr P. Young so he could d1 aw up a final
list and scoring plan,

5. We received over 20 replies with a late entry from Mr Elstone passed to me by hand in the week
before the short Hsting.

6. Together with Clr Ash and Cir Blackmore we short listed 5 candidates of whom only 3 attended.

7. The actual list of questions was délayed and only passed to me be email from Clr Young on the
afternoon of the day of the interviews, It came to my home email and was not seen by anyone until
I printed it off that evening in the office. We added another question by hand to the list once Clr
Ash and Blackmore had seen the final version.

8 We took care that each interviewer kept his opinion to himself and the weighting until all the
scores were collected.

9. Using the score system Mr Elstone came out the clear winner, One candidate was quite unsuited
and the other looked reasonable but lived on the other side of Maidstone.
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My comments are:

1.

2,

3.

The original complaint was made against Mrs Elstone, | have accepted I was in error in asking her
for ber ideas of questions. Hence any blame remains mine only.

Neither Mrs or Mr Elstone ever saw the final version of the questions. After our initial discussions
I took care not to route any further work via the office up to and including the day of the interview.
Mirs Licence did raise her concerns on the evening but I found it difficult to respond since I knew
nobody had seen the final question paper. On reflection overnight I asked her to forward what she
had seen on BPCs emails. This confirmed item 2. I consulted Clrs Ash Young and decided the
process was sound and Mrs Elstone had not acted improperly.

Subsequent events/comments

1. On her return to work Mrs Elstone discovered a range of documents see attached had been
opened in her absence. Mrs Licence makes great play of having stumbled across certain
emails, She never explained why she was opening other sensitive documents involving the
clerk and CIr Ash’s Code of Conduct issue. She does not explain why she felt the need to
work back through over 200 emails to find the evidence she provides.

2. Ifelt we now had a second issue on our hands. Somebody was accessing the parish computer,
They knew exactly what to look for and where, I do not feel Mrs Licence was capable of
doing this as the issues were too complex. She could have opened the computer but would
have needed advice and guidance.

3. With over 20 years experience as a union officer and official I am aware that a common
response to a ‘Whistleblower Complaint’ is a counter charge. I was very concerned not o be
seen to go down this route without evidence. In particular 1 wanted to see if we had any
evidence that these documents had been printed off or transmitted outside the office in which
case the Data protection Act could have bean contravened,

4, I consulted you on this issue and took your advice to get in an IT specialist. We were not able
to get beyond seeing what had been opened.

5. When reporting to the council I did not mention Mrs Licence by name, nor anyone else. My
thoughts at that time were that she may have been manipulated by someone else. I opted to
wait and see if any concrete evidence were to arise showing who had opened the documents
and if someone outside the office had seen them, What evidence I subsequently obtained is in
para 4 of document 14 in the complaint file,

Mrs Licence complains that I did not investigate her complaint but I did investigate the complaint
against the clerk. I have some worries about how we collected the questions but feel we went as
far as we could to carry out a fair process. A good internal candidate will always have an
advantage over an unknown outsider. Conversely if Mr Elstone had not done well in his litter
picking duties he would have not been shortlisted,

It was very difficult to respond to Mrs Licence or meet her because we had two problems running
in parallel. The DP Act issue took precedence in my mind and I was advised not to meet her until
this was resolved,

Mirs Licence complains that we cancelled meetings with the council to discuss the issues, The first
was cancelled on the day concerned. When I arrived home I found my wife very upset, Somebody
had removed her life's savings from a savings account. I was in no state to run a meeting and Cl
Young would not have access to all the information, In deference to my wife I did not want the
precise reasons for this decision to be widely known, though I did explain to councillors at a later
date after the money was recovered. Subsequent meeting proposals were difficult because many of
the main players including myself were on holiday.

Thope this helps your enquiries.

I would like you to contact my predecessor Clr P, Walton and ask him to explain why he advised
me using Mrs Licence was a mistake in view of certain events at the Downs Mail,
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I also suggest you ask Mrs Licence how someone gained access to the attached list of documents,
who saw them and what was the interest in the Code of Conduct complaint against Clr R. Ash.

Yours sincerely

C. Dyke
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From; geoff.14@talktalk.net

Sent: 30 January 2012 09:18

To: Keith Trowell

Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct Complaint MB/11/4 -
Complainant Cllr. Geoff Licence (My Ref : KET/T001474)

Attachments: MBC114 Response.doc

Dear Keith,

I attach my response to your report. sorry it's a bit long but | wanted to go over all the points.

Chris Dyke resigned as chairman on 20th January by e-mail from deputy chairman. | hope that is the
correct date, because a letter of resignation has not yet been seen. He walked out of the meeting on the
17th January as he refused to chair it. He has not resigned from the council. He still wishes to remain on
the council.

Please call me if anything which | have commented on is not clear.
Thanks for your help.
Kind Regards

Geoff Licence

----- Original Message-----

From: Keith Trowell <Keith.Trowell@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>

To: geoff. 14@talktalk.net

Sent: Mon, 16 Jan 2012 17:48

Subject: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct Complaint MB/11/4 - Complainant ClIr. Geoff Licence (My
Ref: KET/T001474)

Please find attached for your perusal a copy of my draft report relating to the above-mentioned
complaint. The various Annexes are not included at this stage but can be provided if you wish to see
them.

| shall be grateful if you will consider the draft and e-mail me with any comments you may have.
Many apologies for the huge delay that have arisen in this matter.

Regards,

Keith E.Trowell

Group Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer

Legal Services
Tunbridge Wells Borough Council
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Town Hall
Royal Tunbridge Wells
Kent TN1 1RS

DX : 3929 Tunbridge Wells

T: 01892 554481
F: 01892 554027

keith.trowell@tunbridgewells.gov.uk
www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk

Document: TM001474/013878

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of
the author and do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough
Council. If you are not the intended recipient, be advised that you have
received this e-mail in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding,
printing or copying of this e-mail is strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118
or e-mail to infoltunbridgewells.gov.uk.

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual
to whom

it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the
author and

do not necessarily represent those of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. If you
are not

the intended recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in
error and

that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this e-mail
is

strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge Wells
Borough Council

IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121 extension 3118 or e-mail to
infoltunbridgewells.gov.uk.
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Documents Submitted by Cllr Dyke
8.1 Is this a typo? Should it be 20117

10. Interview of Wendy Licence 14.11.11
10.1 Mrs Licence's complaint is also Par 3.1- you must treat others with respect

10.2 What does “ did not provide purported allegations” mean?

12. Interview of Cllr Dyke

12.1 (a) I am extremely shocked by Clir Dyke's statement and I believe it to be speculative
rather than factual. In particular, I am amazed that Clir Dyke felt that someone was looking for
something “against Cllr Ash who may be a rival to Clir Licence in the Borough elections next
year” as at that time I was recovering from heart surgery and my concern was whether or not I
would be fit to continue a Parish Councillor as my health was still quite poor, so there was
consideration of becoming a Borough Councillor at that time. I consider myself to be a
conscientious Parish Councillor working for the benefit of the community so I was more
concerned as to whether or not I would fulfill my duties properly considering my health at that
time. I cannot understand why Cllr Dyke should say such a thing. I believe that such an allegation
is little more than a smoke screen and actually has nothing to do with the issue at hand.

With regards to my wife discovering the email it was most certainly by chance that she found it.
At that time she believed the recruitment process to be completely fair and honest, after all she
had been asked to oversee the procedure so that Mrs Elstone would have no involvement and she
believed that to be the case. Again this is pure speculation rather than fact. I had no hand in
directing my wife to any e-mail.

12.1 (¢) This is another shocking statement and it is completely untrue and I believe it to be pure
speculation. I only know Mr Etheridge from being on BPC. I was not aware of any tension
between him and Mrs Elstone and there is no “relationship” between Mr Etheridge and myself.
My only dealings with Mr Etheridge is because he is on the hall committee and I run the Youth
Club and have contact with Mr Etheridge only in that capacity. He is not or never has been a
personal friend but merely an acquaintance. I am astounded that Clir Dyke has alleged that there
has been some kind of conspiracy here.

12.1 (e) Again, this is repetition of previous speculation and there seems to be nothing to back up
Cllr Dyke's allegations. Clir Dyke mentions the Whistle blowing policy, which my wife had also
requested protection under but the F&GP Committee was told by the Clerk that it did not have
one as it had not yet been adopted.

12.1 (f) The minutes of the meeting of 19™ July clearly show that Clir Dyke gave enough
information to allow Councillors to work out who he was talking about. Cllr Dyke specified that
it happened when the clerk was absent due to training. Documents accessed were identified at
the meeting but the meeting was not properly minuted.

12.(g) When Clir Dyke spoke at the F& GP Committee Meeting on 19™ July he did not look at all

in my direction so he cannot say my body language gave councillors this impression. This is
NOT FACT.
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12.2 T am shocked by ClIr Dyke's subsequent statement which is complete speculation with no
factual basis. The key issue is the investigation of Clir Dyke's remarks at the F&GP committee
on 19" July 2011.

The evidence given in the form of a print out of the documents which had been accessed is weak
as it is only a brief list of documents and does not support the claim that they were opened in an
“accurate order” as, if the full list was submitted, it would prove otherwise. To focus on this
point is merely an example of the diversionary tactics which the Chairman uses.

I have no knowledge of any claims by Mr Etheridge. Neither myself or my wife have any idea
what Cllr Dyke is referring to. My complaint is only against Cllr Dyke. His statement is
absolutely incredulous and as, not only am I not sure what he is talking about, I am also not sure
how to respond to it. It sounds like some kind of conspiracy theory, which actually has no
substance, and I think this is little more than another smokescreen. Surely your investigation
should be based on fact not wild inaccurate theories. If this evidence is relied upon, or repeated 1
contend that it is libel and I will be seeking legal advice.

“When this failed (o reveal..etc.. they swilched their complaint to one third of the council..” again
I am shocked by CllIr Dyke's insistence on some kind of conspiracy theory. In 16.1 (t) Cllr Dyke

says “.he thought of Cllr Licence as quiet and easy going and not behind anything” and here he
is accusing me and my wife of a conspiracy. This is an inconsistency in Cllr Dyke's evidence.

12.3 Having seen the email attached in Annex E I am confused as to how this relates to me.
This is clearly an email from Mr Etheridge to Cllrs Dyke and Young and Clir Dyke has not
explained how they dealt with this at the time. I do not know what Mr Etheridge's concerns
were. This, so called, evidence must not be taken into account.

13. Analysis of Evidence & Reasoning

13.3 “In essence it is agreed that Clir Dyke certain statements that others considered to be not
only inappropriate but also such as to place him in breach of the Code of Conduct.” What does
this mean please? The sentence does not make sense.

13.4 “. the allegation is q liltle vague..” Can you say why this is vague please? If the allegation
is vague the Sub- Committee would not have referred it to you.

13.7 ClIr Dyke's view is purely supposition and there are no facts to support this. There is no
substance to the suggestion that anyone took advantage of Mrs Elstone's absence and Cllr Dyke
admitted that it was not easy to prove anything (16.1 (w) ) and this is because there was nothing
to prove. The evidence given in the form of a print out of the documents which had been
accessed is weak as it is only a brief list of documents and does not support the claim that they
were opened in an “accurate order” (16.2) as, if the full list was submitted, it would prove
otherwise.” To focus on this point is merely another example of the diversionary tactics which the
Chairman uses.

2

13.9 (b) This should read “... the Parish Clerk was on a training course....” as stated in the
minutes of 19® July. Everyone present on 19™ July was aware that Wendy was in the office at
that time.
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13.10 (b) Clir Dyke states he avoided “.. dates, times...”. The minutes of F&GP Committee
clearly contradict this as Cllr Dyke is recorded as saying “During the Clerk's recent absence, due
to training..”.

13.13 Cllr Dyke is recorded as saying “..Such actions are a breach of the Data Protection Act” is
an accusation and it was clearly directed at the individuals concerned.

13.14 Re F&GP Committee. “..perceptions and interpretations..” Cllr Dyke was quite definite
in what he told the committee. Cllr Dyke did not say it was his perception or interpretation of the
situation, it was spoken as fact.

13.16 The analysis that my wife and I have “.. read a little more into the situation than actually
exists...” is flawed. Cllr Dyke has already stated that he believes there has been “.some
collusion between Mr Etheridge and Cllr Licence and his wife...”; Cllr Hughes in his email of
26.9.11 talks of “.anomymous complaint via Paul Carter...” “.link between the two
complaints.” and “..Mr Geoff Licence.. who is likely to stand... against Richard Ash...”. This
certainly proves that the anonymous complaint to Paul Carter which was mentioned at the F&GP
meeting was alluded to my wife. Perhaps more to the point, it clearly shows that it is actually
Cllrs Dyke and Hughes, and Clir Young (who has tried to prove her “crimes™) who are reading
more into the situation than actually exists. '

13.15 In 13.12 you state that you “ ...accept that Cllr Dyke's statement to F&GP Committee
were such that Parish Councillors present may have assumed a link to Mrs Licence...... .. it seems
to me that his statements would have at the very least raised a suspicion in the minds of some
Members that Mrs Licence had behaved improperly. Additionally it seems imprudent to have
mentioned criminal offences and involving the police at that time.” and this actually substantiates
the allegations against Cllr Dyke that he breached the Code.. Furthermore, was in an open
meeting and, while there were no members of the public present, the minutes are public
documents and as such the allegations are available for public scrutiny. The committee voted 6 to
1 to inform the police.

14. Conclusion

14.3 If Cllr Dyke is a “comscientious Chairman” it would be reasonable to expect him to
diligently adhere to the legal advise he asked for and was given by Paul Fisher in his letter of
27.4.11. A conscientious man would also be consistent in his evidence.

15. Closing Remarks

15.3 What is the “ previous knowledge” referred to here? I am extremely concerned that this
previous knowledge may have been prejudicial to the investigation. Tt was only after a careful
consideration that I felt I had to report this matter outside BPC and the matter has always been
about Cllr Dyke's remarks during the F&GP Committee meeting of 19.7.11 so I am extremely
concerned that there is an influence of previous knowledge, I believed the purpose of this
investigation was that it would be completely impartial. Please can you tell me what previous
knowledge you have considered?
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“.from potential further complaints..” again what are these? How has this affected the
investigation? I believe that the first sentence of 15.3 makes the investigation flawed and the
findings unsafe.

What “political differences” are being referred to here? I do not belong to any political
party and I have no axe to grind against Clir Ash who is an experienced and competent
Borough Councillor. I understand that Cllir Dyke has speculated that my wife took
advantage of the clerk being away to try to gain information on the clerk and Clir Ash,
but nothing could be further from the truth. I find his allegation shocking and offensive.
Also, there is absolutely no proof to substantiate this allegation.

I feel that in your conclusion you have been influenced by spurious so called evidence
from Cllr Dyke who ignored Paul Fisher's advice and involved the clerk in the
appointment of her husband as handyman. How on earth can you call him conscientious?

Cllr Marshall told me after the meeting on 19™ July that the way ClIr Dyke brought up
these accusations was to indicate a link between phone calls to the clerk and letters to
Paul Carter with my wife. Again there is no evidence to support this.
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From: cdyke@onetel.com

Sent: 18 January 2012 19:25

To:  Keith Trowell

Subject: Re: CONFIDENTIAL : Code of Conduct Complaint MB/11/4 -
ComplainantCllr.

Geoff Licence (My Ref : KET/T001474)

Dear Keith
With regards the appointment of the handyman I have nothing to add/comment.

With regards the possible breach of the Data Protection Act I do have serious
issues.

It was decided between myself, the clerk and Paul Young that there was
evidence to show an unauthorised access to the parish files on the computer.

I feel it is my duty as Chair and even as a citizen to report when I feel a
crime may have been committed. I did that in the first instance to my
colleagues. If in stating the time period and location of such possible an
event causes mr and mrs licence to feel they were accused that is not my
problem.

By invoking the CoC both Mr and Mrs Licence could be seen to be standing in
the way of a possible criminal investigation.

Such an investigation should in my opinion take precedence over the CoC
inquiry.

It would certainly seem strange for someone reporting that a crime may have
taken place should be subject to an CoC investigation.

It could be said that the events do not justify such a serious approach but
the incident was one of the major causes of the clerk going on long term sick
leave.

The likelyhood is now that the Clerk will be well placed to take legal action
against the Council. Such an event would prove both costly and damaging.

Regards
Chris Dyke
Quoting Keith Trowell <Keith.Trowell@Tunbridgewells.gov.uk>:

> Please find attached for your perusal a copy of my draft report

> relating to the above-mentioned complaint. The various Annexes are
> not included at this stage but can be provided if you wish to see

> them.

>

> I shall be grateful if you will consider the draft and e-mail me with

> any comments you may have.

>

> Many apologies for the huge delay that have arisen in this matter.
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> Regards,

>

> Keith E.Trowell

> Group Manager & Deputy Monitoring Officer Legal Services Tunbridge
> Wells Borough Council Town Hall Royal Tunbridge Wells Kent TN1 1RS
>

> DX : 3929 Tunbridge Wells

>

> T: 01892 554481

> F: 01892 554027

>

> keith.trowell@tunbridgewells.gov.uk<mailto:keith.trowell@tunbridgewell
> s.gov.uk> www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk<http://www.tunbridgewells.gov.uk/>
>

> Document: TM001474/013877

>

>

S .

> This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the

> individual to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented
are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those
of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. If you are not the intended
recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and
that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this
e-mail is strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge
Wells Borough Council IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121
extension 3118 or e-mail to info@tunbridgewells.gov.uk.

This e-mail is confidential and intended solely for the use of the
individual to whom it is addressed. Any views or opinions presented
are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those
of Tunbridge Wells Borough Council. If you are not the intended
recipient, be advised that you have received this e-mail in error and
that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this
e-mail is strictly prohibited.

If you have received this e-mail in error please notify Tunbridge
Wells Borough Council IT Help Desk on telephone +44 (0)1892 526121
extension 3118 or e-mail to info@tunbridgewells.gov.uk.

VVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVVYVVYV
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1.1.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.3

2.4

3.1.

4.1.

APPENDIX C

Hearing Procedures for the Standards Sub Committee

Application
This procedure applies to hearings of the Sub Committee of the

Standards Committee about alleged breaches of the Member Code of
Conduct by Borough or Parish Members.

Interpretation
“Code” means the code referred to in paragraph 1.

“Investigator” means either or the Monitoring Officer or other
investigating officer, and his or her nominated representative.

“Legal advisor” means the officer responsible for providing legal advice to
the Sub-Committee. This may be the Monitoring Officer, another legally
qualified officer of the authority, or someone appointed for this purpose
from outside the Council.

“"Member” means the member of Council or voting co-opted member or
member of a parish council who is the subject of the allegation being
considered by the Sub-Committee, unless stated otherwise. It also
includes the member’s nhominated representative.

“The Chairman” refers to the person presiding at the hearing.
“The Matter” is the subject matter of the Investigator’s report.
"The Sub-Committee Support Officer” means an officer of the Council

responsible for supporting the Sub-Committee’s discharge of its functions
and recording the decisions of the Sub-Committee.

Modification of Procedure

The Sub-Committee may vary this procedure where it is appropriate to
do so in the interests of fairness.

Representation
The Member may be represented or accompanied during the meeting by

a solicitor, counsel or, with the permission of the Sub-Committee,
another person.

167



5.1.

6.1.

7.1

APPENDIX C

Legal advice

The Sub-Committee may take legal advice from its legal advisor at any
time during the hearing or its deliberations. The substance of any legal
advice given to the Sub-Committee should be shared with the Member
and the Investigator if they are present.

Preliminary and Procedural issues

At the start of the hearing, the Chairman shall invite all participants to
introduce themselves and indicate their role at the hearing, clarify that
they are aware of this procedure and deal with the following:

6.1.1. Disclosures of interest
6.1.2. Confirm that the Sub-committee is quorate

6.1.3. Explain any proposed change to the procedure arising from the
pre-hearing process

6.1.4. Decide whether to proceed in the absence of the Member
If the Member is not present at the start of the hearing the Sub-
Committee shall consider any reasons which the Member has
provided for not attending the hearing and shall decide whether
to proceed in the absence of the Member or adjourn the hearing;

6.1.5. Exclusion of Press and Public
The Sub-Committee shall normally meet in public but may
determine whether to exclude the Press or public from all or any
part of the hearing and shall consider and determine any request
to do so after hearing the reasons in support of the request.

6.1.6. Clarify matters arising from the pre-hearing process as to what
evidence is agreed and what points of difference there are for the
Sub-Committee to determine.

Admission of breach

If the Member admits that he/she has failed to comply with the Code in
the manner described in the Investigator’s report, the Sub-Committee
may make a determination that the Member has failed to comply with
the Code and proceed directly to consider whether any penalty should be
applied under paragraph 9.
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Hearing evidence

Where there are points of difference in the evidence, the Sub-Committee
shall hear the evidence of the Investigator and the Member in the
following order:

8.1.1.

8.1.2.

8.1.3.

8.1.4.

8.1.5.

8.1.6.

8.1.7.

The Investigator shall present his/her report, having particular
regard to any points of difference identified by the Member and
why he/she concluded, on the basis of his/her findings of fact that
the Member had/had not failed to comply with the Code. The
Investigator may call witnesses to give evidence on the points of
difference.

The Member may ask questions of these witnesses and of the
Investigator.

At any time the members of the Sub-Committee may question the
Investigator and witnesses.

The Member may respond to the Investigator’s report and may call
any witnesses to give evidence on the points of difference.

The Investigator may ask questions of the Member and these
witnesses.

At any time the members of the Sub-Committee may question the
Member and witnesses.

If the Member disagrees with any relevant fact in the
Investigator’s report, without having given prior notice of the
disagreement, he or she must give good reasons for not
mentioning it before the hearing. If the Investigator is not present,
the Sub-Committee will consider whether or not it would be in the
public interest to continue in his or her absence. After considering
the Member’s explanation for not raising the issue at an earlier
stage, the Sub-Committee may then:

8.1.7.1. continue with the hearing, relying on the information in
the Investigator’s report;

8.1.7.2. allow the Member to make representations about the
issue, and invite the Investigator to respond and call any
witnesses, as necessary; or

8.1.7.3. postpone the hearing to arrange for appropriate

witnesses to be present, or for the Investigator to be
present if he or she is not already.
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8.1.8. The Sub Committee may invite the Investigator and the Member
to summarise their representations on the points of difference,
with reference to the evidence of the witnesses.

8.1.9. The Sub Committee may adjourn and resume the hearing if it
needs to hear evidence from any person not present.

8.1.10. The Sub Committee shall require the room to be vacated (or
move to another room) to enable it to deliberate on the
representations and evidence and to make its findings of fact and
decision as to whether there was a breach of the code.

8.1.11. The Sub Committee may require the hearing to be resumed if it
needs to hear further evidence.

8.1.12. The Sub Committee shall resume the hearing to announce its
decision or give all parties notice of the date and time on which it
shall be resumed.

8.1.13. The Sub Committee may, prior to deliberating on whether there
was a breach of the code, if it considers appropriate, announce
its findings of fact and hear further representations on whether
the findings amount to a breach of the code.

8.1.14. If the Sub Committee considers that it requires additional
evidence not available at the hearing in order to come to a
finding, it may (on not more than one occasion) adjourn the
hearing and require the Monitoring Officer to seek further
information or undertake further investigation on points specified
by the Sub-Committee.

Decision and Penalty

If the Sub-Committee decides that the Member has not failed to follow
the Code of Conduct, the Sub-Committee can move on to consider
whether it should make any recommendations to the Standards
Committee.

If the Sub-Committee decides that the Member has failed to follow the
Code, it will consider any oral or written representations from the
Investigator and the Member as to:

9.2.1. whether or not the Sub-Committee should set a penalty; and

9.2.2. what form any penalty should take.

170



9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

10.

10.1.

10.2

APPENDIX C

The Sub-Committee may question the Investigator and Member, and
take legal advice, to make sure they have the information they need in
order to make an informed decision.

The Sub-Committee shall then require the room to be vacated (or move
to another room) to enable it to decide whether a penalty is to be applied
and in what form.

The Sub-Committee shall resume the hearing to announce its decision or
give all parties notice of the date and time on which it shall be resumed.

The Sub-Committee may apply the penalties, as applicable and as
appropriate, that are indicated in “Standards Sub-Committee
Decision-Making Process”.

The Close of the Hearing

The Chairman will indicate when the written form of the Sub-
Committee’s decision is likely to be available and arrangements for
providing this to the Member [Please see “"Standards Sub-Committee
Decision-Making Process”].

Following the close of the hearing, the Sub-Committee’s Support Officer
will agree a formal written notice of the Sub-Committee’s decision and
the Monitoring Officer shall arrange for the distribution and publication of
that notice (or a summary of that notice, where required) in accordance
with Regulation 20 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations
2008.
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Excluding the public from hearings

Standards for England recommends that hearings should be held in
public where possible to make sure that the hearing process is open and
fair. However, there may be some circumstances where parts of the
hearing should be held in private:

1.

At the hearing, the Sub-Committee will consider whether or not the public
should be excluded from any part of the hearing, in line with Part VA of the
Local Government Act 1972 (as modified in relation to local determinations
by Standards Committees). If the Sub-Committee considers that ‘confidential
information’ is likely to be revealed during the hearing, the Sub-Committee
must exclude the public by law. ‘Confidential information’ is defined for these
purposes to mean information that has been provided by a Government
department under the condition that it must not be revealed, and information
that the law or a court order says cannot be revealed.

. The Sub-Committee also has the power to exclude the public if it considers

that ‘exempt information’ is likely to be revealed during the hearing. The
Sub-Committee should act in line with Article 6 of the European Convention
on Human Rights, which gives people the right to a fair trial and public
hearing by an independent and unbiased tribunal. The Sub-Committee also
has a duty to act fairly and in line with the rules of natural justice.

. Article 6 says that the public may be excluded from all or part of the hearing

if it is in the interests of:

3.1. morals;

3.2. public order;

3.3. justice;

3.4. national security in a democratic society; or

3.5. protecting young people under 18 and the private lives of anyone
involved.

There should be a public hearing unless the Sub-Committee decides that
there is good reason, which falls within one of the five categories above (3.1
to 3.5), for the public to be excluded.

. The Sub-Committee must also act in line with Article 10 of the European

Convention on Human Rights, which sets out the right for people to ‘receive
and impart information and ideas without interference by public authority’.
Any restrictions on this right must be ‘prescribed by law and...necessary in a
democratic society, in the interests of national security, territorial integrity or
public safety, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of
health or morals, for the protection of the reputation or rights of others, for
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preventing the disclosure of information received in confidence, or for
maintaining the authority and impartiality of the judiciary’.

6. Conflicting rights often have to be balanced against each other. The
committee must act in line with Article 8 of the European Convention on
Human Rights. Article 8 says that everyone has the right to respect for their
private and family life, home and correspondence. It says that no public
authority (such as the Sub-Committee) may interfere with this right unless it
is:

6.1. in line with the law; and
6.2. necessary in a democratic society in the interests of:
6.2.1. national security;
6.2.2. public safety;
6.2.3. the economic wellbeing of the country;
6.2.4. preventing crime or disorder;

6.2.5. protecting people’s health and morals (which would include
protecting standards of behaviour in public life); or

6.2.6. protecting people’s rights and freedoms.

There is a clear public interest in promoting the probity (integrity and
honesty) of public authorities and public confidence in them. For these
reasons the hearing should be held in public unless the Sub-Committee
decides that protecting the privacy of anyone involved is more
important than the need for a public hearing.

7. In relation to people’s rights under both Articles 8 and 10 of the European
Convention on Human Rights, it should be remembered that any interference
with or restriction of those rights must be ‘necessary in a democratic society’.
A measure will only be ‘necessary’ if it meets ‘a pressing social need’, and
any restriction on people’s rights must be ‘proportionate’.

8. Standards for England recommends that a Standards Committee should
move to a private room when considering its decisions. We do not consider
that this will conflict with the rights under the European Convention on
Human Rights or the duty to act fairly.
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Categories of exempt information under Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act 1972 (as modified in relation to local

determination by Standards Committee)

1. Information relating to any individual.

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person (including the authority holding that information.

4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter
arising between the authority or a minister of the Crown and employees of,
or office holders under, the authority.

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings.

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes:

. To give notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on
a person.
. To make an order or direction under any enactment.

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with
the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime.

7(a) Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality.

7(b) Information which relates in any way to matters concerning national
security.

7(c) Information presented to a Standards Committee, or to a sub-
committee, set up to consider any matter under Regulations 13 or 16 to
20 of the Standards Committee (England) Regulations 2008, or referred
under section 58(1)(c) of the Local Government Act 2000.
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Standards Sub-Committee Decision-Making Process

The finding of the Sub-Committee

1. Following its hearing, the Sub-Committee can make one of the following

findings:
1.1. the Member has not failed to follow the authority’s Code of Conduct;
1.2. the Member has failed to follow the authority’s Code of Conduct, but
no action needs to be taken; or
1.3. the Member has failed to follow the authority’s Code of Conduct and
should be penalised.
Penalties

2. If the Sub-Committee finds that a Member has failed to follow the Code of
Conduct and that he or she should be penalised, it may do any one or a
combination of the following:

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

censure the Member. This is the only form of penalty available when
dealing with a person who is no longer a Member of the authority;

restrict the Member’s access to the premises or their use of the
resources of the relevant authority for up to six months, provided that
any such restrictions imposed upon the member:

2.2.1. are reasonable and proportionate to the nature of the breach;
and

2.2.2. do not unduly restrict the member’s ability to perform his
functions as a member

Partial suspension of that member for a period up to a maximum of six
months.

Suspension of that member for a period up to a maximum of six
months.

A requirement that that member submit a written apology in a form
specified by the Standards Sub-Committee.

A requirement that that member undertake training as specified by
the Sub-Committee
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2.7. A requirement that that member participates in such conciliation as
specified by the Sub-Committee

2.8. Partial suspension of that member for a period up to a maximum of six
months or until such time as he submits a written apology in a form
specified by the Sub-Committee

2.9. Partial suspension of that member for a period up to a maximum of six
months or until such time as he undertakes such training or
participates in such conciliation as the Sub-Committee may specify

2.10. Suspension of that member for a period up to a maximum of six
months or until such time as he submits a written apology in a form
specified by the Sub-Committee

2.11. Suspension of that member for a period up to a maximum of six
months or until such time as he undertakes such training or
participates in such conciliation as the Sub-Committee may specify.

3. Subject to paragraph 4, any sanction imposed shall commence immediately
following its imposition by the Sub-Committee.

4. The Sub-Committee may direct that a sanction imposed under any of sub-
paragraphs 2.2 to 2.11 of paragraph 2 shall commence on such date, within a
period of six months after the imposition of that sanction, as the sub-
committee may specify in their direction.

Deciding a Penalty

5. When deciding a penalty, the Sub-Committee should make sure that it is
reasonable and in proportion to the member’s behaviour. Before deciding
what penalty to set, the Sub-Committee should consider the following
questions, along with any other relevant circumstances.

5.1. What was the member’s intention? Did the member know that he or
she was failing to follow the Code of Conduct?

5.2. Did the member get advice from officers before the incident? Was that
advice acted on in good faith?

5.3. Has there been a breach of trust?

5.4. Has there been financial impropriety (for example, improper expense
claims or procedural irregularities)?

5.5. What was the result of failing to follow the Code of Conduct?

5.6. How serious was the incident?

176



APPENDIX C

5.7. Does the member accept he or she was at fault?
5.8. Did the member apologise to the relevant people?

5.9. Has the member previously been warned or reprimanded for similar
misconduct?

5.10. Has the member failed to follow the Code of Conduct before?

5.11. Is the member likely to do the same thing again?

5.12. How will the sanction be carried out?

5.13. Are there any resource or funding implications? For example , if a
subject member has repeatedly or blatantly misused the authority’s IT

resources, the sub-committee may consider withdrawing those
resources

Notice of the Sub-Committee’s Findings

6. The Sub-Committee should announce its decision at the end of the hearing. It
is good practice to make a short written decision available on the day of the
hearing, and to prepare the full written decision in draft on that day. The
officer providing administrative support to the Sub-Committee will normally
also draft minutes of the meeting.

7. As soon as possible after the hearing, the Sub-Committee must give its full
written decision to the relevant people. Ideally the Sub-Committee will give
its full written decision to those people within two weeks. The relevant people
are:

7.1. the member who is the subject of the finding;
7.2. the complainant
7.3. the Standards Committees of any other authorities concerned;

7.4. any parish/town councils concerned; and

Full Written Decision Format
8. The front cover of the Sub-Committee’s full written decision should include:
8.1. the name of the authority;

8.2. the name of the member who the allegation has been made about;
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8.4.

8.5.

8.6.

8.7.

8.8.

8.9.

8.10.

8.11.
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the name of the person who made the original allegation (unless there
are good reasons for keeping his or her identity confidential);

case reference numbers of the principal;
the name of the Sub-Committee member who chaired the hearing;

the names of the Sub-Committee members who took part in the
hearing;

the name of the Monitoring Officer;

the name of the I0 who investigated the matter (where applicable);
the name of the clerk of the hearing or other administrative officer;
the date of the hearing; and

the date of the report.

9. The Sub-Committee’s full written decision should include:

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

a summary of the allegation;

the relevant section or sections of the Code of Conduct;

a summary of the evidence considered and representations made;
the findings of fact, including the reasons for them;

the finding as to whether or not the member failed to follow the Code
of Conduct, including the reasons for that finding;

the penalties applied, if any, including the reasons for any penalties;
and

the right to appeal

Making the Findings Public

10.The Sub-Committee must also arrange for a summary of the decision and
reasons for that decision to be published in one or more newspapers that are
independent of the authorities concerned and circulating in the area of those
authorities.
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11.If the Sub-Committee finds that a member did not fail to follow the
authority’s Code of Conduct, the public summary must say this, and give
reasons for this finding. In these cases, the member involved is also entitled
to ask that no summary of the decision should be passed to local
newspapers.

12.1If the Sub-Committee finds that a member failed to follow the Code of
Conduct, but that no action is needed, the public summary must say that the
member failed to follow the Code, outline what happened and give reasons
for the Sub-Committee’s decision not to take any action.

13.If the Sub-Committee finds that a member failed to follow the Code and it
sets a penalty, the public summary must say that the member failed to follow
the Code of Conduct, outline what happened, explain what penalty has been
set and give reasons for the decision made by the Sub-Committee.

14.The Sub-Committee’s reports and minutes should be available for public
inspection for six years after the hearing. However, sections of documents
relating to parts of the hearing that were held in private will not have to be
made available for public inspection.
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